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Returning to

profitable growth




We are the largest specialist trade distributor

of plumbing and heating products to professional
contractors and a leading supplier of building
materials to the professional market. We operate
a number of well known businesses that hold
leading positions in their local markets.
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Every year, more and more information 1s avaitable for our
shareholders, employees and custorners in the onling
version of Wolseley's Annual Report Publishing information
i this way 1s also better for the emvironment This year's
Report includes several Interactive features

Usability

The ontne version of Wolseley's Annual Report 15 avalable
on your computer or handheld at any tme, allowang you
1o acoass niormation when you need it, wherever you ars,
makang It more converient than requestng a panted copy

Accessibllity

Thus Annual Report has been designed to be as accessible
as possible and also to ba compatible with the types

of edaptve technclogy used by peopie with disabiities,
inchuding screen readers Visitors to the website can control
the size of the text and use "access keys" on the keyboard
rathier than the mouse to navgate through the pages

interactive content
This year's Annual Report features links to an interview
with Wolseley's Group Chief Executive lan Meakins

There ara & woalth of other interactive features for
shareholders on our man corporate website

www wolseley com including share pnce inftermation,
charts and companson tools the opportunity o actively
rmanage your shareholding, the ability to register your prooy
appaintrnants and the option 1o elect to receve a future
sharmsholder communications electronically; there is also
access to a simple and converuent telephone and intemet
sham dealng servce for UK-based shareholdars

hitp'//annualreport2010.wolseleyplc com
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Financial statements

COther informaticn

Wolseley has begun to emerge from the extremely
difficult market environment of the last three years.
Through tough actions and a new strategic approach,
the business is well positioned to exploit the

opportunities that lie ahead.

Markets stabilising

In 2010 revenue was down @ per cent

to £13,203 milion There was a gradual
stabilisation of our markets, with RMI
segments generally holding up better than
the more volatile new residential segments
This led to a strong second half and like-
for-lke revenue growth in the fourth quarter

£13.2bn

Resource allocation completed

In March 2010 we anncunced our ntention
to focus future growth on those Wolselay
businesses where we have built substanhal
scale, leading market posttions and
excellent customer franchises We have
completed our plans for this year

Graphic removed

Exited underperforming
businesses

Duning the year the Group has exited
from several businesses This included
our businesses In Ireland, the French
Public Works business and our
plumbing and heating activities in

the Czech Republic,
Belgium and Slovakia

Graphic removed

' Trading profit, a tenm used throughout the Annual Repart,

18 defined as operating profit before exceptional tems
and the amortisation and impalrment of intangible assets
Sew niote 12 of the consolidated financtal statemants for
arsconcihabion from operating profit 1o trading profit

Lower cost base

Since the start of the recession we have
taken action to lower the cost bass,

as revenues decreased Operating costs
in the year to 31 July 2010, were reduced
by a further £353 mullion or 10 per cent

-£353m

Improved trading profit*

Desprte a decrease 1n revenue of 9 per cent,
actions 1o protect gross margins and the
benefit of a lower cost base enabled

the Group to Increase trading profit to
£450 milion (2008 £447 millon)

£450m

Net debt reduced

The Group continues to place a high
degree of emphasis on cash generation
Continued working capital disciplineg and
management actions to conserve cash
and capital expenditure meant that our
net debt at 31 July 2010, was reduced
by £613 milon to £346 milion (2009
£959 million)

-£613m

Wolseley pic 01
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Chaiman’s statement

The organisation looks to the future with increasing
confidence and an enthusiasm to develop our strong
local market positions working from the foundation
of alow cost base and strong, focused leadership.

Graphic removed

In my last year as Charman | am delighted

to raport that as we begin to emerge from

the extremely difficult market environment of
the last three years, your Company is well
positioned to explot the opportunities that lie
ahead The organisation looks to the future
with Increasing confidence and an enthusiasm
to develop our strong local market positions
workeng from the foundation of a low cost base
and strong, focused leadership Last year was
again difficult, starting with a weak declining
rmarket which has only begun to show signs
of stability, and n some cases recovery, In the
last few months

Group results

This 1s clearly reflected i the results for the year-

with Group revenue for the 12 months to 31 July
2010, down 9 per cent to £13 2 billion, and
eamnings per share before exceptional items
and amortisation and impairment of acquired
intangibles down 22 per cent to 74 1 pence
We have continued to manage the cost base
actively to mintmise the effects of the recession
on the Group's results and dunng the year
headcount was reduced by a further 3,400 and
220 branches were closed We have also taken
firm achon to exit those businesses where we
do not see future value creation potential

We continue to place a high degree of emphasis
on cash generation and, in particular, drnving
improvements in working capital This 1s
reflected in a strong free cash flow performance
of £660 million (2009 £851 millon} Qur net
debt position at 31 July 2010 improved by

£613 milion to £346 millon
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Revenue

£13.2bn
—9%

Further, | am pleased to report that Wolseley
extts the financial year In a strong position N
terms of its balance sheet, its assets and its
people That strength 15 1 no small part due to
the penod of crihcal seli-examination we have
undergone as a business this year The resulting
strategy crafted by our new Chief Executive,

lan Maakins and his team, endorsed by the Trading profit
Board, 1s already beanng frut and has put

us 1IN a much stronger position o weather the £450
remainder of the recession and look forward m
to the future with great optimism

lan got to gnps with the business very quickly Net debt

He spent time reviewing the management
structure and the future planning required to
take the Company forward He has dnve ang
energy and a passion for operational excellence
and delivery Its through his leadership that |
see a new confidence in our people The Board
18 fully supportive of lan's approach of focusing
future growth on those Wolseley businesses
where we have built sufficient scale, leading
market posittons and an excellent product
offenng He has also introduced greater ngour
in how we dnve performance irmprovement and
the execution of strategy at the business unit
level, which will serve us well In the future

This approach 1s set out by lan in his review
onpages4tob

Redomicile to Switzerdand

In September, we announced a proposal 1o
change the corporate structure of the Group
This will create a new holding company which
15 UK-listed, incorporated in Jersey with its tax
residence In Switzerand | want to emphasise
that this proposal will not make any substantive
change to corporate governance or to any
existing investor protection measures, nor

will it have any adverse tax wnplications

for shareholders It does not change Wolseley's
business strategy, or the day-to-day conduct of
our businesses, including in the UK In addition,
the tax position of the UK businesses will reman
unchanged

£346m
—4£613m




Durectors' report - Business review [ ]
Directors' report — Corporate governance

However, the proposed move 1s intended to
provide a more stable tax regime for our
intemational business and the Board feels
strongly that it would be delinquent in its duty to
shareholders If it ignored the strong busmess
case for redomiciing and thereby keeping the
Group’s effective tax rate competitve As | wnte,
I am conscious of the new coalition Government's
publicly stated desre to simplify UK tax law as
it applies to multinational corpeorations such as
Wolselay, and naturally the Board will keep this
under review

Govemance

As we do each year, the Board reviewed its
effectiveness and the overall strength of the
govemance and controls framework of the
Company !t took the opportunity to streamiine
and venfy some of the Company's palicies
and procedures and to refocus its time and
aftention on matenal strategic and operational
improvements designed to further improve the
efficiency of decision-making

Dividend
The Board understands the importance of the
dwidend to investors and we have announced

our Intention to resume paying a dmdend dunng
the 2011 financial year

Board changes

In March, Steve Webster stepped down as
Chief Financial Officer (CFQO) and John Martn
was appaointed by the Board as his successor
in Apnl John brngs a wealth of operationat
expenence from Travelex Group and Hays plc
and is already showing himself as a highly
capable CFO | am confident his expenence
waill be of great benefit to Wolseley

Raob Marchbank, Chief Executive Officer,
Europe, left the Company in March following the
reorganisation of our European businesses

Financiad statements
Other information

I would like to take this opportunity to wish both
Steve and Rob well and thank them for their
significant contribution to the success of the
Company

As previously announced, Jm Murray, Non
Executive Director and former Chairman of the
Audit Committee will retire from the Board on
30 September | wish him well in hus retirement

Now | come to my own retirement | do this wath
great sadness because it has been a prvilege to
be associated with this very special Company
However, after nearly 13 years on the Board,
ncluding sight as Charrman, and now with

a new Executive team in place with a clear
strategy to deliver future profitable growth,

it seems right to hand over to someone else

| do so knowing that my successor, Gareth Dawig,
was an outstanding CEQ of some 14 years'
standing at impenal Tobacco plc, 15 well
respected in the City and has a strong track
record of creating value

Wolseley today 1s now a very different Company
to the one | first chared, and 1s well placed to
continue to enjoy an exciting and profitable
future | wish everyone at the Company the very
best and thank you all for your support dunng
the last eight years as your Chairman

Finally | would, of course, lke to pay tnbute

to Wolseley's 47,000 people who work In

25 countnes around the world As a service
business we are wholly dependent on therr
skills and 1magination to service our customers
every day

John Whyb
Charrman
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Chief Executive’s review

Our objective is to maximise shareholder value through
delivering profitable growth in our chosen markets.

Graphic removed

Operations, processes and people

A year ago | cutlined In this review what | felt
were the inherent strangths of the Wolseley
business | had just joined During the past

12 months, | have undertaken a thorough
evaluation of our operations and processes
Everything | have seen has reinforced my view
that this 1S essentially a great business with a
fundamentally scund business model Wa have
strong market leading positions in our core
markets The qualty of our front ine people and
therr dedication to our customers Is Impressive
We have bullt significant businesses over time
and in many geographtes, which have good
records of serving our customers well, backed
by strong relationships with key vendors,
talented people and an efficient operating
model These factors should enable us to
leverage our scale and expertise to generate
organic growth in the future It 1s also testament
to the strength of the business model that

over many years gross margins have remained
broadly consistent, even durning the recent
deep recession

Business strategy

Between July 2009 and March 2010 the
Company's Executive Committee developed
an cperating framework to deliver sustainable
and prafitable growth {see diagram oppaosite)
Qur approach 1s based on a top down resource
allocation process, to allow us to choose which
businesses will give us the best returns in the
long term In addition, we have also developed
bottom up detalled business unit strategies to
make sure we invest In the nght projects and
plans to deliver our future growth at a local level
To assist this | have dismantled the divisional
structure around North America and Europe so
that we have greater visibility of the underlying

04 Wolseley plc
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performance of local businesses New monthly
reporting processes and regular business
reviews with country management teams
ensure that all of us are focused on the

nght prionties

Our cbjective for each business unit strategy

15 to grow profitably faster than our competition
Cur business is local in the sense that the
majenty of our 1 million customers travel less
than 20 miles to reach a branch Qur aim is
therefore to gain a greater share of our existing
customers' business In every branch and to
gan new customers by prowiding them wath

the best local customer service, delivered by
the best branch staff in the industry and by
partnering with the key vendors in the industry
Underpinning this we want to operate a low cost
efficient operating model, which ensures we are
competitive and can attract favourable terms
from our vendors

Wae have now completed the top down resource
allocation process, so we are clear which
business units we want to dnve for faster growth
—n short, those where we believe we can win,
versus the competiion We're now buillding and
executing the Individual business unit strategies
and three year plans | beheve that the progress
we have made this year, which you can read
about on pages 6 to 9, represents a decent
start and there 1s stll much to be done

Overview of performance

Dunng the year Wolselsy expenenced a
gradual statylisation inits markets The repar,
maintenance and improvement (*RMI")
segment has held up better than the new
construction markets and many of our
customers have changed ther focus to the

BMI markets However, the new construction
markets reman weak, especially in the

US, and commercial markets in particular
remain depressed This relative stabilisation

of our markets led to a decent second half
performance and a return to modest like-for-lke
growth in the final quarter We also focused on
protecting gross margins and carefully managing
the cost base Revenue of £13,203 milhon was
9 per cent below last year, though the decline
was restricted to 6 per cent on a like-for-like
basis The gross margin at 277 per cent was
consistent with last year and we continue to
focus on Improving customer and product mix

Change in hke-for-like
revenue

-6.0%

271.7%

Trading margin

3.4%

Operating cash flow

£705m




Directors’ report — Business review
Directors' report — Corporate governance

Financial statements

Other information
Trading profit of £450 milhon was £3 milkon for sale) gave nse to an exceptional loss of
ahead of last year, despite the revenue decline £57 milion in the penod which has been
and was achieved as the result of the mproved recorded as an exceptional tem Since the
cost base Operating costs Iin the year excluding  year end we have also disposed of Brandon
excephional tems were reduced by £353 milion Hire in the UK
{or 10 per cent}
Dunng the year we continued to manage the Summary
balance sheet conservatively Cash was tghtly 2010 has been a challenging year for Wolseley,
controlled, but not at the expense of damaging  egpecially given the prevaiing market conditions,
customer service, and capital expenditure was against which we can benchmark our future
reduced to £84 millon (2009 £157 millon) performance Good progress was made
We continue to place a great deal of emphasis on customer service, vendor management,
on dnving good cash generation, with a improving the development of our people and
particular focus on working capital discipline drving a more efficient operating platform
Operating cash flow continued to be strong at By stepping up the intensity with which we
£705 milion As a result net debt, at 31 July manage the performance of the businesses,
2010 was reduced to £346 million compared especially the ones with strong growth potential
with £959 mulllion at 31 July 2008 We are now and those which generate synergies, we are
placing & much greater emphasis on dnving well placed to dehver profitable growth and
across-the-year improvements and we am to ultimately create sustainable shareholder value
deliver better month-an-month cash flow Qur shareholders, employees, customers and
performance in the year ahead vendors have given strong support to Wolseley
. ) this year and | thank them for ther trust, patience
Restructuring and disposals and loyatty We have started to deliver on our
plans for the business and we have much to do,
e ek Ty 2010 oG B conot e bt
lower the cost base and incurred exceptional ; :rpkgt 2 on cﬁtlgni G evenn inese volatie
restructunng costs of £81 milhon Buring the
year we disposed of Wolseley’s activities in .
Ireland, the Czech, Belgian and Slovakian
plumbing and heating businesses, Frnosol \\M
{a small Swiss refrigerant distnbution business)
and the Public Works business in France
In the vear ended 31 July 2010 these an Meakins
businesses generated revenues of £95 milion Group Chief Executve
and £7 milkon of trading losses The businesses
disposed in the year {and businesses held
» See pages 6-7
Value Creation model for furher dtats on
2y's resource
»» See pages 6-9 allocation strategy
in March, we introduced a
value creation modet which » See pages B-9
combines top down resource for further detals on
allocaticn with bottom up dmang operational
business unit strategies performance
This 15 outhned in more detal
in the following pages
Graphic removed
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Value creation » Strategy

We believe that a combination of targeted future
capital allocation to those businesses capable

of generating the highest retum on investment

and a greater emphasis on improved operational
performance at the business unit level will underpin
the Group’s drive for long-term value creation.

Resource allocation

As part of the rescurce allocation
review, the Group's business units
were evaluated according to the
following four cntena:

» Market charactenstics

An assessment of the size and
attractiveness of the market in which a
business unit operates was made, as well
as an evaluation of the potential for future
growth i that market This included
examining the potential profit pool
avallable to constituent companies and
the degree of cyclicality of the market

» Strategic position

The market share of each business unit
was evaluated and an assessment of the
potential growth opportunity was made,
as well as the scale of the business

» Performance

A review of the track record of each
business unit's performance over the last
four years was undertaken, including an
assessment of the performance of the
management team, against key financial
and operational performance metncs
including return on capital employed,
gross margin, cash performance and
strength of customer relationships

» Synergies

An assessment was made of the
synergies that exist with each
business unit and cthers in the
Group, eg distnbution and ¢ross
seling opportunities

These four factors were then
compared to obtain a clear
classification for each business
unit in the Group as follows:

06 Wolseley plc
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Growth engine

Invest to create profitable growth
Business units which currently generate

or have the potential to generate the
greatest retum oninvestment over the
medium te longer term Typically they

are large businesses with a strong financial
performance and a leading market postion
with clear growth potential

Our strategy will be to continue to drive
operaticnal improvemnents in these
businesses while pnontising Ivestment
In growlh through predominantly organic
expansion and, where appropnate,
bolt-on acquisitions

Synergy driver

Take advantage of growth engine
synergies

These business units play an important
rola In supporting and complementing
the growth engine businesses through
sgnificant economIc synergies

Qur strategy will be to continue to dnve
operational mprovernents in thase
businessaes while maximising the synergy
bensfits with the growth engine businesses

Performance builder

Drive performance, then reclassify or exit
These business units are currently
underperforming and/or have insufficient
scale with no clear econormic synergies with
the growth engine businesses

Cur strategy will be to dnve operational
improvements across these businesses with
rnited investment In expansicnary capital in
the near term Some of these businesses
will have the potential to be reclassified as
synergy drivers or growth engnes over tima
However, It a satisfactory level of return 1s
not achieved we will exit thasa businesses

Graphic removed

« Seepages
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Directors report — Business review
Directors' report — Corporate govemance
Financial statements

Other information

Business unit
strategies

In addition to top down resource allocation,
we have also given a high degree of focus
to bottom up detaled business unit
strategies and three year plans to ensure
that we invest in the nght projects and
plans to deliver profitable growth

Cur objective 1s to deliver the best
operational performance from each
business unit and we strongly believe that
Graphic removed alt of the business units currently in the
Group have the opportunity to improve
their operating performance A detaled
monthly performance review process has
been established 1o ensure that every
business unit 1s accountable

As part of the detalled performance review
process, targets in areas such as financial
performance, training and development

of people, vendor management and
operational efficiency are identrfied

Actions are agreed and business unit
management are held accountable for

their delivery |In addition, the performance
review process faciitates the shanng of
best prachce across the Group which we
believe, executed propery, 1s a source of
competitive advantage for Wolselsy

Graphic removed
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Value creation » Operational performance

We will focus on each business unit’s strategy to

Graphtc removed

4 Seepage 5
for Value Creation model

ensure that we are our customers’ distributor of choice,
in our chosen markets, by delivering the best customer
service and best vendor management through the best

people in our industry.

Within business units

Graphic removed

Gain share of existing
customers and gain
new customers

Our objective for each
business unit strategy 1s to
grow profitably faster than
our competiion Qur business
18 local In the sense that the
majority of cur 1 million
customers travel less than

20 miles to reach a branch
Qur objective therefore in
every branchisto gan a
greater share of our existing
customers’ business and
also gain new customers

by providing the best local
customer service, delivered
by the best branch staff in the
industry Underpinning this 1s
a low cost, efficient operating
model which ensures we are
competitive and can attract
favourable terms from our
vendors

Our strategy 1s 1o dnve
improvements \n customer
serwice, branch staff and
vendor relaticnships in every
business This 1s explained
In more detal opposite and
some examples are outhned
in the Qur business section
on pages 14 to 25
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Best customer service

Wolseley 18 a relationship businass
and thera s a strong correlation in
successful businesses between
satisfied custorers and profitable
growth Cur focus 1s to meet cur
customers’ nesds better than the
competition ensuring we defiver the
nght products at the nght price, at the
nght time, on every occasion they do
business with us Dunng the year we
have implemented regular customer
surveys i all of our business units
50 we ¢an take actions to mprove
our performance

Graphic removed
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Preferred vendor

Our vendors need distnbutors who
can give them access to many smaller
customers cost effectively We want
to buid strong relationships with

our vendors, grow our business with
them and benafit from improved
terms and rebates

Best branch staff

In crder to achisve tha best custormer
service in the ndustry we need to have
the nght talent wath relevant training,
skills and competence In our locations
Within each of the business units there
1s a strong focus on ensunng that
training prograrmmes and tools are
avallable for our people so they are
equipped to give the best service In
the industry
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Most efficient
operating model

Our objective 1s to operate
the lowest cost, most efficient
operating mode! in our Industry
This means ensunng that

our distnbution activibies
benefit from natonal scale
and an efficient supply chain
either through a network of
distnbution centres or direct
delivenes from our vendors
to the customer

Beat the
best local
competitor

Directors’ report — Business review
Directors’ report — Corporate govenance
Financial statements

Other information

Cross-business unit

There are two pnimary areas where cross-
business unit synergies can be achieved by
being part of the Group

* Management synergies such as sharing best
practice management development and
corporate finance

* Operating synergies in the areas of joint
sourcing, own lale! development and the
shanng of costs and infrastructure

The performance review process 1s highlighting
the key areas of best practice where we believe
we can achieve the greatest benefits across
the Group Some examples of current projects
are outlined in the review of our operations

on pages 14 to 25

Graphic removed

Graphic removed
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Key performance indicators (“KPIs”)

The Group has used the following indicators of performance to

assess its development against its strategy and financial objectives

during the year ended 31 July 2010. The Group gives prominence
to different indicators as the economic environment changes.

Key performance indicator and definition

Review of performance

Performance table

Change in like-for-like
revenue

The total Increase or decrease m
revenue for the year, excluding the
effect of currency exchange, sales
days, new acquisitrons, branch
openings or closures N the year, and
the mcremental effect of acquistions,
branch openings and branch closures
In the prior year The Group expscts
changes in ike-for-like revenue in each
of its markets to exceed that achieved
by the remainder of the market

Group like-for-like revenue reduced by
6 0 per cent durng the year, compared
to a reduction of 13 9 per centin the
previous year

Graphic removed

Gross margin

The ratio of gross profit excluding
exceptonal items to revenue

Gross margin was maintaned at

277 per cent as a result of a continued
focus on improving customer service
and product mix despite competitive
market conditions

Graphic removed

Trading margin

The ratio of trading profit to revenue
Qver the cycle, the Group seeks to
achieve a growth In trading profit
higher than the growth In revenue as
aresult of Increasing the efficlency
of operations and benesfiting from

its economies of scale and strong
market position

Group trading margin overall ncreased
from 31 per cent to 3 4 per cent, as the
reduchon in gross profit was offset by
the disposal of loss-making businesses
and a reduced cost base

Graphic removed
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Key performance indicator and definition

Review of performance

Directors report - Business review
Directors’ report — Corporate governance
Financial statements

Other information

Performance table

Average cash-to-cash days
Cash-to-cash days are defined as the

Average cash-to-cash days reduced
by three days between 2009 and 2010
as the Group continued to Improve its

average number of days from payment
for tems of inventory to receipt of cash
from customers

The Group uses the 12 month average
number of cash-to-cash days excluding
factored recevables to monitor working
capital efficiency throughout the year

working capital efficiency

Graphic removed

Customer service

Different types of customer have different requirements, or different prionties in ranking their requirements Each business unit
needs fo understand what these requirements are and how its service performance 1s perceived relative to the competition
Dunng the year, management has implemented regular customer surveys in all business units to establish a base point from

whuch progress can be measured

Other performance indicators
Employees, health and safety

The safety of Wolseley’s people 1s regarded as paramount
and lost tme incident rates are monrtored closely in each
of the major businesses

The Group's health and safety performance 1s monitored
using three standard KPIls medrcal injury frequency, lost
workdays and vehicle collision frequency More information
1S provided in the Corporate responsibility report on page 36

As customer relationships are mantaned by branch staff or
sales people, staff turnover rates are an important ndicator
and are monitored regulary

There are numerous programmes arourd the Group to
develop the skills of branch staff, etther in specific product
knowledge or more generally in sales or management
These are monitored by logging traming programmes
attended and, where appropnate, the level of certrification
achieved, which often forms a part of the performance
objectives on which individual bonuses are awarded

Supply chain

There are numerous supply chain nihatives around the
Group Some can be monitored by financial measures, such
as annualsed savings in transportation costs, and others by
non-financial measures, such as Inventory turns and, for the
Group’'s network of distribution centres, the fill rate achieved,
which 1s the proporticn of erders that can be fulfilled from
mventory on hand at the time of the order

Own label

Most of the Group's businesses aim to Increase the
proportion of sales of own label products, as these
generally command higher marging lnibatves are tatlored
to the opportunities and circumstances of each business

Environment

The Group's approach to environmental management
15 set out In the Corporate responsibility report on pages
37 and 38

Wolseley plc 11
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Our business

Wolseley is the largest specialist trade distributor
of plumbing and heating products to professional
contractors and a leading supplier of building
materials to the professional market.

Graphic removed

Graphic removed
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Activities

Woalseley 1s the world's largest specialist trade
distnibutor of heating angd plumbing products to
professional contractors and a leading supplier
of huilding matenals to the professional market
The Group 1s an international business,
operating 4,118 branches mn 25 countries

and employing 47,000 people

The Group’s busingss falls into six geographic
segments — the United States, Canada,
United Kingdom, France, Nordic region and
Central and Eastern Europe

The business model 1s smple Products are
sourced directly from supplers or through
agents and delivered to distribution centres and
branches Sales to customers can be made
over the counter at our branches, through
supply contracts which are managed centrally,
or through orders that can be placed with
branches, into call centres, or over the internet
Products arg ether delvered directly to cur
customers or collected from our branches

Customers

The Group has a wide range of customers
operating in different industry sectors, ranging
from indmdual plumbers or builders through to
national contractor chaing and house bulders,
and including large publicly quoted businesses
Wolseley's primary custorner focus 1s on
professional contractors, who constituted 87 per
cent of the Group’s customer base during the
year ended 31 July 2010 These contractors
work with households, governments, property
developers and industrial companies in the
repair and maintenance of properties and in the
construction of new homes, offices and buldings

Suppliers

The Group has over 100,000 trade suppliers
Key suppliers are manufacturers with market-
leading brands, usually operating internationally
but focused on the needs of local markets
The Group works In partnership with key
supplers, offering market breadth and
penetration and collaborating on promotions
and ncentive programmes The Group
continues to work with low-cost, high-quality
manufacturers to supply our own label
product ranges




Products

The Group supplies plumbing and heating
products and bulding matenals The range

of products 1s broad and the Group continually
seeks opportunities to widen that chaice for its

customers The main product categones are
set out in the following st

Plumbing, heating and air conditioning

* Baths, showers and accessories
* Sanitaryware

* Brassware

® Bathroom furmiture

¢ Boilers and burners

¢ Radiators and valves

* Hot water cylinders and flues

* Control equipment

» Ventlation and ar conchhoning eguipment
* Heat pumps and solar equipment
* Plastic pipes and fittings

= Copper tubing and fitings

Building matertals

s |nsulation

* Plaster and plasterboard

* Roofing matenals

+ Bricks, blocks and aggregates
* Tiles and floorng

* Timber products

* Doors and frames

® Class

* Beams, trusses and frames
* Hardware and tools

* Cement

Civils/waterworks, industnal
and commerciat

* Drainage pipes, asscclated supplies
and covers

* Underground pressure pipes

* Small bore pressure pipes and fitings

* Carbon and stainless steel pipes, valves
and fithings

« Other pipes, valves and fitings

Electnical

= Cables and cabling accessones
* Controls and switchgear

+ Winng accessones

= Lighting

+ Data networking supplies

* Cable management

Services

* Management of customer inventory
* |nstallation of cabinets and fireplaces
* Pipe fabncation and valve actuation
* Bathroom layout and design

* Maintenance contracts

Directors’ report — Business review
Drrectors report — Corporate governance

Financial statements
Cther informatien

Markets

The markets for plumbing and heating and
bullding matenals are directly exposed to
macrogconomic cycles At the start of the
financial year to 31 July 2010, most of the
countries in which the Group operates were In
a recesston with nsing unemployment, restricted
avallability of commercial and consumer credit,
fallng property prices and low consumer
confidence in the second half, ike-for-like sales
tn most terntories stopped falling although
revenue for the full financial year I1s below last
year’s level

Although our markets are cyclical, the business
model 15 strong and 1t 1s underpinned by
demographic trends towards ageing populations
in smaller households and by the ageing

of housing stocks The construction industry
can be expected to continue to account for a
significant proportion of economic activity

While the Group does not operate In a regulated
industry, the performance of the Group can be
affected by government legislation Changes

to bullding codes and regulations, particularly
those promoting energy efficiency and reducing
environmental harm, can provide new sources
of growth but can also make certan product
lines obsalete

Qur six geographic segments sell to customers
rangng across the RMI, commercial, iIndustnal
and construction sectors

Competition

The distribution of plumbing and heating and
buiding matenials 1s fundamentally a local
business, in that the majority of our customers
are serviced by a local branch a short distance
from their workplace Itis also highly fragmented,
with no dominant, and few large, players
Wolseley aims to have a leading market position
in the temtories in which 1t operates, with strong
local and national brands

Using public and private sources of information,
the management of each of our business units
estimates its position m the markets it addresses
relative to its competitors These estimates are
presented for our larger business unis in each
geagraphtc segment

Wolseley plc 13
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USA

9

Business units

Graphic removed

1,241 16,900

Branches Employees

Graphic remaoved

Business profile

Ferguson is the market leading distnbutor of
plumbing supplies N the US and has a history of
very strong financial performance The blended
branches business sells to customers that
range across the residential, commercial and
industnal sectors for new construction, reparr,
maintenance and impravement projects

In smaller markets that may not justify a
stand-alone presence for heating, ventilation
and ar conditioning (‘HVAC"} and Waterworks,
a blended locatton can also provide the

products and services for these customers

Graphic removed

The business 18 served by 11 distnbution centres
across the country which enables purchasing
benefits from scale and next day product
avallability which 1s a competitive advantage

The Waterworks business distnbutes pipes,
valves, hydrants, fittings and meters to
residential, commercial and municipal
contractors This Is a strong business which has
been diversifying s customer base into prnvate
water companies and treatment plants, and
expanding its product range Nto new areas
such as metering techneclogies

The HVAC business distributes heating,

Graphtec removed

ventilation, air conditioning and refrigeration
equipment to specialist contractors, predominantly
in the residential and commercial sectors
Vendors have a strong position in this market,
and branded dealerships of high-end equipment
are the most important parts of the business
The majority of revenues are generated by
providing parts for reparr and replacement

The Industnal PVF/HDPE business distributes
pipes, valves and fitings, inclucing specialist
high-density polyethylene pipes, to industnal
customers, pnmanly in the ol and gas, mining
and power generation secitors Although project
dnven, the business has histoncally performed
strongly over the cycle

The other smaller business units specialise I

+ off-site integrated supply with centrahsed
procurement, storercom management, and
commodity management, (“integrated
services”),

14 Wolseley plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2010

* the supply and fabncation of fire protection
systems (“Fire and Fabncaton®},

* maintenance, repar and operations services
{*MRO",

» websites and platforms to support ebusiness
(“B2C"}, and




* master distnibution of plumbing, heating
and pipe supplies to retailers and small
wholesaters ("Master distribution”)

These business units have synergies with the
distnbution and branch network of the larger
units, and frequently share suppliers

Performance

Ferguson's revenue was 11 per cent below last
year though the ike-for-ike revenue decline was
restricted to 9 per cent Dunng the fourth
quarter of the year the business generated
like-for-like revenue growth for the first ime in
three years as New Residential and RMI markets
continued to recover Qverall, the recovery In
new construction has been modest as factors
such as high unemployment, low availability of
credit, high levels of unsold housing nventory
and the recent expiry of tax incentives have
continued to hold back demand The less
volatle RMI segment has been relatively more
resillient The Commercial sector, in particular,
remained weak throughout the year and
continued to be restncted by the lack of
avallability of finance for construction projects
Industnal markets were generally better

With the exception of Fire and Fabrication,
which 15 particularly exposed to the commaercial
market, we believe all Ferguson businesses
continued to gain market share during the year

The gross margin was slightly lower than the
pror year, with pricing pressure largely mitgated
by a focus on improvemnents in the business mix
towards showrooms, counter sales and own
label products Trading profit of £239 milion was
£70 mdlion below last year with the gross profit
shortfall partly offset by the improved cost base
Seceond half profit was ahead of last year

The trading profit benefited from a much lower
bad debt expense than tast year and this was
£10 million to £15 milkon lower than the
expected rate in a normal year

In the Blended Branches business, while
Commercial revenue was weak, New
Residential and RMI markets showed modest
improvements in the period The Industrial PVF,
Waterworks and HVAC businesses made goed
progress In the pericd HVAC, in particular,
performed strongly benefiting from a change

In strategy to fewer key vendors, improved
product avalability to dnve servce and a

lower cost base The USA trading margin

was 4 6 per cent (2009 5 3 per cent)

Directors' report — Business réview
Directors’ report — Corporate govermnance
Financial statements

Other information

Graphic remaved

100 per cent fill1s the key to Ferguson's
attitude change

Ferguson has recently developed a goal

of providing 100 per cent avallability of the
company’s top 2,000 Stock Keeping Units
(“8KUs") by Distnibution Centre service area

As a first step, Ferguson collaborated with
ther suppliers 1o ensure proper planning and
production for the 5,400 unique SKUSs that
make up the regional top 2,000 SKUs

Next, they ncreased inventory and visibility
of the top 2,000 SKUs in thair distribution
centres to mprove fill rates Top 2,000

SKUs information 1s incorporated into daily
purchasing reports for immediate wisibility
and action

In branches, the feedback has been positive
from customers and branches have
generated improved sales

Graphic removed
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Business units

220

Graphic removed

Graphic removed

Graphic removed

16 Wolseley plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2010

2,600

Employees

Business profile

Canada has product groups and customer
segments similar to our US businesses and
they are managed together For example,
rubatives such as the development of private
label products are applied across both regions
Canada also bengfits from [T platforms
developed In the US for managing customer
discounts and transactional ecommerce

As In the US, the blended branches manly
supply plumiing equipment to residential and
commercial coniractors and DIY customers,
and have histoncally delivered a strang
performance A significant competitive
advantage 1s the regional distnbution centre,
where throughput has grown from C$15 million
In 2007 to almast C$160 million in 2010

The Waterworks business serves residential,
commercial and municipal contractors

Its market leadership 1s based on strong
refaticnships both with national and continental
vendors, and with a base of core contractors

The customers of the HVAC/R business are 60
per cent residential contractars and 40 per cent
commercial contractors Currently the customer
base 1s waighted towards small and medum-
sized contractors and to counter sales, and
there are growth opportunities particularly

with property managers and public sector
customers

The PVF/HDPE business derives three-quarters
of its revenue from industnal customers

and a quarter from municipal contractors
Growth apportunities are in gaining share of
existing and new customers through technically
knowledgeable sales staff and on time n

full delivery

Graphic removed




Performance

In Canada, revenue for the year was 3 per cent

behind last year in constant cumency though the
business returned to growth in the second half
The growth trends were broadly similar across
the business with some benefit from tax
incentives and government stimulus spending

The Canadian economy emerged from the
downturn strongly and interest rates have now
begun to nse Trading profit of £41 rmilion was
£9 milion ahead of the pnor year, of which

£4 millon relates to currency translation and
the remainder relates to an improvement in the
gross margin and a recduction in the cost base
Blended Branches, Waterworks and HVAC all
generated growth dunng the year and improved
market share The business s expanding

its Regional Distribution Centre to Increase
capacity and improve custormer delivery times
and fill rates The trading margin was higher

at 54 per cent (2009 4 6 per cent)

Directors” repon - Business review
Directors’ report — Gorporate govemance
Financlal statements

Other information

Graphic removed

Wolseley Canada makes 1t easier for their
customers to do business 24/7

In January Wolseley Canada relaunched
Its ecommerce site “Wolseley Express”,
which i1s based on the existing Ferguson
ecommerce platform developed in the
USA With additional features and a new
look, the platform was launched mn a bid
to boost Canada's online sales The new
platform has been designed to enbance
and complement existing customer
relationships, whilst offering an alternatve
way to do business with the company

Wolseley Express gives customers 24/7
access to pncing Information and product
availability, their account information,
order history and status of both online
and offine orders, and of course the
ability to place orders

Doing more business online means
Wolseley Canada can make gains in
efficiency, provide a lower cost to serve
and fulfil orders, offer extended hours for
customer service and increase growth
opportunities across the business

Graphic removed
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Business units
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Graphuc remaved

1,486 10,100

Employees

Business profile

Plumb and Parts Center, the country's leading
plumbing and heating brand, represents 43 per
cent of the UK's revenues, and has delvered a
resiient financial performance in & tough trading
environment The business also prowdes
spares and replacements for much of the
product range and efficiencles anse from
purchasing volumes, from opportunities to
cross-sell and to share sites, and from use of
the distnbution centre network More than half
of its revenue comes from the RMI market

Budd Center 1s a national builders’ merchant,
supplying contractors with bricks and blocks,
aggregates and cement, insulation and
plasterboard, tmber, tools, and drainage
matenals There are also speciahist timber,
ronmongery and landscape branches

About half its revenue comes from the new
build market {30 per cent residential, 20 per
cent non-residential) The business has been
restructured over the last two vears by closing
underperforming branches and reducing
fixed costs

Pipe and Climate Centers distnbute pipes,
valves, fittings, ar conditioring and refngeration
products The business has a sound track
record of profitability, though volumes are
particularly dependent on non-residental

new buld projects

During the year the Insh business was disposed
of, and Brandon Hire, the toal hire business
was sold after the end of the financial year, in
Ine with the Group's strategy of focusing on
businesses with significant scale and leading
market positions

The smaller business units mclude

* Encon, a specialist distnbutor of insulation,
drywall, ceilings, partiioning and fire
protection products,

= Electnc Center, which distnibutes ighting,
cabling, controls, switchgear and winng
accessones,

* Bathstore, a retall bathroom specialist, whose
product range includes baths, basins,
showers, toilets, taps and bathroom furniture,




* BCG, which supplies kitchens, bathrooms and
associated fithings to other bulders merchants
and to retailers,

* Drain Center, a specialist in above-ground
dranage, and

* Willam Witson, which distnbutes plumbing
and heating products in Scotland

Performance

Revenue in the UK dechned by 9 per cent in the
year, due to the impact of disposals and branch
closures with Iike-for-like revenue broadly flat
The business generated 5 per cent like-for-like
revenue growth in the second half as markets
started to recover We expect the overall
recovery to remain weak as actwvity levels are
held back by fragile consumer confidence, and
low avallability of credit In addition, public sector
actmty, which represents around 25 per cent

of cur UK revenue, may come under pressure
later in the year, following the UK Government’s
spending review In October 2010 We have seen
a continuation of the gradual recovery in the
more reslient RMI sectar, which represents
about 85 per cent of our revenue Commercial
and industnal markets have remained relatively
weak throughout the year

Trading profit in the year of £91 milhon was

£236 million ahead of the pnor year, of which

£23 million arose from the exit of the business
mnlreland A significant decline in gross

marging as a result of compstitive pressure

was substantally offset by reductions in the
cost base arising from restructuring actions
taken in the pnor year Plumb and Parts Center
performed well and ahead of the pror year In
addition, Build Center, which was loss making in
2009, strongly improved its trading performance
and returned to profit in the year benefiting from
a lower cost base The UK businesses
maintaned market share in the year The trading
margin for the UK was higher at 3 7 per cent
{2009 20 per cent}

Graphic removed

Reaping the benefits of branch
manager training

A major traiming programme designed

and delivered in-house for branch managers
in the UK has supported a business
turmmaround in the last 12 months

The Addvance Branch Manager traning
programme has trained more than 1,880
branch managers who have participated

In over 146 framing sessions since January
2009 Plumb and Parts Genter completed
the roli-out of the programme in
September 2010

The pregramme 1S designed to give branch
managers the knowledge and skills they
need to add increased value to the business
Addvance focuses on six key modules
Employee and Customer Care, Performance
Management, Recruitment and Selection,
Operational Management, Trading and
Metrics and Developing Sales

Directors’ report - Business review [ ]
Directors report — Corporate govemances
Financial statements

COther information
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Business units
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6,600

Employees

Business profile

Stark is the leading Danish distnbutor of heavy
bullding matenals, tools, hardware, tmber and
panels Local bulding contractors generate
more than half its revenue, and approximately
a quarter comes from do-tt-yourself {"DIY") and
retall consumers The market ts ditven more
by RMI than new construction Stark’s market
leadership and its efficiencies of scale have
historically delivered strong results

Beyer 1s a leading Swed:sh distnbutor of bulding
matenals About half its revenue comes from
local bulding contractors and another third

from retall consumers As the Swedish market
15 very fragmented, Beyjer's reach is valuable

to supplters, and by maintaining efficiencies of
scale and working capital management it has
delivered good results over time

Starkki 1s a Finrish chain of builders' merchants
with a business modef based on large stores
and well-traned specialist staff While local
bullding contractors are the largest single
customer segment, consumers and small retail
stores generate nearly 50 per cent of its revenue
Starkk has a strong record of profitability based
on efficiency and a flexible cost base

Siivan 15 a DIY and retail chain in Denmark

Its specialist DIY market, focused on tools

and hardware, 15 driven by BMI Silvan has
histoncally performed strongly on the basis of
good local coverage, high gross margins and
efficient supply chain management The majority
of ts sourcing overlaps with other businesses in
the Nordic region ard therefore the business
delivers significant economies of scale

Neumann Bygg 1s a Norwegian distributor
of bullding matenals

Graphic removed




Performance

In the Nordic region revenue declined by 8 per
cent In constant currency although the second
half performance was stronger The market

In Denmark, our largest revenue generator,
continued to decline as a result of low levels
of construction activity and poor consumear
confidence In contrast our bulding matenals
businesses in Sweden, Finland and Norway
all generated like-for-hke revenue growth with
Sweden performing strongest Overall, the
business held market share in Denmark

and mproved markst share in Sweden,
Fintand and Norway

Trading profit in the year of £100 milion was

£4 milion higher than last year The results
ncluded a one-off credit of £4 milien and the
busingss also benefited from a lower cost base
offsetting revenue decline and a shght reduction
n gross margins The trading margin was higher
at 5 0 per cent {2009 4 8 per cent)

Dtredo—rs’ report — Business review -
Directors’ raport — Corporate governance
Financial staterments

Other information
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Starkla makes rt simple

One of the branches at Starkk, the Nordic
region's Finnish chain of builders’ merchants,
came up with a simple concept to Improve
therr performance The downturn in the
market was having an impact on therr sales
as they were selling to fewer customers

than before Branch staff and management
decided to wark together to find a solution

to mprove ther perfermance through
increasing the valug of each sale per !
customer

The team focused on listening hard to the
customers developing a methodclogy to

find out what else they needed to complete
the project that they were working on

The intiative was very successful and the
branch managed to Increase the average
sale per customer by 30 per cent exceeding
therr onginal targets This approach 1s now
being used across all of the Starkk branches

Graphic removed
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business units

697

Branches
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8,300

Employees

Business profile

The bulding matenals dvision compnses Reseau
PPro, the number two integrated distributor of
bulding matenals in France, selling heavy bulding
matenals, roofing, msulation, timber and flooring,
and Panofrance, focused on tmber, panels and
ntenor design The businesses have efficiencies
in both sourcing and shared services

The mport and wooed solutions division includes
Softwood, the market leader in specialist sawn
and processed woods The structural wood
busmess denves the maonty of its revenue
from trusses and cther carpentry systems

In addition, the Group owns Cerland, a garden
furniture specialist

The plumbing, heating and pipes business
mostly trades through the national branch
network branded as Brossette B&iment

Its customer base 1s mainly small plumbing

and heating contractors, though it also services
some larger contractors and regional accounts,
and has imited consumer sales The other
business units are specialists in heating,
ventlaton and arr conditioning, electncals,
drains and industnal pipes

Duning the year the underperforming Public
Works business was disposed of

Graphic removed




Performance

Revenue in France declned by 11 per cent In
censtant currency The French economy

was late into recession, compared with other
European economtes Construction markets
continue to recover slowly with weak consumer
confidence also affecting RMI markets Like-for-
like revenue growth in the fourth quarter of the
year remained negative although the overall
trend continues to mprove As aresult ofa
sustaned focus on achieving a good mix of
customers and vendors, the business improved
its gross margin over the pnor year Trading
profit in the year of £30 million was £2 millon
lower than the pnor year and included a one-off
gain of £5 millon relating to the release of a bad
debt provision The trading margin was held at
15 per cent (2009 1 5 per cent)

Réseau Pro performed in ine with the

market with some improvement in its trading
performance The Import and Wood Sclutions
business benefited from commodity pnce
inflation, higher gross margins and productivity
improvements The Brossette plumbing and
heating business continues to marginally
underperform the market although the trend has
improved throughout the year The new
management team has focused on further
reductions in the cost base, removing
unnecessary management layers and improving
customer service levels through training and
better stock avalabiity Conseqguently, following
a poor first half performance the trend improved
in the second half

Graphic removed

Wolseley France on the front hine

Wolseley France reviewed the results from
customer surveys for each of ther dvisions
to identify areas where they need to focus

in order to further improve their customer
service performance These include product
avallability, respecting commitments such
as delvery tmes and frequency of sales
representative visis to customers

All three divisions have implemented
customer service programmes to engage
therr employees in achieving this objective
“Client plus”, for the plumbing and heating
dmsion “Le client Rol” {customer s king)
and “100 per cent client” for the bulding
matenals dmsion

Each of the programmes focuses on simple
behawviours, for example, the time 1t takes to
greet a customer or reducing the waiting time
at the counter All employees commit to
these and, In some cases sign a pledge
which 1s displayed in each branch location

Directors’ report — Business review
Directors” report - Corporate governance
Financial statements

Other information
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Business
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2,400

Employees

Business profile

The most profitable business in Central and
Eastern Europe ts in Switzerdand, where
Tobler 1s the leading distnbutor of heating

and ar concitioning and sanitaryware
Histonically it has delivered high trading margins
and generated strong cash flows During the
year Tobler ratonalised its distnbution network
by centralising five regional distnbution centres
into one national distribution centre Increased
market share will be achieved by continued
investment in ebusiness and extending

the geographical coverage of the current
branch network

The man brand in Austna 1s OAG, which
distnbutes a dversiffied product range (heating,
sanitaryware and pipes, valves and fittings
("PVF")} to a range of customer segments {local
plumbmng and heating contractors represent
about a third, industnal another third)

The man brand in the Netherlands 1s Wasco-
Kopex, a distributor of heating, plumbing and
ventilation equipment Boders and spares
account for about half of its revenue, and the
customer hase 15 weighted to larger regional
and natonal contractors

Manzardo in Italy distibutes plumbing, heating,
sanitary and ar conditioning products into a
highly fragmented market

Dunng the year the underperforming plumbing
and heating businesses in Belgium, the Czech
Republic and Slovakia were disposed of

Graphic removed




Performance

In Central and Eastern Europe revenue was

13 per cent lower than last year on a constant
currency basis, the decline ansing from the exit
of a number of underperforming businesses,
along with detencrating market conditions
The gross margin was well ahead of last year
and trading profit improved to £10 milhon
{2008 £nil), €4 milkon of which was the impact
of the disposal of the Belgian, Czech and
Slovakian plumbing and heating businesses
The remamnder was the result of restructunng
actions in the prior year

In Italy, we have closed seven loss-making
branches since the end of the year and further
restructunng will be undertaken to brnng the
business back to profitability

The Swiss plumbing and heating business made
good progress in the period

Graphic removed

Tobler dnives efficiencies

To improve effictency and to reduce the
level of inventory required, Tobler, our Swiss
plumbing and heating business, recently
rationalised its distnbution network by
centralising five regional distnbution centres
nto one national distnbution centre n
Daniken (North Switzerland)

Owing to Tobler's success and continued
growth over the last few years, the business’
logistics capabilities had reached their kit
The new distnbution centre will ensure that
the entire Tobler range of products can be
reliably supplied to customers or to ther
bulding site within 24 hours of receipt of

the order

As welt as reducing operating costs and
working capital, Tobler has the opporturity
to expand its product ranges and, more
importantly, improve service to its customers

Desrectors' report - Business review
Drrectors' eport - Corporate governance
Financial statements

Other information
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Financial review

The Group has responded to lower revenues arising from the
challenging market conditions by defending gross margins and
reducing costs to generate modest profit growth. Disciplined
management of working capital and capital investment led to
strong cash flow and deleveraging is now substantially complete.

Summary of results
2010 2009
fm £m
Revenue 13,203 14,441
Cost of sales {9,548) 10,436}
Gross profit 3,655 4,005
Operating expenses (3,205} (3.558)
Trading profit 450 447
Exceptonal items (332) 458)
Amortisation of acquired mtangibles (92) {105)
Imparrment of acquired intangibles (223) (490)
Net finance costs {77) (145)
Assoctate ~ share of after tax loss {13) (15}
Assoclate ~ impairment of mvestment (41) -
Loss before tax (328) (766)
Tax (expense)income (38} 34
Gan/{loss) from discontinued operations 26 {444
Loss attributable to equity shareholders (340) {1173)
Adjusted earnings per share 74.1p 85 6p
Basic loss per share (129.8)p {348 2)p
Gross margin 27 7% 277%
Trading margn 34% 31%

Revenue and trading profit

Group revenue of £13,203 milion (2009 £14,441 million)

was 10 per cent below last year on a constant currency
basis Despite continuing pressure, the Group's gross margin
was maintained at 277 per cent Operating expenses, before
exceptional tems, were reduced by £353 million (10 per cent}
pnncipally as a result of restructuning actions taken last year,
though the Group remains vigilant in the control of costs
given the uncertain economic outlook The lower cost base
compensgated for the reduction in revenue and trading profit
was slightly ahead at £450 milion {2009 £447 million)

Thus represents a trading margin of 3 4 per cent

(2009 31 per cent)
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Exceptional items

Exceptional charges of £332 million were incurred dunng
the year Over the fast two years the Group has undertaken
substantial restructunng mn order to restore and mamntan
profitabiity of the Group’s operations and to ensure that
the Group 1s well equipped to take advantage of improved
economic condiions when they anse Restructunng costs,
which predorminantly relate to redundancy and property
costs, amounted to £81 milkon in the pencd These costs
were Incurred on a range of restructunng mnitiatives across
all junsdictions

Software assets in the course of construction within the
Business Change Programme were impaired in the first

half of the year and these and other associated costs
amounted to £170 millon Losses on disposal of businesses
(and businesses held for sale) of £57 mullion were incurred,
the large majonty of which was generated on the disposal
of the Group’s businesses In Ireland




Graphic removed

John Martin Chief Financial Officer

The Group made addmicnal provisions in the year in relation
to the construction loans business of £24 milion as the
Group will now seek to accelerate 1ts exit from this business
Balance sheet assets employed in the business at the end
of the year amounted to £117 million, net of provisions

Thes included construction loans recevable of £80 miton
and foreclosed properties classified within “assets held for
sale” of £37 milion

Em
Redundancy costs 30
Cnerous lease provisions and asset
write-downs 51
Restructuring costs 81
Imparment of software assets under
construction and associated costs 170
Loss on disposal of businesses and
revaluations of disposal groups 57
Construction loan provisions 24
332

Amortisation and impairment of
acquired intangibles

Amortisation of £92 million represents the normmal

charge relating to the Group's acquired intangible assets

In accordance with accounting standards, the Group has,

In addihon, revtewed the carrying value of goodwill and

other acquired intangibles and concluded that an imparment
charge of £223 milion 1s appropnate £50 milion of this
charge relates to Brandon Hire, which was sold after the

end of the year, and a further £42 milion relates to Encon,
reflecting the continued difficult trading conditions in the UK
A £111 millon imparment charge has been made in relation
to France following the implementation of payment legislation
and continued challenging market conditions

£€m

Brandon Hire 50
Encon 42
France 11
Other 20
Imparrment of acquired intangibles 223
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 92
315
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Finance costs

Net finance charges in the year amounted te £77 million
(2008 £145 milior) The reduction reflects lower net debt
levets combined wath lower interest rates £16 mulion of
tha charge relates to unwind of discounts on pensions
and provisions

Associate

The Group retains a 44 per cent interest in Stock Building
Supply, a former subsidiary disposed of In 2009 The Group's
share of the after-tax losses of the business in the year
amounted to £13 millon In ight of the level of ongoing losses
generated by the business, the Group has concluded that its
investment is imparred and has wntten off the whole of the
carrying value of £41 milion The Group has no requirement
to fund any mnvestment in future

Tax

The Group incurred a tax charge on profit before exceptional )

items and acquired intangibles of £140 millon After adjusting
for tax and deferred tax credits in relaton to impairment and
exceptional tems, the net charge was reduced to £38 million

The effective tax rate on profits before exceptional tems
and acquired intangibles was 38 per cent However, after
adjusting for non-recumng tax tems and share option
charges, the underlying tax rate 1s calculated at 34 per cent

£m
Tax charge on profit before exceptional tems
and acquired mtangibles 140
Tax credit relating to exceptional tems 74
Tax credit relating to amortisation and
impairment of acquired intangibles (28)
Tax charge in the year 38
Discontinued operations

£26 millon credited to discontinued operatons was
generated from movermnents Iin tax, provisions and other tems
ansing from the disposal of Stock Bullding Supply in 2009
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Financial review continued

Eamings per share

Earnings Per Share {("EPS”) before exceptional tems and
the amortisation and imparment of acquired intangibles
amounted to 74 1 pence (2009 95 6 pence} The fall anses
because the weighted average number of shares in the
year reflects the full year impact of last year’s nghts 1ssue
and placing

Dividends
The Group suspended dividend payments in 2008 at the

Net debt

Reported net debt at 31 July 2010 was £346 million

(2009 £959 millon) After adjusting for the estmated impact
of year end working capital measures, receivables factoring
and borrowings funding the construction loans business,
adjusted net debt amounted to £1,195 millon compared

to £1,680 mithon last year

In due course, management will target the reduction of
average net debt throughout the year and we expect the
impact of year end working capital measures to dechne

onset of the econormic downturn in order to preserve cash 2010 2009
Substantial progress has been made towards the deleveraging £m fm
of the Group and the Board intends to resume dividend Reported net debt 346 959
payments m the 2011 financial year
495 400
Cash flow Estimated average net debt* 841 1,359
2010 2008  Recewvables factonng 274 168
Trad - 4;’; 42_: Construction loan financing 80 163
a
rading profi Adjusted net debt 1,195 1,690
Depreciation and amortisation
belore exceptionals 185 24 * Based on June and August
EBITDA 635 688 f e g
Liquidity
Exceptionals, losses on sale
and share options {(119) (330)  The Group mamntains sufficient borrowing headrcom to finance
all nvestment and capital expenditure for the following year,
Discontinued operations - (242)  with an additional margin for contingencies The matunty
Working capital and provision profile of the Group’s borrowings and committed undrawn
movements 189 1,084 facities at 31 July 2010 can be set out as follows
Capex (84) (157 Drawn cn all
facilties Undrawn Capacity
Proceeds of asset disposals 96 172 Matunty date £m £m £m
Operating cash flow less net Less than one year 226 100 326
capex [ay 1215 45 years 1 1,394 1,395
Net interest {51) (165) 2-3 years 56 188 244
Tax receved/(paid} 20 @7 3.4 years 34 832 866
Acquisitions and disposals, _ -
net of debt acquired (21 (33} 4-Syears 673 :j
FX and other tems (126) g AfterSyears 14 - 6
1,004 2,514 3,518
Caprtal raising 4 994 Am p
ounts drawn on
Decrease in net debt 613 1,510 uncommutted facilities (©8)
Opening net debt (959} (2469 Sommitted facilties at
Closing net debt (346) (959) 31 July 2010 3,420

The Group continued to generate strong cash flow dunng
the year Worlang capital management remained a key focus
across the Group and a modest mprovement was made In
average cash-tg-cash days, the most relevant KPI Capital
investment was tightly controlled and amounted to £84 mudlion
in the year It s expected that capital nvestment will return

to more normal levels in the year ahead, likely to be in the
range £150 million to £170 milion

The Group reclaimed tax in the year of £150 million against
which payments of £60 milion were made, leaving a net
receipt of £90 millon The Group expects to return to

a normal cash tax outflow in the year ahead

Overall, net debt was £613 mitlon lower at the end of the year
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The Group has operated In compliance with 1ts covenant
obligattons throughout the year

During the year the Group also mantained receivables
factaring faciities in the UK and France of which £274 milion
was utilised at 31 July 2010 (2009 £168 milion) These
facities are kept under review to ensure that they remamn

an attractive form of financing
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Pensions

The Group's net pension obligatons under IAS 19 at 31 July
2010 amounted to £432 milhon (2008 £341 million) with the
increase principally ansing as a result of the adoption of the
latest actuanal assumptions on mortality rates which have
effectively added two years to the Iife expectancy of a 65 year
old male Following the trienmial valuation of the UK defined
benefit schemes, the Group has agreed with the trustees of
the Group’s UK pension scheme to make additicnal cash
cantributions of £25 milklon per year in order to fund the

past service deficit

Operating lease commitments

As at 31 July 2010 the Group had total operating leases
commitments of £1,292 mifion (2009 1,329 millon} There

15 substantial capacity for revenue growth utiising the existing
infrastructure and management will remain cautious when
considenng new lease commitments in the foreseeable future

Other financial matters
Financial nsk management

The Group 18 exposed to nsks ansing from the intermational
nature of its operations and the financial instruments which
fund them These instruments include cash, lquid investments
and borrowings, and also items such as trade recevables
and trade payables which anse directly from operations

The Group also enters into denvative transactions - principally
interest rate swaps and forward foreign currency contracts —
to reduce uncertainty about the amount of future commuitted
or forecast cash flows The policies to manage these nsks
are set by the Treasury Committee and have been applied
consistently throughout the year It 1s Group policy not to
undertake trading in financial instruments or speculative
transactions

Capital structure

The Group's sources of funding currently compnse cash
flows generated by operations, equity contnbuted by
sharehotders, and borrowings from banks and other financial
institutions To assess whether the capital structure 1s
appropnate for current and forecast trading, the Group's
principal measure 1S the ratio of net debt, including factonng,
to EBITDA The Group ams to operate within the range
1010 2 0, consistent with an investment grade credit rabing

Foreign currency

The Group has significant overseas businesses whose
revenue 1s mamly denominated in the currencies of the
countries in which the operations are located Fhe Group
does not normally hedge profit translation exposure since
such hedges have only temporary effect

Most of the foreign currency earnings generated by the
Group’s overseas operations are reinvested N the business
to fund growth in those terntones The Group's policy 1s to
adjust the currencies n which its debt is denominated to
materally match the currencies in which its trading profits
are generated

Financial staternents
Other information

Interest rates

The Group manages rts exposure to changes m interest
rates by ensunng that at least 20 per cent of bank
borrowings required during the next two years are at
fixed rates The Group generally borrows at floating rates
of nterest, and then uses interest rate swaps to get the
desired rate profile

Other financial nsks

The nature of the Group's business exposes it to nsks which
are partly financial in nature Counterparty nsk is the nsk that
banks and other financial iInsttutions which are contractually
committed to make payments to the Group may fail to do so
Credit nsk 1s the nsk that customers who have made
purchases on credit may fall to pay in full Commodity nsk s
the nsk that, in order to satisfy its contractual commitments
to customers, the Group may have to purchase commodities
at unfavourable pnces The Group manages counterparty
risk by setting credit and settlement imits for a panel of
approved countarparties, which are approved by the Treasury
Committee and monitored regularly The management of
credit and commoedity nsk 1s considered to be the responsibility
of operational management, and the Group does not prescribe
a uniform risk management policy across the Group

Financial reporting

These financial statements have been prepared under IFRS
The Group's accounting policies set out on pages 7210 77
are broadly unchanged from those disclosed last year and
the minor changes made have not had a significant effect
on the Group's financial position or results of operations

Going concern

The Directors are confident, on the basis of current financial
projections and faciliies avallable, and after considenng
sensitivities, that the Company and the Group has sufficient
resources for its operational needs and will enable the Group
to remain in compliance with the financial covenants in its
bank facilities for at least the next 12 months Accordingly
the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis

N preparing the financial statements

\DJ\_MJ\JLAA.‘:L‘-—

John Martin
Chief Financial Officer
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Risk management

The Company continues to maintain and improve its
comprehensive risk management programme, which is
designed to ensure that significant and emerging risks
are identified, assessed and managed effectively.

Risk management processes

Dunng the year, the nsk management programme was
further strengthened through a revised process for reviewing
risk with the executive team and the appointment of a Group
Head of Risk Kay features of the Group's nsk management
framework include

* ownership of the programme by the Group Executive,
faciitated by the Group Company Secretary and General
Counsel with sponsorship from the Chief Financial Officer,

* a dedicated Group Head of Risk to tead and continuously
improve nsk management,

= a network of nsk directors across the Group’s businesses,

* a Group nsk management policy, reviewed annually,

* a six-monthly nsk assessment, action planring and
reporting cycle, including a review by senior management
and the Audit commuttee of key nsks and ther mrigation,

* a standard set of nsk categones and nsk definittons, which
are refined with each reporting cycle,

+ a standardised and automated nsk assessment and
reporting t0o!), Including standard risk assessment cnteria
and evaluation of “gross” and “net” nsks,

» consolidation of nsk assessments for each business at
Group level to identify organisation-wide impacts and
trends, and

* perodic reviews of operating companies’ nsk mitigatron
actions by the Group Head of Risk and Group Intermnal
Audit

However, many nsk factors remain beyond the direct control
of the Company and this programme can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance that key risks are
managed to an acceptable level
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Significant risks to the Company’s
performance

The nature of the industry in which we operate and our
chosen strategy inherently exposes the Company to a
number of nsks Vanous mitigation strategies are employed
to reduce these inherent nsks to an acceptable level

Listed within pages 31 to 33 are nsks which senior
management have identfied as the most significant, whrch
have action plans for therr mitigation and which are subject
to regular review The matenalisation of these nsks could
have a matenal adverse effect on the Group's results or
financial condition The Company faces many other risks
which, though important and still subject to regular review,
are not sted hers as they have been reduced through
mitigation or assessed as less significant These include
some nsks (such as those relating to international operations,
liquidity, credst exposures and product pnces}, which were
reported in last year’s Annual Report

The trend from 2009 indicates, in general terms, whether
there has been an Increase or decrease, or no changs, to the
Group's assessment of the nsks 12 months ago, taking into
account any mitigation plans
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HISE Trend fmm 2009 D_efm:tlcn Mitigation R
Market No change The Group's results depend onthe levels  Mitigation actions remain focused on
diti of actvity in the new construction and expense reductions, working capital,
con ons property repar and remodeling markets ~ margin and cash flow optinmisation, and the
These have decreased markedly over the  close monitoning of business performance
last three years and reman suppressed The Group’s businesses review all avalable
There continues 10 be a nsk that markets  indicators of activity — such as market
may fluctuate rapidly or expenence a statistics, economic forecasts, surveys and
second downturn Factors influencing competitor announcemeants — 1o assist in
this nsk include making decisions
= the general rate of GDP growth, Measures introduced 1n the last 12 months
s consumer confidence, inckide the completion of a Group
* the avalabiity of credit to finance resource allocation programme, a number
customer investment, of dedicated cost reduction and pricing
* mortgage and other interest rates, intiatives and reviews of aspects of
* the level of governmeant inttiatives the Company's property estate
. :gﬂsaltl::rl:.‘ ate economic aatity, All the Group’s businesses have active
« unemployment, and programmes, monitored from the
= demographic trends corporate centre, to reduce therr cost
base In line with expecled levals of sales,
These factors are out of the Group's to identify and exploit counter-cyclical
control and are difficult 1o forecast opportunites, and to dversify into the
sactors, particularly RM) and commercial
and industrial, that have provaed more
robust Programmes remain well managed
to improve cash flow and reduce debt
Businesses have also baen asked
to consider what steps they would take in
the event of a further economic downium
Competitive No change Current market conditions have further The Company believes high levels of
ncreased compettion dunng the penod customer servica play a fundarmental role
pressures and under review which, if not mingated, In maintaining competitive acdvantage
margin erosion could lead to downward pressure on During the year under review, the Group
sales prices and profit margins has launched a programma to improve
levals of customer service, Including
There 1s a significant risk that such improved monttonng of and response
competitive pressuras will continue and to customer feedback
could be exacerbated by factors such as
lavels of economic actvity, customer or The Group continues to broaden its
supplier consolidation, manufacturers offenng of private label products which
shipping directly to customers, other attract a higher margin and the product
changes in the route to market, and mix 18 subject to frequent review by each
changes In technology local business
A number of local intiatives have been
undertaken by Wolselay businesses in
tha last 12 months Examples nclude the
Inreduction of a major pncing programme
in France, a National Pncing Centre
in Canada to monitor margin approvals on
local sites, dedicated traning and review
of pnoing authonsations in the US, supply
chain enhancements across the UK
businesses and an increased focus on
long-term customer relationships In the
Nordic region
Cap'rtal Decrease A core element of the Company’s Followang completion of the resource
. strategy 15 a focus on organic growth allocation review the Company has
exPendm-lre with “balt on” acquisibions only where closely aligned s strateqic plans with
and retum on significant benefits and synergies the associated allocation of capitaf
investment are available The Company regularly reviews its capital

In ight of this strategy, the ability of the
Company’s management to control
organic capital expenditure, to accurately
judge the economic cycle and to dentify,
value and integrate any such acquisitions
can have a significant impact on the
retumn on investment cbtained by
Investors in the Company

expanditure policy which includes clearty
defined approval imits A new capital
application procedure was implemented
In August 2010 and existing business
acquisition and disposal policies will be
more ngorously moritored in the financial
year The Company also undertakes
post-implementation reviews
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Risk management continued

Definition

Wolseley's current bank faciities include
covenants that s net debt should not
exceed 3 5 times its annualsed earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation {*EBITDA”) and that EBITDA
should be at least four times net interest
A breach of our banking covenant coutd
result In a significant propartion of the
Group's botrowings becorming

payable immediately

There 1s a nsk that the Group right
have to take actions to reduce costs
or preserve ¢ash that it would not
otherwiseé have chosen to do, or that it
might not have the resources to exploit
opporturuties it would otherwise have
pursued

Mitigation

2009 saw the successful shara placing
and nghts 'ssue, and the signing of a
two-year forward start debt facility which
comas into effect in 2011 Along with the
extension of other facilities these two items
have significantly improved the Group's
financial flexibility, and in hght of the
decreased nisk, further mitigatin 1s not
planned beyond the current monitonng
actvity summarised below

The Group contnues to re-forecast its
future covenant positions on a monthly
basis, regularly updates its five-year
strategic plan to reflact changing market
conditions and prepares medium-terrn
financial forecasts and shorter term
budgets on the basis of this plan

Walselay's ability to provicde leadership
and products and services to customers
depends on retaining sufficiently
qualified, experienced and motivated
personnel

In order to Increase productmty, and
be able to take growth opportunities
when markets improve, Wolseley must
maintain the skills and expenence of its
existing management and continug to
develop the managers of the future

The currant difficult conditions
experienced in certain markets, and
the Group's response to them, could
Increase staff turnover and may
demotivate remaning staff

The Company continues to monitor

staff turnover, trends In open positions
and other metncs closely and has
increased the frequency of ds review

of, and communication wath, the most
talented individuals within the Group

A comprehensive succession planning
exercise has also been undertaken in the
last 12 months and further employment
engagement survays across the Group
are planned for the coming year In some
markets, new branch manager rewards
and compensation plans have been
implemented and the Cormpany 1s
reviewing its long-term incentive schemes

The Group continues to invest In
development programmes for senior
management, managers and other staff

Risk Trend from 2009
Financial Decrease
flexibility

People Increase
Systems and No change
infrastructure

capabilities

and resilience

The Group can only carry on business
as long as it has the people, the
information technology and the physical
infrastructure to do so The safe and
continued cperation of such systems
and infrastructure 1s threatenad by
natural and man-made perils and 1s
affected by the tevel of Invastmeant
available to improve them For example

* some of the Company's physical
assets are located in areas exposad

to natural catastrophe risks,

in rght of the current economic
environment, the Company has
decided to postpone the deployment
of its shared and upgraded technology
systems across the Group The Group
therefore remains reliant on a varety
of different technology systems

across the Group, some of which have
been operating for many years, and

to ophimise costs and supply chain
efficiency, some companies within

the Group have centralised their
distnbution network and are therefore
reliant on a reduced number of larger
distribution centres

The Company's exposure to the loss of
any indnadual phystcal location ts miigated
by virtue of the large number of locations,
customers and suppliers that it has

In many cases, the loss of ons site or
system can be compensated for by moving
operations to another nearby location

For certain sites and technology systems
where the nsk exposure 1S greater,
business continuity and disaster recovery
plans are mantaned and tested regularly
Thase are supplemented by specific
business interruption studies, such as
those undertaken in North Amenca in the
surmmer of 2010

Selected technology systems are also
supported by access to pre-prepared
“hot sites”, allowing rapid resumption
of transaction procaessing

The Company mantains a comprehensve
Insurance programme and purchases
additional property damage and business
interruption insurances for those parts

of the business which are particularty
exposed to natural catastrophs risks

A lirmited amount of insurance cover 1s
also purchased for technology risks
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Risk Trend from 2009 Dafinition Mitigation .
Governmental Increase The Group's operations are affected by The Group monitors regulatons across
. vanous statutes, regulations and laws its markets 1o ensure that the effects
regmahons in the countries and markets in which of changes are minimised and that
It operates In general, the amount of compliance with all applicable regulation
such regulation and the penalties for 15 continually sought
non-compliance continue to Increase
During the course of the year, a number
While the Group 15 not engaged in a of initiatives have been undertaken to
highly regulated industry, it 1s subject to respond to new or updated laws and
the laws governing businesses generally,  regulations These include, for instance,
including among others, laws relating the launch n August 2010 of an updated
to competition, intarnational trade, compliance programmea for the prevention
corruption and fraud, land usage, zoning,  of fraud, bnbery and corruption l1s
the environment, health and safety, expected that, ameng other regulation,
transportation, labour and employment it will meet the requirements of the UK
practices {including pensions), Bnbery Act, which 1s expected to come
data protection and payment terms into force in Apnl 2011 The Company
In addition, bullding codes or particular continued to deploy online competition
tax treatments may affect the products law training throughaout Wolseley's
Wolseley's customers are allowed to European operations
use and, consequently, changes in
these may affect the saleability of some
Wolseley products
Restructuring No change During the course of the year and All decisions about closing or divesting
. In response to the depressed levels businesses or exting market sectors
actions of activity in its markets, the Group are made on the basis of cost-benefit
continued its restructunng programme analyses Group management only
to reduce costs and preserve cash approves those clesures or disposals
This has involved divesting certain which are consistent with its overall view
businesses and other assets, closing on the direction of the Company's markets
branches, reducing headcount and and its longer tarm stratagic objectives
curtaiing oapital expenditure Each business reports monthly on the
! At the date of this report, the Group costs incurred, the benefits realised
believes that a large majonty of the to date and forecast to be realised in
restructuring actions needed to address the current and subsequent financial
current market conditions are complete year These reports are reviewed by
Howaver, the continued economic central management
uncertanty and the ability of s
businesses t¢ meet ther perfigrmance
targets are factors that may dnve further
restructunng over the coming months
and years
I
|
! Utigation No change The international nature of Wolseley's Wolseley's preferred approach Is to resolve

operations exposes It to the potential
for htrygation from third parties and
exposure 1s considered {o be greater

in the US than in Europe Litgaton

can anse In areas such as product
hability, workers’ compensation, generat
employer lability and envwonmental and
asbestos itigation

There 1s a nsk that the number of
claims made aganst the Company

may increase as a rasult of tha changes
in economic candtions, changes i
purchasing practices or other factors

Although the number of claims made
against the Company has increased
slightly during the year as an expected
consequence of the environment

in which i has operated, there has
been no matenal change in the level of
Iitigation in which the Group 15 involved

disputes directly with the party in question
In 2 spint of openness and co-operation
Liigation 1s generally regarded as a

last resort

In the case of claims related to exposure
to asbestos, Wolseley employs
independent professional adwvisers to
actuanally determine its potential gross
liability Wolseley has insurance which
sgnificantly exceeds the current estmated
liability refating to asbestos clams

Based on current estimates, no matenal
profit or cash flow impact 1s expecied to
anse n the foresesabls future Wolselay
has recogmsed a discounted bability in
respect of asbestos lisgation with an
equivalent insurance recevable shown in
other recevables reflecting the discounted
sum recoverable from insurers in respect
of this liability

For more information on the Company's
exposure to asbestos-related litigation,
see page 109

Further mformation of financial and related nsks can be found on page 29 under Gther financial matters
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Corporate responsibility

This year, the Company redefined its strategic
focus through the resource allocation process

and by driving strategy execution primarily through
its business units. Our Cormporate Responsibility
programme was also reviewed to ensure that

it still provided the right framework to support

our businesses’ improvement plans.

Renewed focus on people,
integrity and performance

Our Group remains decentralised, with accountability given

firmty to our ndvidual business units When we estabhshed
the Corporate Responsibility (“CR”) framework in 2008,

it was designed to be flexible to accommodate the different
pnornties that each business unit would have and the different
speeds at which they would be able to develop the vanous
elements of ther programmes In the two years since the
launch of the CR framework, the Group has changed
significantly in size and focus The continuing effects of the
economic downturn kept pressure on our businesses to
persevere with therr disciplined worlang capital management
and cost reduction programmes  Our financial results in
2009/10 show that they were effective n doing so This cost
pressure had an impact on the number and speed of
implementation of some of the CR-related programmes that
were planned a year age Despite these constraintg, we have
broadly met our targets for the year, principally because,
wherever possible, the activites in our CR programmes are
integrated into our business practices We also considered
whether the overall CR framework remained appropriate

for our businesses and concluded that it was robust enough
to remain in its current form

Wolseley’s framework for Corporate
Responsibility

The five key themes of Wolseley's CR strategy are set out
n the table opposite Alongside each theme, the table
summanses the minimum standard to which any member
of the Group must adhere It also identifies the aspirational
goals for each theme and explains therr prnncipal benefits
to our business In each case, our businesses have or will
have detaled programmes, targets and measures which
are aligned with therr own operational prionties and wath
the strategic objectives of the Group as a whole

Values

Dunng the year, following discussions with management
and employees around the Group, the Executive Committee
agreed a common set of values and behaviours appropnate
to all Wolseley employees that are central to our business
and to the way we do business Dunng the financial year
2010/11 we intend 1o engage all employees in these values,
which can be broadly categonsed into three common themes
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Integrity — we expect all our people to act with honesty and
integnty in everything they do

Performance — we are never satisfied with our current level
of performance and have a constant desire to improve

People — we value all our employees, therr development
1s iImportant to us and essential In mainkaing our
competitive strength

These values underpin our new Code of Conduct and ethics
programme, relaunched dunng the year, and the way we do
business generally

Risk management

An explanation of the Group's nsk management programme
1S 56t out on pages 30 to 33 Those nsks which might have
an impact on the key elements of our CR programme,

and consequently on our business, are discussed in

more detail in the relevant sections of this CR report

Govemnance

The Board has oversight of the Group's CR programme
and conducts an annual review of the programme and

its objectives The Executive Committee discusses the
programme in detall and decides on the degree of
emphasis that should be placed on each of the themes
Each busmess unit 1s then tasked with developing and
implementing CR plans that are integral to its operations so
that they are aligned with local objectives, market conditions
and avallable resources The Group Company Secretary
and General Counsel 1s responsible for the overall delvery
of the programme and regularly discusses progress with
business unit representatives

Wolsgley's commitment to responsible and reliable business
practices includes a broad-ranging internal audit programme
and the regular review of the effectiveness of internal controls
and of the surtatility of the policies and procedures that
apply throughout the Group The Board and members of

the Executive Committee also conduct an annual review

of the authorties delegated to senior members of staff

and the commitments that they may enter into on behalf

of the Company
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Key themes
Group minimum standard Group goal Benefits to our business
Health and Compliance wrth legal Proactwe safety culture, Protecting the health and safety of our
raquiremsnts, monitoring Group  recognised industry leader people and maintaning our physical assets
Salety and operating company Key helps us to preserve the integrity of our
performance indicators {*KPIs") operations, Improves efficiency and
» See page 36 strengthens customer service
Environment Compliance with legal Shanng and mforming Measuning our environmental performance
requirements, establish industry best practices in chosen areas will enable us to become
KPls to support business rmore efficient, reduce operational costs and
» Seepage 37 Improvement programmes reduce our impact on the environiment
People All employees are provided with A culture made up of high- Highly satisfied customers, engaged
required training, a high standard  performing, highly engaged stakeholders and motated employees
of management and with employees with a strong
development opportunities, and  customer service onentation
» See page 39 are rewarded competitively
Responsible Adherence to the Group Group Code of Conduct Conducting business responsibly and with
b Caode of Conduct and ethics complance integnty minimises nisks related to fraud and
business
pragrammes evidence corruption and strengthens our reputation
best practice Compliance programmes should further
» See page 39 strengthen internal controls
Commun'rty Participating in, or donating Public recogrution of Building closer relationships with the
t to, a number of community Wolseley's contribution communities In which we operate
engagemen projects and value helps us to promote cur business and its
objectives, attract new talent and gain a
greater understanding of our customers,
» See page 41 suppliers and employess
Progress against goals to date
Action Progress/Status
Governance
Development of Individual business units have worked on their own specific development plans, which
local CR plans are monitored regularly by local management

Environment

Development of Group
environment and
sustainability objectives

Consistent with the strategic realignment of the Group’s businesses, It was dectded
that it would be more effective for targets to be set at a regional or local level In order
1o ensure they are aligned with local business prnionties Accordingly, no new Group

targets have been set, though existing measures continue to be reported and reviewed

Responsible business/People

Refresh and relaunch
Group Code of Ethics
and supporting policies

Delvery of anti-fraud and anti-
corruption policies and training

to embed each element across the Group

A new Group-wide Ethics and Fraud Programme comprising a new Code of Conduct
and a new whustleblowing line (“Speak Up'") was developed and communicated by the
year end Onling tramning 1s being implemented

Anti-fraud and anti-corruption policies were updated, developed and completed
Company-specific online training was developed and 1s being implemented in order

2011 targets and priorities

Deadline

More detalled and consistent gathenng and reporting of environmental data Ongoing
All employees trained on the Code of Conduct End 2011
Relevant employees traned on ant-corruption policies End 2011
Risk assessments implemented on areas most vulnerable to fraud and corruption End 2011
Targets set in each geographic region for improvement in health and safety management and
achievemnent of those targets Ongoing
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Corporate responsibility continued

Health and safety

We will provide a safe and healthy working
environment and we will not compromise the
health and safety of any individual

Dunng the year, the work on improvement of health and
safety performance continued and the enhanced quality and
accuracy of reported data allowed each business to focus on
those areas where there was greatest need for improvement
The three KPls that are reported and reviewed consistently
across the Group remain the most appropnate {shown
below), whilst individual businesses use additional KPIs for
their specific improvement targets We have not provided

a companson with performance last year, as such a
companson would not be meaningful this has been ancther
year of significant change in the scope and size of our
Gompany, nvolving branch closures, redundancies and
reorganisations In addition, the disposal of Stock Building
Supply resulted in the retention of a minonty interest In that
business through a joint venture arrangement The figures for
that busmness have been excluded from this report However,
this year's data 1s more complete and accurate, with over

98 per cent of the Group's businesses by turnover now
providing data aganst which it will be possible to provids

a companson In next year's report

Our Group healtth and safety policy was re-1issued this year,
with a reinforcement of the Company’s commitment to
tmprove our management of health and safety In addition,
each business has its own health and safety programme
adapted to its particular needs and nsks We deeply regret
the sad loss of three of our colleagues in fatal accidents

In the workplace this year Each of these Incidents was
thoroughly investigated both internally and by the relevant
authonties We are now even mare determined to ensure
that all of our employees remain appropnately trained and
aware of occupational health and safety nsks and we will
take every possible measure to prevent similar tragedies
from happening in the future

In financial year 2010/11, we will continue to use our Group-
wide KPls as a bagis for mprovernent The leadership teams
of our businesses have been set Improvement targets which,
together with their continuing management programmes,
will be regularly monitored and reviewed

Graphic removed

FY 2010
Medical injury rate
Number of at-work injunes requinng medical
treatment per 100 employees 35
Lost workday rate
Number of workdays lost per 100 employees 628
Fleet collision rate
Number of third-party vehicle colisions per
100 vehicles 173
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Wolseley Canada - developing health and
safety imtiatives

Recent local legislation has defined a set of
occupational health and safety management system
requirements (OHSMS 18001} which provides
standardisation across each of the provinces of
Canada Following this process, Wolseley Canada
has now been identified as a leader in the Industry
through customer service and safety

Wolselsy Canada is in the process of introducing a nsk
management systemn designed to elminate hazards in
the workplace Dunng the year, it will continue to
pursue its aim of eliminating workplace injuries by
ensuring that the nsks associated with its unigue
business lines have the necessary control measures

In addition, the development of e-learning training
modules for Wolseley Canada employees will ensure
that appropnate traimng 15 avalable for everyone

Wolseley Canada's intiatives promote harmonisation,
gving full consideration to the need for uninterrupted
and efficient operations for all business fines, with the
ultimate goal of a nsk-free workplace




Environment

We will run efficient operations that minimise waste
and reduce any negative effect on our business
activities on the environment We will promote
sustainable development

Around the Group, our businesses have introduced
programmes that have helped us to reduce the impact of
our operations on the environment whilst improving efficiency
and saving costs Those programmes are integral to the way
we work In some of our markets there 1s iIncreasing demand
from our customers for products which are more energy-
efficient or otherwise contnbute to reducing the impact of
construction on the environment In many cases, we work
with our customers 16 identify the most sutable matenals

for ther projects

QOverall, the Group has reduced its environmental foetpnnt
this year (greenhouse gas emissions down by 5 per cent,
non-hazardous waste by 30 per cent and hazardous waste
by 14 per cent) compared with {ast year, although to a large
extent, reductions can be attnbuted to changes in the
business in the year, including a decrease in the size of

the portfolio and reduced distnibutton and sale of products

Greenhouse gas emissions (“tCOze emissions”)

The vast majortty of the Group's greenhouse gas emissions
denve from electnaity use at our faciliies {44 per cent) and
the transportation of our goods (30 per cent) Fuel use in
operations and the transportation of people account for a
smaller proportion of the total tonnes of COz-equivalent
emissions {13 per cent and 12 per cent respectively)

To help us 1o reduce our emissions, as well as reducing
fuel consumption, our businesses have continued to
develop vanous measures throughout the year, including
the introduction of, or mprovements to, environmental
management systems, resource efficiency plans, flest
management systems and fleet backhauling programmes
For example, Ferguson in the US has continued to replace
mefficient hghting with more efficient alternatives, which has
made a significant contnbution to reducing the Group's total
electncity use More information on these actmvties can be
found online at http//www.wolseley.com/corporate-
responsibility.aspx

Dwrectors' report - Businass rev;w_ |
Directors’ report — Corporate governance

Financal statements
Other information

As In previous years, tCOz2e emussions have been reported
In accordance wiath the pnnciples of the World Business
Council for Sustainable Development and the World
Resources Institute’s Greenhouse Gas Protocol (*GHG
Protocol”) The GHG Protocol categonses emissions

as follows

s Scope 1 - Direct emissions.
These are emussions for which businesses are directly
responsible

* Scope 2 - Electricity Indirect emissions
These are emissions from the electncity that a company
buys to use In its equipment or operations

= Scope 3 - Other Indirect emissions.
These are emissions from activities that are relevant to
a company, but not wathin its direct contral For example,
transport in vehicles not owned by the company

Wolseley reports on its Scope 1 and 2 emissions, as
defined in the GHG Protocol However, given the nature of
our operations and the degree of control we exercise over
certain actvities, we will am to report on the emissions
from third-party provided transportation, as well as from
our employees’ business travel Accordingly, these Scope 3
emissions, together with our Scope 1 and 2 emissions, are
included in the data reported below Approximately

65 per cent of the emissions data provided 1s denved,

or partly denved, from estimates

FY 2010 FY 2009
emissions emissions

Source (tCOze) {ICOze)
Bectncty use 360,069 393,930
Fuel use operations? 104,623 118,270
Fuel use transportation of goods 245468 246,518
Business travel vehicles 96,567 87,647
Business travel ar and rail 5,215 8,189
Refngerant leakage 490 1,594
Total? 812,767 856,148
Emissions per £m of revenue 61.7 593

1 Greenhouse gas emissions are reported as tonneas of CO2 equivalent
[abbroviated as tCOze), based on the Global Warming Potential ("GWP™)
of each of the “basket of six™ greenhouse gases, as defined by the Kyoto
Protocol The GWP ot COz1s5 1 {1 tonna COz2 = 1 tonne CO2e) For other
greenhouse gases in the “basket of six” including refngerants, the GWP is
relative to CQO2 over a 100 year tme horizon {eg one tonne of the refngerant
R407C 1s equivalent to 1,526 tonnes of COz2 in terms of the potental chmate
change umpact)

2 ncludes suppled heat {distnct heating)

3 Based on a combmation of actual and estimated data
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Corporate responsibility continued

Waste management

The Group's businesses generate non-hazardous waste and,
10 a lesser extent, hazardous waste Afthough defimtions vary
from country 10 country, hazardous waste may Include tems
such as battenes and electronic egquipment, non-hazardous
waste typically ncludes matenals such as paper, plastic

and metal

Wolseley ams to minimise the waste generated by 1ts business
activities to reduce our environmental iImpact, at the same
tme as lowernng waste removal costs Whers possible we
re-use or recycle waste In FY2009/10, 7 per cent of
hazardous waste and 29 per cent of non-hazardous waste
was recycled The remaining waste was either sent to landfill
orincmnerated Of the total waste generated by the Group in
2010 {noted below), approximately 79 per cent 1S based on
actual data The remamning 21 per cent of data was partly or
entirely estmated We aim to increase the proportion of actuat
data reported next year in order to improve data qualty

Graphic removed

FY 2010 Fy 2009

FY 2010 Non- FY 2009 Non-

Hazardous hazardous Hazardous hazardous

Final waste waste waste waste waste

destmatons {tonnes) fionnes) {tonnes) flornes}

Incinerated 1,098 10,120 1,283 6,599

Landfilled 190 45,623 250 85,003

Recycled 96 23,266 777 22617

Total' 1,384 79,010 1610 114,219
Waste per £Em

of revenue 0.1 6.0 01 79

1 Based on a combination of actual and estimated data
Water use

The Group s not a large consumer of water, compared to
manufacturers The majonty of the Group’s water consumption
18 related to normal operaticnal and sanrtary water use

We have, however, continued to measure water consumption
throughout the Group in an effort to iImprove our water
efficiency This year, our reported water use has increased

by 2 per cent overall We believe that this increased figure

1s predominantly due to mproved data quality, rather than
other business-related factors The Group’s water 1s almost
exclusively supplied by local utility providers

FY 2010 FY 2009

{cubic {cubie

maetres) metres)

Total water consumption’ 1,001,515 984,102
Average water consumption

per employee 21.2 194

1 88 per cent of the figure1s based an estimated or partly estmated data
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Starkki - working towards lowering energy
requirements

Dunng the financial year, Starkk in Finland joined a pilot
group of compantes and organisations taking part in a
Finnish inthative which has been set up by think tank
“Demos Helsinki” and the Finrish Innovation Fund,
“Sitra” This new organisation, Peloton, aims over the
next three years 10 brnng together companies and
consumers In all matters relating to clmate changa
Finlard 1s currently one of the highest energy use
consumers In Europe and has significant carbon
ermissions per capita

Through this project, Peloton 1s helping this pilot group
to create products, services and social nnovations

that can systematically lower the energy requirements
of the Finnish lifestyle The aim of this pilot 1s for groups
to work together with representatives from different
companies, such as Starkki, to develop Innovative ideas
on how to lower the energy usage of ther customers,
fo offer sustainable solutions, and to introduce a new
way of thinking intc theirr own business models




People

We value our employees and their diversity. We will
develop our people and reward them fairly

As a result of poor market condrtions, the Group expenenced
another challenging year for its businesses Dunng the year
employes numbers remained stable at approxmately

47,000 as most of the major redundancy and restructuring
programmes were completed last year We have invested in a
number of development programmes this year These include
leadership development programmes in Europs, the US and
Scandinavia, and local training programmes, focusing on the
knowledge and skills needed to add increased value to the
busness An example of this 1s descnbed further on page 19

Onlime traming modules continue to be developed and used
across the Group At OAG in Austna an e-leaming concept
has been introduced, specifically to tran apprentices

In Canada, a new e-fearning site has been launched to
provide employeas with access to vendor product and
service training which develops employees’ expertise in

the products and services sold in order to enhance the
customer expenence

We have also improved our succession planning process,
which allowed for a ngorous and thorough review of our top
talent and future leaders The Executive Committee and the
Baoard now review the sentor leadership team and therr
successors twice per year

For a number of years we have been steadily improving

our employees’ awareness of the value of diversity to our
business and to our customers A particularty successful
example 1s that of Ferguson in the US, which has been
operating a diversity and inclusion programme since 2006
Relying on the commitment and accountability of the
Ferguson executive management team, a Diversity Council
has recently been established, compnsing a cross-section
of ndmduals from different business units This ensures that
lsadership and management teams are engaged in diversity
inhatives and that there 15 collaboration across department
Iines and business units Rasing awareness of diversity and
inclusion throughout Ferguson has been achieved though
employee resource groups, mentenng programmes, online
training and the ntroduction of a quarterty newsletter

In addition, Ferguson 1s continuing to develop its supplier
diversity programme to support the interests of suppliers
operated by minonty groups and to foster inclusive
emvironments to allow therr business partners to grow
strategically in a competitive market

In the financial year 2010/11, we will be continuing employee
engagement surveys in each business around the Group
The results will be indwidually assessed and will form the
basis of improvement programmes based on the most
important concerns and opportunities identfied by our
employees

Directors’ raport — Business review
Directors' report — Corporate governance
Financal statements

Other information

Responsible business

We are committed to observing both the spint and the
letter of the laws and regulations of all jJunisdictions

in which we operate and to comply with our Code

of Conduct. We expect our suppliers, contractors

and agents to adhere to our Code to adopt similar
ethical standards

Dunng the year, in consultation with representatives from our
main busiesses, we developed and introduced a rewised
Code of Conduct as part of an integrated ethics and anti-fraud
programme to maintamn the Group's high ethical standards
This has been improved so that it can be adopted by each
business for easier communication and wider employee
engagement Copies will be avalable at all our locations and
it can also be viewed at www.wolseley com In addion,
we developed a detaled programme to combat fraud and
corruption, which includes clear policy statements
emphasising our zero tolerance of any form of fraud, bribery
or corruption These policies are supported by a manual
contaning case studies relevant to our operations, standard
forms, guidelines and procedures to ensure that nsks can be
minimised  All employees will receive bnefings and training on
the Code of Conduct, those exposed to fraud and corruption
nsks will also take part in a bespoke online training programme
and will recewve face-to-face bnefings as needed in each
business Given the number of employees that this traning
will reach, we expect this to continue throughout financial
year 2010/11 The training programme on combating cormuption
will recognise the requirements of the new UK Bribery Act
2010, which 1s expected to come nto force In April 2011,

the prowvisions of which will have Group-wide effect

As part of the relaunch of our ethics programme,

we introduced a new confidental reporting system which
replaced our existing whistleblowing hotline The new system,
called “Speak Up!, was launched with a ccordinated
communication campaign to ensure that we could masamise
employees’ awareness of this secure facility for reporting any
concerns about the integnty of our business All reports that
are registered through Speak Up! (either by telephone or
online) are investigated and appropriate corrective action

1s taken The concerns raised, and the opportunities for
improvement, are discussed by the Audit Committee as

part of its regular review of suspected fraud and corruption

Timber sourcing

In July 2010, the European Parlament voted n favour of new
legislation which will make 1t a cnminal offence to place flegat
tmber or timber products into the market in an EU member
state Member states will have up to two years to implement
this legistation into their own laws, which will require
companies to exercise due dilgence when they purchase
timber from producer countnes The legislation 1s similar

to that already in force in the United States The Company
procures timber from a number of countnes around the
world and already has a well-established and robust
procedure in place with the airm of ensunng that the

timber 1s legal and from forests certified as well-managed
The system 1s designed to identify and track tmber from
ongin to the eventual customer and to ensure that there i1s
integnty at every stage of the chain of custody Despite these
safeguards, it remamns difficult to ensure that all tmber that 1s
purchased by the Company 1s from appropnate sources
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Corporate responsibility continued

This 1s becauss, In some cases, the timber passes through
a number of intermediate stages before 1t is transferred to us
It1s the Company's target to éiminate all “nsk tmber” from
its operations as soon as practicable and in any event in
advance of the date on which the new EU legislation comes
into force

Other product sourcing

As part of the Group's continuing commitment to responsible
business, a Group-wide product safety policy has been
developed and will be introduced this year This confirms
Wolseley's commitment to source and sell safe products,
comply with legislation concerning product safety and take
quick and decisive action to resolve any product safety
Issuses which may anse To that end, a Corrective Action
Procedure has been established to provide general

guidance on the standards and systems that each

business must hava in place

Wolseley UK introduced an Ethical Sourcing Policy in
February 2010, which details the minimum standards
expected from supphers and the commitrnents that have
been made to ensure that suppliers operate in accordance
with those standards Offering a range of over 400,000
product lines, supplied by over 10,000 suppliers, Wolseley
UK’s first commitment 1s to understand its supply chains,
many of which are complex and involve a number of stages
In the manufacture and distribution of the products and their
component parts In addition, these varnous stages in the
supply chain may take place in countnes that have significant
social and cultural differences, as well as different locat laws
and systems of govemance

Wolselay UK has recently embarked on a programme to
engage with a selected number of its suppliers which operate
in a number of countries and supply a range of products

The inmal phases of this programme have identified the
current levels of declared compliance and the most successful
methods of collecting and venfying the types of evidence that
is required i order to support these declarations The next
phases will seg further development of the verfication
process and a strategy to roll out the programme across

a wider supply base
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Wolseley France — timber certification obtained

This year, Silverwoed and Sinbpla again received PEFC
certification and in February 2010, Forest Stewardship
Council certification was also granted for most of ther
panel products In addition, in March 2010, all
Panofrance branches and those branches of Réseau
Pro which specialise In wood products, alsc obtained
PEFC certrfication

The Wolseley France commitment to purchase,
produce and sell products in a sustainable way was
further rewarded by a “Three Leaf” lahel {the highest
level), given by the “Le Commerce du Bais™ In France
in November 2009 As a result, Siverwood was
recognised this year by the main business magazine
in France as “Best Contributor to Sustamnable
Development”

These achigvernents in sustamable development aim
to give the business a competitive advantage over our
competiters and ensure that our customers are able
1o identify those products which are from sustainably
managed forests
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Community engagement

We will he a responsible member of the communtties
in which we work.

Despite the severe mpact of the recassion on our operations
and our employees, our businesses have continued to
support the communries in which they work, usually
through continuation of established partnerships with
chantable organisations and often through the outstanding
enthusiasm of iIndividuals Most of these efforts are
determined by individual businesses’ concerns for therr local
communities They are all motivated by the destre to make a
positive impact in areas that have a connection to our sector
and the products we supply For example, we am to reduce
homelessness and improve the quality of housing and the
built environment, and we aim to improve the social
conditions and the employability of people who may be at
nsk of being margnalised In addiion, this year, Wolseley plc
became a member of the group of construction sector
companies supporting the “Raising the Roof” campaign,
whose target 1s to raise £3 million to help fund a new centre
for neurosciences, as part of the major redevelopment
programme at Great Ormond Street children’s hospital

in London

Graphic removed

We also decided to partner with Impetus Trust

(www impetus.org.uk}, an organsation which targets small
charihes and social enterprises that help the economically
and socially disadvantaged to build therr capacity to achieve
therr aims of social mproverment Impetus has piongered an
effective model of chanty support therr tn-partite investment
model provides a distinctive combination of strategic funding,
hands-on support to management and specialist expertise
(often prowided by the private sector), which enables these
small chanties to grow rapidly and effectively over a penod
of three to five years In the UK, among the chanties

included in impetus’ portfolio, Walseley has contnbuted

to the objectives of Blue Sky Development & Regeneration,
whose pnncipal actvity 1S the employment of recently
released ex-offenders on six-rmonth contracts to fulfil
grounds maintenance contracts for local authorities

Blue Sky's mission 18 to help break the cycle of recffending
and to achieve long-term benefits for society, waith the

am of enabling ex-offenders 16 move successiully nto
long-term employment

It 1s 1important to our businesses to build and develop strong
relationships with ther local communities and to encourage
chamtable intiatives  As a result, many of our employees and
their businesses support a wide range of chanties and
community projects which are relevant to the countnes and
locations in which they operate, as well as chanties for
which our employees have a particular passion

©2007 Great Ormond Street Hospital Children's Chanty
Registered chanty no 235825 ©2009 Raising the Roof

Finandial statements
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Ferguson and Chnistopher Newport University

Ferguson’s relattonship wath this University, which 1s
based in the same city as ts corporate office In
Newpaort News, Virginia, began in 2004, with an
investment in the Ferguson Center for the Arts The
partnership was expanded in 2007 when Ferguson
began supporting the Center for Service and Learning
and Social Entrepreneurship The Center provides
lessons to students in leadership, cvic responsibility
and character development gained through community
engagement Dunng 2010, two new projects offered by
the Center were funded by Ferguson Youth Services
Survey and Ferguson Fellowship Funding The Youth
Services Survey will resuit in a website that wilt connect
ciizens to all youth support systems in the community
The Youth Service inhiative will alse provide action plans
for ncreased future student involvement in the Newport
News community The Ferguson Fellowship will fund up
to 15 “Ferguson Fellows” - students who will plan and
implement socially Innovative projects dunng 2010,
resulting in inttiatives that will have practical applicahons
to produce sustainable benefits for partner orgarusations
locally, nationally or globally

More information about our CR programme, including
further case studies, statistics and examples of

our practices, awards and community engagement

can be found on the Wolseley plc website at http://
www.wolseley com/corporate-responsibility.aspx
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Board of Directors

Graphic removed Graphic removed Graphic removed
John W Whybrow lan K Meakins John W Martin
Charman Group Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
Appointment Appointment Appointment
Appainted tc the Board on 1 August 1897 and Appointed to the Board on 13 July 2009 Apponted to the Board on 1 Apnl 2010
became Charman on 13 December 2002 Expenence Experience

Expenence

Mr Whybrow was a non executive director

of DSG International plc from June 2003 until
April 2010 and Chairman of GSR ple from
March 2004 unti May 2007 He was President
and Chief Executive Officer of Prilips Lighting
Holding BV basged in the Netherlands, until
2001 and Executive Vice President, Philips
Electronics from 1998 unbl March 2002

when he retumed tothe UK Age 63

Committee membership
Chairman of Nommnations Committee and
member of Disclosure Committes

External appointments
Chairman of Patworth Cottage Nursing Horme
Director of AZ Electronic Matenals

Mr Meakins was, until Apnl 2009, Chief
Executive of Travelex Holdings Ltd, the
intemabonal foraign exchange and payments
busness Previously he was Chief Executive
Officer of Allarce UniChern ple unitil its merger
with Boats in July 2006 and pnor to that,
between 2000 and 2004, was President,
European Major Markets and Global Supply
for Bnageo ple, spending over 12 years with
that company i a vanety of Internatona
management positions Age 54

Committee membership

Chairmman of the Executve Gommities
and member of Treasury and Disclosure
Committees

External appointments

Director of the Impetus Trust

Nen executive director of Centnca ple
fwith effect from 1 October 2010)

Graphic remaoved
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Andrew J Duff
Non Executive Director

Appointment
Appointed 1o the Board on 1 July 2004

Experience

Mr Duff spent 16 years at BP plc working

n Eurcpe, the USA, Far East and Afnca in
marketing, strategy and oil trading He joined
National Power in 1998, becorming Chief
Exscutive of s successor company, npower,
1 2003 wntl stepping down from this position
N 2009 Age 51

Committee membership
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Nominations Commitlee

Extermnal appointments
Charman of AWE npower plc Chaimman of
Severn Trent Ple and Severn Trent Water Ltd

Member of the CBI President’s cornmittes and
the CBI Cimate Change board A fellow of the
Energy Insttute
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Alain Le Goff
Non Executive Director

Appointment
Appointed to the Board on 1 Septermber 2009

Expensnce

Mr Le Goff retired as Executiva Vice President,
Supply of Recltt Benckiser Group plc in March
2008, a position he had heid for 10 years

He joined Benckisar in 1986 as industnal director
in France before moving to Germany in 1992
later becoming global logistics dvector Age 58

Committee membershlp
Member of the Remuneration and Nominations
Committees

External appointments

Non executiva director of Coty Inc , a US
based leader in fragrances and of the hotding
company of the Birds Eve Igle Group a UK
based leader in frozen food

Wr Martin, & chartered accountant, joined the
Company in February 2010 He was previously
a partner at Alchemy Partners and prior to

that was Ghief Financial Officer with Travelex
Holdings Ltd and Hays Pic, the business
senices group Mr Martin started his career at
Arthur Andersen betors joining The Stationery
Cffice Group on its privatisation, where he was
Group Controller Age 44

Committee membership

Chairrnan of the Disckosure and Treasury
Committees and a member of the Exscutive
Committee

External appointments
Member of the Adwisory Board
of Alchemy Partners
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James | K Murray
Non Executive Director

Appointment

Apponted to the Board on 12 Apnl 2062
Mr Murray wall retire from the Board on
30 September 2010

Experience

MrMurray a chartered accountant, was a non
executive director of UK Coal PL.C and was also
Finance Director of Land Secunties PLC from
1991 until fus retirement in 2001 Age 64

Committee membership
Member of the Audit and Nominations
Committess

External appointments
Chaurrman of Trustees of the Land Secunties
Pension Fund
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Frank W Roach
Chief Executive Officer,
North Amenca

Appointment
Appaonted to the Board on 16 December 2005

Experience

Mr Roach 1s responsible for all the North
Amencan businesses He first joined Fearguson
Enterprises Inc in 1976 and has since held a
number of business roles In 2005, Mr Roach
was appointed as Senior Vice President of
the Wolseley North Amenca management
{eamn playing a key part in further developing
and expanding the Group's North Arnancan
businasses Age 59

Committee membership
Member of the Exacutve Committee

External appointments
None

Gareth Davis
Non Executve Director

Appointment
Appointed to the Board on 1 July 2003

Experience

Senor Independent Diactor, Mr Davis, spent
38 years in the tobacco industry and was
Ghiet Executive of Impenal Tobacco Group ple
from its incorporation in 1996 untl May 2010
Age 60

Committee membership
Member of the Aucit, Remuneration and
Normnations Comemittees

External appointments

Became a non executive director of DS Smith
Pic, the international packaging manufacturer
and office products wholesaler, in June 2010
and Chaimman of Willam Hill PLC in September
2010
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Nigel M Stein
Non Executive Director

Appointment
Apponted to the Board on 1 December 2003

Experience

Mr Stein, a chartered accountant, has been
a chrector of GKN plc for the last rine years,
nbially as Finance Dwector and, smce 2007,
as Chief Executive, Automotive Pror (o
that, he held senior financial positions with
GKN, Lard Security Systems and Hestar
Dupie Limited  Age 54

Committee membership
Member of the Audit, Remuneration and
Nominabions Committees

External appointments

Chisf Executive, Autormotive of GKN plc
Director of the Society of Motor
Manufacturers and Traders and
amember of the Automotive Counal

Michael Wareing CMG
Non Executive Director

Appaintment
Appanted to the Board on 1 October 2009

Experience

Mr Wareing was International Chief Executve of
KPRG frorm 2005 until he retirad in Septarnber
2008, having previously been Chief Executive
of KPMG's EMEA region Thwoughout his
caregr he has been closely nvolved with &
number of chanbies/publc bodies, including his
appaintment n 2007 as the Pnme Minester's
Speaial Envoy for the reconstruction of
Southern Irag and Chalrman of the Basra
Developmeant Commssion. Aged 56
Committee membership

Chatrman of the Audit Commuttee and member
of tha Treasury and Nominations Committees

Externzal appointments

Board member of Business i the
Community and Chairman of Business
n the Community Intermational

Dwectors' report — Business review
Directors’ roport — Corporate govamance [

Fnancial statements
Gther information

Graphic removed

Richard Shoylekov
Group Company Secretary
and General Counsel

Appointment
Appointad in Novermber 2007

Responsibilities

Mr Shoylekov, a sclicitor, has responsibility
for the Group's governance, legal affars nsk
management and comorate responstbiity
Age 45

Committee membership

Secretary to the Board and all Committees
of the Board

Mamber of the Drsclosure and Executve
Committees

External appointments
None
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Corporate govemance report

ncluding the report of the Audit Commitiee

Compliance with the Combined Code

The Board 1s commutted to the highest standards of
corporate governance It recognises that it 1s accountable
to the Company's shareholders for good governance,

to facilitate efficient and effective managerment n order

to deliver shareholder valus over the long term, within
appropnately established nsk parameters

At the date of this report, the pnncipal governance rules
applying to UK companies listed on the London Stock
Exchange are contaned in the Combined Code on
Corporate Governance (the “Code”), as adopted by

the Financial Reporting Council {the “FRC") in 2008

(www fre.org uk/corporate) In May 2010, followtng lengthy
review and consultation, the FRC published a new code, the
UK Corporate Governance Code (the "Governance Code”)
which will replace the Code for financial years beginning on
or after 29 June 2010 The FRC has stated that changes
have been made to help company boards to become more
effective and more accountable to shareholders This report,
including the report from the Audit Commuttee and the
Remuneration repart, descnbes how the Board appled the
pnnciples of good governancs, as contained n section 1 of
the Code, and seeks to demonstrate how those principles
have been applied during the year under review Where
applicable, the Company has already adopted principles
from the Governance Code

Board organisation and structure

Board composition, constitution and independence

As at 31 July 2010, the Beoard of Directors was made up

of 10 members consisting of the Chairman, three Executive
Directors and six Non Executive Directors  During the year,
two new Non Executive Directors were appointed to the Board
Alain Le Goff was appointed with effect from 1 Septembaer
2008 and Michael Wareing with effect from 1 October 2009
In addition, Robert Marchbank stepped down from the Board
on 1 March 2010 and Stephen Webster stepped down on
31 March 2010 and was replaced by John Martin who was
appointed to the Board as Chief Financial Officer on 1 Apnl
2010 As noted on page 3, Mr Whybrow will step down from
the Board at the end of the Annual General Mesting to be
held on 20 January 2011 and will be succeeded by Mr Davis
as Charman Biographical detalls of each of the Directors
currently n office are shown on pages 42 to 43

The Board meets regularly dunng the year, as well as on an
ad hoc bagis as required by tme-critical business needs
The Board's primary role 1s to provide effective and
entreprenaunal leadership necessary to enable the Group's
business chjectives to be met and to review the overall
strategic development of the Group as awhole lthasa
farmal schedule of matters reserved to it for its decision,
while day-to-day operational decisions are managed by the
Executive Committee

Each cof the Non Executive Directors bnngs his own senor
level of expenence and expertise to the Board The Chairman
and the Non Executive Directors are each considered by the
Board to be independent of management and free of any
relationship which could matenally interfere with the exercise
of therr ndependent judgement The Company's policy
relating to the terms of appointment and the remuneration of
both the Executive and Non Executive Directors 1s detalled in
the Remuneration report
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Director re-election

It has been Board policy that Non Executive Directors are
normally apponted for an initial term of three years, which

15 then reviewed and extended for up to a further two
three-year periods s also Board policy that Non Executive
Dirgctors should not generally serve on the Board for more
than nine years and that, in cases where it Is proposed to
exceed this penod, the Director concerned will retire annually
and offer himself for re-election The Company's Articles of
Association also prowids that one-third of the Directars
should retire by rotation each year and that each Director will
seek re-election by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting at least once every three years Additionally, new
Directors are subject to election by shareholders at the first
opportunity after ther appontment

In accordance with a new provision Inciuded in the
Govermnance Code, all Directors will seek re-election at the
next Annual General Mesting Although this prowision of the
Govermance Code would not apply to the Company until the
financial year ending 31 July 2011, the Board has decided to
comply this year Mr Martin will seek election having been
apponted to the Board dunng the year

Division of responsibihities

The dishnct roles of Chairman and Group Chief Executive are
acknowledged, set out in wniting and agreed by the Board
The Chairman I1s responsible for the overall leadership and
governance of the Board and for ensuring that the Directors
have an understanding of the views of the Company’s major
shareholders The Group Chief Executive 1S responsible for
the effective leadership of the Company, management and
development of the Group and for delivery of the Company’s
agreed objectives and strateqy

Although permitted under the Code, the Chairman has
confirmed that he does not charr any other board of directors
in the FTSE 100 Gareth Dawvis ts the Company’s Senior
Independent Director His role ncludes being available for
approach or representation from investors and shareholders,
where communication through the Chairman or the Executive
DOrrectors may not seem appropnate The Nominations
Committee, as well as the Board as a whole, considers
succession planning and the appropnate composition

of the Board

Board effectiveness
Board procedures and responsibilities

A 12-month rolling programme of items for discussion by the
Board I1s prepared to ensure that all matters reserved and
other key 1ssues are considered at appropnate times

The Board met eight times during the year and Director
attendance 1s shown in the table on page 45 Together with
tha Group Chief Executive and the Group Company
Secretary, the Chairman ensures that the Board 1s kept
properly informed and 15 consulted on all matters reserved
to it In accordance wath the Code, Board papers and other
information are delivered at times to allow Directors to be
properly briefed in advance of meetings to ensure that

they are provided with sufficient resources to undertake
therr dutes




Meeting attendance (ehgibility) at Board meetings
held dunng the year ended 31 July 2010~

JWWhybrow  Chairman 88
G Davis Non Executve Director 8(8)
A J Duff Non Executve Director 8(8)
A Le Goff® tNon Executive Director 8(8)
R H Marchbank® Chief Executive, Europe 5(5)
J W Martin® Chietf Financial Officer 2(2)
| K Meakins Group Chief Executive 8(8)
J I K Murray Non Executive Director 8(8)
F W Roach Chief Executive, North Amenca 8(8)
N M Stein Non Executive Director 8(8)
M P Wareng?  Non Executive Director 7(7)
SPWebster®  Chief Financial Officer 6(6)

a Apponted to the Board with effect from 1 Septermber 2009
b Left the Company con 3 March 2010

¢ Apponted to the Board with effect from 1 April 2010

d Appointed to the Board with sifect from 1 October 2009

o Left the Company on 31 March 2010

The Board has established a procedure for Directors, f deemed
necessary, 1o take independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense In the furtherance of ther duties Thisis
in addition to the direct access that every Director has to the
Company Secretary, who Is charged with ensunng that Board
procedures are followed and that goed corporate govemance
and comphance 15 implemented throughout the Group

Following ther appointment, formal comprehensive and
talered induction is offered to all Directors This i1s
supplemented by meetings, as required, with major
shareholders, visits to key locations within the Group and
meetings with members of the Executive Committee and
other senior executives Meetings led by the Serior
Independent Director between the Non Executive Directors,
both with and without the presence of the Chairman and the
Group Chief Executive, are scheduled in the Board's annual
ttmetable The Board endeavours to hold at least two Board
mestings each year at operating locations to help all Board
members gain a deeper understanding of the business,
whilst also providing senior managers from across the Group
the opportunity to present to the Board and to meet the
Directors on more informal occasions

Board evaluation

Each of the Directors contnues to be considered by the
Board to be effective and to demonstrate commitment to

his respective role A recommendation from recent UK
governance reports, including the Walker Report and the
Govemnance Codle, was that external Board performance
evaluation be completed every three years Consistent

with this recommendation, a full evaluation of the Board's
own performance and that of the Indmvdual Directors was
completed with the assistance of an extemal faciitator dunng
2009 Using the results of that rewaw, this year the Board
further analysed s performance and effectiveness and
focused, in particular, on the areas for mprovement that had
been previously identified The changes to the composition of
the Board, improved succession planning and the increased
focus on customer service, have contnbuted to the
effectiveness of the Board's performance

Deractors' report - Business review

Diractors' report ~ Corporate govenance [l
Financial statements )

Other Information

Dunng 2010, the Audit and Remuneration Committess each
conducted a detaled assessment of ther own effectiveness,
ustng a set of questions which had been adapted to
address the activities and concerns of each Commuttee

The guestions were 1n the form of onfine surveys which
encouraged comment and qualtative evaluation of each
Committee's effectiveness, its individual members and the
contnbutions received from adwvisers The results of the
surveys formed the basis of discussion of areas for further
mprovement by each Committeg and actions were then
taken to change the scope, content and tming of items

to be considered by each Committee

The Board and its Committees will continue to cntically
review therr procedures, effectivenass and developrment
throughout the year ahead and the Chairman has reiterated
that should any Director have any concerns or observations
which they wish to raise, these should be notified to him
directly or to the Group Company Secretary

External directorships

As part of therr continuing development, the Exacutive
Directors are encouraged to take on not more than one
external non executive directorship on the board of a
non-competitor company, for which they may retain
payments receved in respect of such appointment, as the
Board believes there are signficant benefits to be achieved
for both the Company and the indwvidua! In order to avoid
any confict of interest, all appointments are subject to the
Board's approval The Board monrtors the extent of Directors'
other interests to ensure that the effectiveness of the Board
15 not compromised Details of such external appontments
are shown in the biographical details of the Direclors
currently in office on page 42 to 43

Succession planning

The Nommations Committese has specific responsibities
for succession planning to ensure that the Board has

the correct balance of indwviduals to discharge its duties
effectively In addiion, dunng the year, the Board as a whole
took a more active nvolvement in the development of the
Company's succession processes The senior leadership
team was reviewed 1n more depth, both indwvidually and as
awhole, and 1t was agreed that this more detaled process
would be completed annually Action plans have already
been mplemented following the identification of succession
weaknesses and clear communication plans are also in
place The overall am of this year’s review was o ensure
that employees with the required skills, expenence and
knowledge are being suitably developed for the future and
that adequate procedures are in place to encourage the
development of talent across the Group

Indemnities

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
the Company has always indemnified its Directors in respect
of habihttes incurred as a result of therr office to the maximum
extent permutted by law Qualifying third-party indemnity
provisions (as defined in section 234 of the Companies Act
2006) have been granted to alt Directors in office and to the
Group Company Secretary and these reman in force as at
the date of this report The Company has also arranged
appropnate insurance coverage n respect of legal action
against its Directors and Officers Neither the Company’s
indemnity nor insurance would prowide any coverage to the
extent that a Director 1s proved to have acted fraudulently

or dishonestly
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Corporate govemance report continued

Committees

The Committees of the Board consist of the Audit,
Remuneration, Nominations, Disclosure and Treasury
Committees In addition, executive and management matters
are addressed by the Executive Commitiee and other
committess to whom specific authonty has been delegated
to implement Board strategy or policy The formal terms of
reference for the Board Committees, which have been
approved by the Board and comply with the Code, are
availlable from the Group Company Secretary and can also
be found on the Company’s website at www wolseley com
Membership and activiies of the vanous Committees are
summansed below The Group Company Secretary and
General Counsel, whose appointment and removal 1s a
matter for the Board as a whole, acts as Secretary to all
Board Committees

Audit Committee

Members and attendance (eligibiity) at meetings
held during the year ended 31 July 2010

Chatrrman M P Wareing 33)
Members G Davis 4(4)
J 1 K Murray 44)
N M Sten 44

The Commuittee 1s made up of four Non Executive

Directors and the Beard considers that each member of
the Committes s Independent within the definiion set out

in the Code The Committee's membership is reviawed by
the Nominations Committee and by the Charr of the Audit
Committee at regular ntervals Members of the Committes
are appointed by the Board following recommendations by
the Nominations Committee All members of the Committee
receive appropriate incduction, which s in addition to the
nduction which all new Directors receive and includes an
overview of the business, Its financial dynamics and nsks
Members of the Committee may undertake ongoing training
as required Each member of the Committee bnngs relevant
experience at a senor executive level In addition to the
existing members of the Audit Commuttee, Mr Wareing, who
was International Chief Executive of KPMG until his retirement
in September 2009, provtdes the Board with further
assurance that the Audit Committee has the appropnate
skils and expenence and that it meets the Code requirements
that at least one member of the Committee has significant,
recent and relevant financial experience The expertise and
expenence of each of the members of the Committee are
summansed on pages 42 10 43
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The Audit Committee has wide-ranging oversight
responsibiities assigned to it by the Board [t reports regularly
to the Board on compliance in relation to the business
activities for which it has responsibility within its terms of
reference Audit Committee members are expected to have
an understanding of the following areas

*» the principles of, contents of and developments in financial
reporting. including the applicable accounting standards
and statements of recommended practice and,

In particular, the appropnatenass of the Company's
accounting pohicies and mtegnty of the financial statements,

« the Company’s wider corporate policies and its financing,
and,

» the Company's systems of internal control and matters
that require the use of judgement in the presentation
of accounts and key figures as well as the role of internal
and external audttors

Nominations Committee

Members and attendance (eligibility} at meetings
held during the year ended 31 July 2010

Chairman J Whybrow 5(5)
Members G Davis 5(5)
A J Duff 4(5)
A Le Goff 5(5)
J 1K Murray 5(5)
N M Stein 5(5)
M P Wareing 34)

Owing to attendance at another Commitiee meeting and to a pnor overseas
business commitment two Directors were each unable to attend a
Nominations Committee meeting, which had baen scheduled at relatrvely
short notice

The Commitiee reviews the structure, size and composition
of the Board and its Committees It makes recommendations
with regard to any changes that are considered necessary,
both in the identification and nomination of new Directors
and the continuabon of existing Directors in office There

1s a formal procedure (in place for selecting and recruiting
Diwrectors The Committee evaluates the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on the Board and, in ight of

that evaluation, It prepares the descriphion of the relevant
role and capabilities required of prospective candidates

After a ngorous interview process of shorthsted candidates,
the Committee makes its recommendations to the Beard
The Cormmittee retains external search consultants for
appointments to the Board Mr Whybrow would not charr the
Commitiee or attend if it were to consider the appointment
of a successor Charman The Committee also adwvises the
Board on succession planning for Board appointments
although the Board itself has overall responstbitity for
succession generally

The Committee meets as required and the matters discussed
dunng the financial year ended 31 July 2010 pnmanly related
to the changes of Executive Board members and the
resulting succession plans




Remuneration Committee

Members and attendance {(eligibility) at meetings
held during the year ended 31 July 2010:;

Chairman A J Duff 6(6}
Members G Davis 6(6}
A Le Goff 1)
N M Stein 6(6)

All the members of the Remuneration Committee are
considered independent within the definiion set out in the
Code Dunng the year, the Committee reviewed and updated
its terms of reference to take into account developments

In governance relating to remuneration and comments
made in public consultation documents or reports on the
subject of good practice regarding executive remuneration
The Committee has also conducted a detalled effectiveness
survey to address its activities and to raise any concerns
from both members and attendees of the Committee

The results of the survey showed that the Commuttee

had been performing effectvely, however, it lighltghted
some areas for improvement which the Committee has
undertaken to adopt

The Committee has delegated authonty to deal, on behalf of
the Board, with all remuneration matters, including pension
entitlements and any compensation payments |t i1s
responsible for setting the remuneration of the Executive
Directors and the Group Company Secretary in accordance
with the remuneration policy approved by the Beard Itis also
responsible for determining the fees of the Chairman and for
monitaring and approving the remuneration policy i relation
to senior management below Board level As part of the
review of its terms of reference, the increased scope of the
Committee's rofe in setting the overarching pnnciples and
parameters of remuneration policy for the Group as a whole
ware updated The Commitiee prepares, for the Board's
approval, the Remuneration report, which 1s presented to
shareholders at each Annual General Meeting The charrman
of the Committee attends the Annual General Mesting to
respond 1o any questions shareholders may raise on the
Committeg's activities

Disclosure Committee

Chairman JW Martin Chief Financial Officer

Members M J Fearon Group Communications and

Investor Relatons Director

| K Meakins Group Chief Executive

R | Shoylekov Group Company Secretary
and General Counsel

J W Whybrow Chaiman

The Disclosure Comimuttee mests as required to deal wath all
matters refating to public announcements of the Company
and, in particular, the Company's obligations under the
Listing and Disclosure Rules of the UK Listing Authonty

The Committee also assists in the design, mplementation
and penodic evaluation of the Company's disclosure controls
and procedures

Directors’ report ~ Business review _
Directors' report — Corporate governance [l

Financial staternents
Other information

Treasury Committee
Charman J W Martin Chief Financial Officer

Members | K Meakins Group Chief Executive
M J R Vemer Group Treasurer
M P Wareing Non Executive Director
M J Webb Group Financial Controller

The Committee's role 1s to consider treasury policy, including
financial structures and investments, tax strategy and
hedging policies and certan transactions on behalf of

the Group, within a framework delegatad by the Board

On 1 October 2009, Derek Harding (Director of Group
Strategy and Investor Relatons) joined the Commuittee,

he then resigned his position in May 2010 following his
appointment to a different role within the Group, as Finance
Director of Wolseley UK Mr Martin replaced Mr Webster on
the Commuttee on his appantment as Chief Financial Officer
on 1 Aprl 2010 and Mr Webb, Group Financial Controller,
joned the Committes with effect from 1 August 2010

Executive Committee

Charman | K Meakins Group Chief Executive

Members S Ashmore Managing Oirector, UK
P Gardies Managing Director, France

J W Martin Chief Financial Officer

C R Mormson Group HR Director

F W Roach Chief Executive Officer,
North America

R | Shoylekov Group Company Secretary
and General Counsel

S Werrsee Managing Director,
Nordic Region

The Executive Committee meets at least 10 tmes each year
and these meetings usually take place prior to Board
meetings The Committee addresses operational business
1ssues and 1s responsible for implementing Group strategy
and pohcies, day-to-day management and monitoring
business performance
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Corporate governance report continued

Graphic removed

Report from the Audit Committee

The composition, attendance and responsibitibies of the
Audit Committee are set out on page 46

Structure

The Commuttee meets regularty throughout the year and
its agenda i1s Iinked 1o events in the Compary's financial
calendar The Committee reviews the Company’s policies
and procedures relating to governance, nsk and control
and, in addition to the regular tems, each member of the
Committee may request reports on matters of interest

The Committee invites the Chairman, Group Chief
Executive, Chief Finanaial Officer, Group Financial Controller
and the Head of Internal Audt, tegether with senior
representatives of the Company's external auditors, to
attend each meeting and receve its papers, although it
reserves part of each meeting for discussions without those
nvitees present Other senior executives are also invited to
certain meetings to present such reports as are required
for the Committee to discharge its duties The Commuttee
members penodically meet the Head of Internal Audit

and the external auditors without the presence of

executive management

The chaiman of the Committee reporis to the subsequent
meeting of the Board on the key 1ssues covered by the
Committee, and the Board also receives copies of the
minutes of each meeting The chairman of the Committee
attends the Annual General Meeting to respond to any
shareholder questions that might be raised on the
Commuittee's actmvities

Audit Committee effectiveness

Each year the Committee cntically reviews its own
performance and considers where improvements can be
made This year, the performance of the Committes was
evaluated as part of a committes effectiveness review,
as highlighted on page 45 The Commuttas's terms of
reference were reviewed and updated dunng the year

Financial reporting

The Committee assists the Board to fulfil its responsibilities )

relating to external finanoial reporting and associated
announcements Dunng the year, the matters considered,
either by the Commuittee or subsequently by the Board,
included

* the Half Year and Full Year financial statements, including
the requirernents for financial reporting,

= the Half Year and Annual Final results announcements
made to the London Stock Exchange,
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» the Company’s Intenm Management Statements and all
proposed announcements to be made by the Company
to the extent that they contained matenal financial
information,

* documentation relating to tax-related matters associated
with the Group's corporate structure,

+ geeounting and auditing issues,

= review of the effectiveness of the internal audit function
and the review of the effectiveness and continued
independence of the external auditor,

* [itigation, contingent habilities and tax matters, including
complance with statutory tax obligations,

» fraud reports and the operation of the Company's
whistleblowing polcy,

» the effectiveness of the Company's internal control and
nsk management procedures,

* the updated Company policies and procedures relating to
fraud and the prevention of corruption and the Company’s
new Code of Conduct, and

* the evaluation of the Committee’s own effectiveness

Extemal audit and extemal auditors

The Committee 1s also responstble for the development,
implementation ang monitonng of the Company's policy
on external audit and the Commuttee reserves oversight
respoensibility for monitonng independence, objectivity
and comphance with ethical and regulatory requirements
The Committee recommends the appointment and
reappointment of the Company's external auditors and
annually reviews a formal letter provided by the extemal
auditors confirming therr independence and objectvity
within the context of applicable regulatory requirements
and professtonal standards

PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP have been the Company’s
auditors for many years The Committee 1s satisfied with
ther effectiveness and independence and has not
considered 1t necessary this year to conduct a tender
process for the appointment of its auditors In 2009,

the Commuttee carned out a review of its auditors, which
ncluded cost compansons This provided the Committee
with the assurance that the auditors continued to be
cost-effective

The Committee monitors the rotation of key partners within
the external audtors from time to time In accordance with
UK regulations The Committee also scrutinises all
proposals for non-audit work to be performed by the
external auditors for the Company, to ensure that the
provision of those non-audit services falls within the agreed
policy regarding such services and does not imparr the
objectvity or Independence of the external auditors

Under the policy, the external auditors cannot be

engaged to perform any of the following services

*» book-keeping services related to accounting recerds
or financial statements,

» design and implementation of financial information
systems,




s appraisal or valuation services, faimess opirmons and
contnbuttons in kind reports,

= actuanal services,
» internal audit outsourcing services,
* management functions including human resources,

* broker or dealer, nvestment adviser or investment
banking services, or

= legal and other services unrelated to audit work

The palicy requires pre-approval by the charman of the
Committee for any non-audit work, subject to maximum
budget levels The external auditors provide audit related
services such as regulatory and statutory reporting, and
reviewing shareholder or other circulars The external
auditors report to the Committee any matenal depariures
from Group accounting policies and procedures that they
Identify dunng the course of therr audit work Within the
constraints cof the APB Ethical Standards on Auditing, the
external auditors undertake certain due dilgence reviews
and provide asststance on tax matters The provision of
non-audit services within such constraints of the agreed
policy 1s assessed on a case by case basis so that the
best-placed adviser 1s retained

During the year, the Committee reviewed the effectiveness
of the external auditors, which included receving responses
from each of the Group's operating companies and
consicddered wheather the agreed audit plan had been

fulfiled and the reasons for any vanation from the ptan

The Committee also considered the external auditors’
ngour and the degree to which the external auditors were
able to assess key accounting and audit judgements

The Committee reviewed and approved the terms, areas

of responsibility and scope of the audit (including schedules
of unadiusted errors and representation letters) as set

out In the external auditors' engagement letter, the overall
work plan for the forthcoming year, together with the
cost-effectiveness of the audit as well as the auditors’
remuneration and performance, any 1ssues which arose
duning the course of the audit and thetr resolution, key
accounting and audit judgements, errors identified during
the audit, and the recommendations made to management
by the auditors and management’s respanse

The total fees paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers in the year
ended 31 July 2010 were £10 4 milion (2009 £13 4 million),
of which £6 7 milion (2009 £8 5 milkon) related to non-audit
work £1 mullion of the non-audrt work fees were pursuant
to work required In relation to the Group’s proposed change
In carporate structure and domicile Further disclosure of
the non-audit fees paid dunng the year ended 31 July 2010
can be found in note 3 to the financial statements

Intemal audit

The internal audit function is fully Independent of the
day-to-day operations of the Group It 1s involved in the
assessment of the qualty of nsk management and internal
control and helps to promote and further develop effective
nsk management within the businesses Certain internal
audit assignments (such as those requinng speciatist
expertisg) continue to be outsourced by the Head of Internal
Audit to KPMG LLP as required A policy has been

Directors’ report — Business review

Drrectors report - Comporate govemnance [
Financial statements

COther infarmation

estabhshed which restncts the recruitment of staff from
both KPMG LLP and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP The
Head of Internal Audt attends all Audt Committee meetings
N addmon to having regular meetings with the chairman of
the Committee The Committee reviews key performance
indicators relating to the activity of the department

These reviews occur ether at each Committee meeting,

or annually when KPlIs are reviewed aganst the audit plan

The Committee reviews the effectiveness of the Group's
internal audrt function, including its terms of reference, its
audit plans, its general performance and its relationship
with the external auditors Throughout the year, the
Committee reviewed the internal audit function’s plans and
its achievements against those plans The Committee
considered the results of the audits undertaken by the
internal audrt function and considered the adequacy of
management’s response to matters raised, including the
time taken to resolve any such matters The Committee
carmed out its annual review to consider the effectiveness
of the internal audit function using guidance 1ssued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales and
the Institute of Internal Auditors — UK

Iintemal control _

The Board retains overall responsibiity for internal contral,
for establishing the systems of internal control and reviewing
therr effectiveness and for the identification and
management of business nsk

The Committee monitors and reviews the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control systems, accounting policies
and practices, standards of nsk management and nsk
management procedures and compliance controls, as
well as the Company’s statements on internal controls,
before they are agreed by the Board for each year's
Annual Report

In a decentralised Group, where local management has
considerable autonomy to run and develop therr
businesses, a well-designed system of nternal control 1s
necessary to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the
Company's assets and depends on regular evaluation on
the extent of the nsks to which the Company 1s exposed
In accordance with the guidance set out in the Turnbull
Report “Intemal Control Guidance for Directors on

the Combined Cede”, an ongoing process has been
estabiished for identfying, managing and evaluating the
nsks faced by the Group, including reputational nisk, and
the effective intermnal controls required to mantan such
effectiveness

The Group's internal contro! systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate business nsk They facilitate
the effectiveness and efficiency of our operations,
safeguard the Group's assets against matenal misstatement
or loss, contribute to the safeguarding of assets, mcluding
the prevention and detection of fraud, farly report the
Group's performance and position, mamtan the reliability of
both nternal and external reporting and ensure compliance
with relevant legislation, regulation and best practice,
including that related to social, environmental and ethical
matters These systems and therr effectiveness have been
In place for the full financial year and up to the date on
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Corporate govemance report continued

which the financial statements were approved, and are
reviewed by the Board regularly to deal with any changing
crreumstances

Effective financial controls, including the maintenance of
proper accounting records, are an important element of
internal control They help ensure that the Company 1s nct
unnecessarily exposed to avoidable financial nsks and that
published financial information 1s reliable Summanes of the
key financial nsks inherent in the Group's business are given
N the Financial review on pages 26 to 29 and in note 29

of the consolidated financial statements

The Company's whistleblowing policy, which supports

the Group-wide Code of Conduct, gives detalls of the
International confidental telephone reporting lines and
secure website reporting facility, which are operated on
behalf of the Group by an independent third party The
reporting channels are a canfidential means for employees
to notify any concerns about actual or potential breaches
of law or company policy, including in relation to accounting,
rnisk 1ssues, internal controls, auditing 1ssues and related
matters All matters reported are investigated and, where
appropnate, reported to the Committee Statistics on the
vaolume and general nature of all disclosures made are
reparted to the Commitiee quarterly A copy of the Group’s
Code of Conduct 1s available on the Company’s website at
www wolseley com Infermation on the improvements
that the Company has made 1o its ethics programme
{(including its Code of Conduct and policies on prevention
of fraud and corruption) 1s included in the Corporate
Responsibility report on page 39

Control processes

The Board reviews 1ts strategic plans and chjectives
annually and approves Group company budgets and
strategies in ight of these Control 15 exercised at Group
and business unit level through monthly menitonng of
performance by comparison to budgets, forecasts and
cash targets and by regular visits t¢ Group companies by
the Group Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer and
Managing Directors of our main geographical units

The Board has formal procedures in place for the approval
of iInvestment, acquisition and disposal projects, with
designated levels of authority, supported by post-investment
review processes for major acquisitions or disposals and
capital expenditure The Board takes account of social,
environmental and ethical matters in relation to the Group's
businesses when reviewing the nsks faced by the Group
The Board 1s canscious of the effect such matters may
have on the short- and long-term value of the Company

Risk management

The detalled review of nsk management 1s carmed out by
the Committee, with responsibility for the nsk management
process, as well as the internal control programme,
delegated to the Chief Financial Officer The nsk
management programme 1s owned by the Group Executive,
faciitated by the Group Company Secretary and General
Counsel, while a dedicated Group Head of Risk has
responsibility for the day-to-day management of the
programme During the financial year, the nsk management
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programme was further improved throughout the Group,
following the ntroduction dunrg 2009 of an upgraded nsk
assessment and reporting tool

This prowides a more consistent analysis of nsks, a more
effective means of ensunng accountability, and a more
rigorous means of measunng responses, identifying key
risks and reviewing nsk mitigatton plans

Risk assessment and evaluation 1s an integral part of the
Group's annual planning cycle The management team of
each Group company 1s responsible for nsk management
and internal control within its own business and for ensuring
compliance with the Group's policies and procedures Each
Group company or business unit has also appointed a nsk
director whose primary role in such capacity 1s to ensure
complance by local management with the Group's nsk
management programme and to document the strategic
objectives and the effectiveness of the Group's systems

of bath internal control and nsk management activities

Group operating companies and Head Office functions are
required to submit nsk management reports bi-annually to
the Chief Financial Officer which identify and document
each significant nsk, together with the mrtigating actions
taken, and to be taken, to manage, montor or reduce those
rsks The Executive Committee and senior management !
review these submissions and the Chief Financial Officer

prasents them to the Committee The chairman of the

Committee reports to the Board on any matters which have

ansen from the Committee’s review of the way in which the

nsk management and internal control processes have been

applied and on any breakdowns in, or exceptions 1o, these

processes These processes have been in place throughout

the year ended 31 July 2010 and have continued to the date

of this report

The internal auditors have reviewed the overall approach
adopted by the Group towards its risk management activities
and the improvements made have also been taken nto
account so as to reinforce the Company’s internal control
procedures More information on the Group's approach is
set out (in Risk Management on pages 30 to 33

Compliance statement

The Company apphed all of the principles set out In

section 1 of the Code for the penod under review and has, !
throughout the year, compled with the detalted provisions
set out therein The Company’s auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoaopers LLP, are required 1o review
whether the above statement reflects the Coempany's
compliance with the mine provisions of the Code specified
for their review by the Listing Rules of the UK Listing
Authonty and to report if it does not reflect such
compliance No such report has been made

i

Michael Wareing CMG
on behalf of the Audt Committee




Directors’ responsibility
statement

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual
Report, the Remuneration report and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the
Drrectors have prepared the Group financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs7), as adopted by the European Union, and the
parent company financtal statements in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
("UK GAAP") {Uruted Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable taw} In preparng the Group financial statements,
the Directors have also elected to comply with IFRSs, 1ssued
by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board ("lASB”)
Under company law, the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give

a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
the Company and of the profit or loss of the Gompany and
Group for that period

In prepanng these financial statements, the Directors are
required to

» select sutable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

» make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,

= state whether IFRSs, as adopted by the European Union
and IFRSs 1ssued by (ASB and apphcable UK Accounting
Standards, have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explaned in the Group and
parent company financial statements respectively, and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concemn
basis, unless 1t 1s inappropnate to presume that the
Company will continue in business

mD|rectors' report — Business review

Drrectors' report — Gomporate governance [l
Fnancial statements

Orher Inforrmation

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company
and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements and the Directors’ Remuneration report comply
with the Comparies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the mantenance and
integrty of the Company’s website Legislation in the United
Kingdom governing the praparation and dissemination

of financial statements may differ from legislation in

other junsdictions

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are
isted on pages 42 to 43, confirms that, to the best of his
knowledge

* the Group financial statements, which have been prepared
In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and
loss of the Group, and

¢ the Financial review contained 1n the Directors’ report
includes a farr review of the development and performance
of the business and the position of the Group, together
with a descrnption of the principal nsks and uncertainties
that it faces
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Other statutory information

Share capital and voting rights

As at 31 July 2010 there were 284,399,824 fully paid ordinary
shares of 10 pence each in 1ssue and hsted on the Londen
Stock Exchange In addition, there were 886,988,540 deferred
24 pence shares outstanding at the year end, such shares have
no voting or dividend nghts and are not able to be traded

The nghts and obhgations attaching to the Company’s ordinary
shares, as well as the powers of the Company’s Directors,
are set out in the Company's Articles of Association, copies
of which can be obtaned from Companies House i the UK
or by wniting to the Group Company Secretary

The Company also has a Level | Amencan Depositary Receipt
("ADR") pregramme n the US for which Deutsche Bank Trust
Company Amenicas acts as Depositary The Amencan
Deposttary Shares {"ADS") which are ewidenced by ADRs are
traded on the US over-the-counter market, where each ADS
represents one-tenth of a Wolseley plc ordinary share

Substantial share interests

As at the date of this repart, the Company had received
notification of the following matenal shareholdings pursuant
to the Drsclosure and Transparency Rulses of the UK Listing
Authonty

Nurmber of Percentage of
shares held Issued voting
Narme (millions) share capital
Blackrock, Inc 28,258,566 994%
Cevian Capital Limited 14,690,088 5165%
Fidelity, FMR Corp, Fidelity
International Ltd, Fidelity 14,070,947 4957%
Pensions Mgt Ltd
Axa S A 13,065,225 4 603%
Legal & General Group Pic 11,234,843 3958%
Siichester International
Investors Limited 8,632,769 3040%

CREST

The Company's ordinary shares are In CREST, the settlement
system for stocks and shares

Restrictions on transfer of shares

There are no restrictions on the voting nghts attached to the
Coempany's ordinary shares or on the transfer of secunties in
the Company No person helds secunties n the Company
carrying special nghts with regard to control of the Company
The Company 1s not aware of any agreements between
holders of secunties that may result in restnctions on the
transfer of secunties or on voting nghts The Company's
Articles of Assaciation may be amended by a special
resolution of the Company's shareholders

Share options

Dunng the financial year ended 31 July 2010, options were
exercrsed pursuant 1o the Company's share option schemes
resulting in the allotment of 560,458 ordinary 10 pence
shargs A further 7,605 ordinary 10 pence shares have been
allotted under these schemes since the end of the financial
year to the date of this report Details of shares issued dunng
the year are set out In note 34 to the financial statements
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Employee Benefit Trusts

The Wolseley plc 2004 Overseas Employee Benefit Trust,
the Wolseley plc 2004 Employee Benefit Trust and the
Wolseley plc 2004 Directors’ Benefit Trust were established
in October 2004 in connection with the Wolseley Share
Option Plan 2003 and the Wolseley plc 2002 Long Term
Incentive Scheme, detaills of which are set out In the
Remuneration report The trustees of each of the Trusts have
waived their nghts to recelve dvidends on any shares held
by them At the date of this report, the Trust holds 1,948,919
ordinary shares of 10 pence each

Authonty to issue shares

At the Annual General Meeting held in 2009, authority was
given to the Directors to allot new 10 pence ordinary shares
up to a nominal value of £18,922,625 The Directors intend to
propase at the next Annual General Meeting to seek authonty
to allot and grant nghts to subscnbe for or to convert
securities nto shares up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£18,958,5899, representing approximately two-thirds of the
Company’s 1ssued share capital as at 27 September 2010,
of which 94,792,896 shares (representing approximately
ane-third of the Company's 1ssued ordinary share capital)
may only be allotted pursuant to a fully pre-emptive nghts
Issue If approved, this authonty will exprre at the conclusion
of the Annual General Meeting to be held in December 2011

Subjact to the terms of the authority noted above, the
Dirsctors wall also recommend that they be empowered o
allot equity secunties for cash other than pro rata to existing
shareholders, untl the Annual General Meeting to be held

in December 2011 This authonty shall be Imited to the
allotment of equrty secunties for cash, in connection wath

an open offer to existing shareholders 1n proportion to ther
existing holdings up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£1,422,037, bemg 5 per cent of the ordinary share capitat
issued at the date of this report The Directors currently have
no intention to Issue ordinary shares, other than pursuant

to the Company's employee share schemas and any share
dwidend alternatives The Directors recommend that you
vote in favour of these resolutions to maintamn the Company's
flexibility in relation to future share 1ssues, Including any
1ssues to finance business opportunities should appropriate
circumstances arse

Authonty to purchase shares

In certam circumstances, it may be advantageous for the
Company to purchase its own ordinary shares and a special
resolution will be proposed at the next Annual General
Meeting to renew the Directors’ imited authonty, last granted
In 2008, to purchase the Company’s ordinary shares n the
market The authonty will be Imited to a maximum of
28,440,742 ordinary shares {being approximately 10 per cent
of the Company's 1ssued share capital at the date of this
report) and sets the miimum and maximum pnces which
may be paid The Directors will use this authonty to purchase
shares only after careful consideration, taking into account
market conditions, other mvestment opportunities,
appropnate gearing levels and the overall financial position
of the Company The authonty will enable the Directors

to continue to be able to respond promptly shoutd
crcumstances anse in which they consider that such

a purchase would result in an Increase In eamings per

share and would be in the best Interests of the Company




The Companies {(Acquisthion of Own Shares) (Treasury Shares)
Regulatrons 2003 allow shares purchased by the Company to
be held as treasury shares that may be cancelled, scld for
cash or used for the pumose of employee share schemes
The Company holds no shares in treasury but the Directors
currently intend that any shares which are purchased will be
held in treasury The authonties to be sought by each of the
resolutions noted above are Intended to apply equally to
shares to be held by the Company as treasury shares and to
the sale of treasury shares The Directors consider it desirable
for these general authonties to be available to prowide fiexibility
in the management of the Company's capital resources

Auditors and audit information

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are willing to continue as
auditors of the Company and resolutions concerning therr
reappomntment and the determination of their remuneration
will be proposed at the next Annual General Mesting

The Directors in office at the date of this report confirrn that,
s0 far as they are each aware, in respect of the consolidated
financial staterments for the financial year ended 31 July 2010,
there 1s no relevant audit information of which
PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP are unaware and each
Director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken
as a Dwrector to be aware, in respect of the consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 July 2010,
of any relevant audit information and to establish that
PncewaterhouseCoopers LLLP are aware of that information

Change of control )

The Company does not have agreements with any Director
that would provide compensation for loss of office or
employment resulting from a change of control following a
takeover bid, except that provisions of the Company's share
schemes may cause options and awards granted under such
schemes to vest in those circumstances Al of the
Company's share schemes contain provisions relating to a
change of control Qutstanding options and awards would
normally vest and become exercisable for a imited penod
of ime upon a change of control following a takeover,
reconstruction or winding up of the Company {not being

an internal reorganisation), subject at that time to rules
concerning the satisfaction of any performance conditions

Creditor payment policy

All Group companies are responsible for establishing terms
and conditions of trading with their suppliers |t 1s the
Company’s policy that payments to suppliers are made
within agreed terms and are, where applicable, consistent
with The Prompt Payment Code, which 1s sponsored by the
UK Department for Business Innovation & Skills (*BIS™)
Copuies of this Code can be obtained from BIS At 31 July
2010, the Company had o trade creditors (2009 nil)

The amount of trade creditors for the Group as at

31 July 2010 was equivalent to 67 days (2009 65 days)

of trade purchases

Donations

The Group's chanmtable dgnat;ons In 2010 totalled £1.521.(500'
{2009 £1,555,000)

At each of the Annual General Meetings held since 2002,
shareholders have passed a resclution, as a precaution,

to approve donations to political organisations and to incur
political expendrture (as such terms are now defined in
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sectons 362 1o 379 of the Companies Act 2006) Each year,
the Board has confirmed that it operates a policy of not
gming any cash contnbution to any political party m the
ordinary meaning of those words and that it has no intention
of changing that policy The Directors propose to seek, once
more, authonty for the Group to make political donations
and/or incur political expenditure for amounts not exceeding
£125,000 1n a total aggregate, which they might otherwise be
prohibited from making or incurring under the terms of the
Companies Act 2006 and which would not amount to
“*donations” in the ordinary sense of the word This authonty
would last until the Company's next Annual General Meeting

Employees

We believe that our employees are central to our future
success The Group actively encourages employee
nvolvernent and places particular importance on keeping
employees regularly informed on the Company's activities
and financial performance and on matters affecting them
individually and the busingss generally This can be through
informal bultetins, in-house publicatons and briefings, as well
as via the Company’s intranet sites The Group operates on a
largely decentralised basis with a ngorous controi framework
exercised by a small head office team This allows for greater
autonomy and accountabihty at a local level and provides
encouragement for the development of entrepreneunal flair
Local management i1s responsible for maintaiming high
standards of health and safety and for ensunng that there

1s appropnate employsee involvement in decision making

A European Works Council {"EWC") has been operating
since 1996 to provide a forum for informing and consutting
employees In Europe on such matters as significant
developments n the Group's operations, management’s
plans and expectations, organisational changes within the
Group and also for employee representatives to consult
Group management about concerns over any aspect of
the Group's operations At the date of this repert, there
were 24 EWC representatives of which 18 were employee
represaentatives and six were management representatves
Employee representatives are appointed from each European
country n which Wolseley operates, with more than one
employee representative appointed from the UK, France
and Denmark

All employees are offered a range of benefits depending

on therr local environment They are also encouraged to build
a stake 1n the Company through the ownership of shares,
where possible, through participation in the Company’s
employee share schemes

Employment policies

Our employment policies aim to attract the very best people
and wa believe that a diverse and inclusive culture 1s a key
factor in being a successful business The Group remains
committed to equality of opportunity in all of its employment
practices It1s the Group's policy that the selection of
employees for appointment, career development and
promction be determined solely on the skils and attnbutes
which are relevant to the job and which are in accordance
with the laws of the country concerned, without having
regard to an employee's gender, race, religion, age or
disabiity Ongoing training of employees and the continued
development of their skills 1s of prme mportance to the
Group These policies also cover the continuation of
employment and apprepnate retraining for employees

who become disabled during therr employment
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Other statutory information continued

UK pension schemes

Wolseley currently has two pension schemes in respect
of UK employees

Defined Benefit Scheme - the Wolseley Group Retirement
Benefits Plan and the Willam Wilson Group FPension Scheme
merged on 1 January 2010 Both have been closed to new
entrants since 31 May 2009 The merged planis known as
the Wolseley Group Retirement Benefits Plan and has three
trustees consisting of an independent trustee, a member
nominated trustee and a corporate trustee The corporate
trustes consists of nine trustee directors and, save for

Mr David Tucker, charman of the trustees and lan Percy, CBE,
atrustee director, all of the other trustees and trustee directors
are UK-based employses or former employees of the Group

Defined Contribution Scheme — the Wolseley Group Defined
Contnbution Plan 1s a trust-based defined contrbution
pension scheme with three Company-nominated trustess,
one of whom 1s an independent trustee and two who are
UK-based employees of the Group In addition, there are
potentally three member-nominated trustees In July 2009
only one member was nominated, a further selection process
was run in August 2010 The charman of the trustees 1s
Wayne Phelan of PS Independent Trustees Limited

Communication with shareholders

The Company places considerable impartance on
communicahon with its shareholders, ncluding its employes
shareholders Qur mvestor relations policy reflects our
commitment to our shareholders It includes

* regular dialogue with institutional shareholders,

* meetings with shareholder representatives,

* promotion of commurication with private shareholders
through therr attendance at the Annual General Meeting,

* close involvement in investor relations by the Group Chief
Executive and Chief Financial Officer,

* ensuring that the views of our major shareholders are
reported to the Board by the Chief Financial Officer and
by the Charrman and are discussed at its mestings, and

* the mantenance of contact, when appropriate, with
shareholders to discuss overall remuneration plans
and policies

The Chairman ensures that the Board as a whole maintans
an appropriate dialogue with shareholders and, although the
Non Executive Directors are not formally asked, at present,
to mest the Company’s shareholders, their attendance at
presentations of the Annual Final and Half Year Results 1s
encouraged A senior executive has day-tc-day responsibility
for all investor relations matters and for contact with
institutional shareholders, as well as with financial analysts,
brokers and the media Investor relations are controlled by
written guidelines to ensure the protection and appropnate
disclosure of sensitive iInformation which could affect the
Company’s share price and which has not already been
made generally availabls to the Company’s shareholders
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The Annual Report and Accounts are avallable to all
shareholders erther in paper form or electronically and can be
accessed via the Company’s website at www.wolseley.com
or via Shareview, an intemet service offered by the
Company's Registrars, as detaled in Shareholder information
on page 142 The Group's Half Year and Annual Final Results,
as well as all announcements 1ssued to the London Stock
Exchange, are published on the Company’s website,

www wolseley.com Dunng the year, the Company 1ssued
regular updates to the market and these, together with
copes of presentations to analysts and interviews with the
Group Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer, are also
posted on the Company's website

Annual General Meeting {(“AGM")
The AGM will take place on 20 January 2011
AGM procedure

The Notice of the AGM 15 circulated to all shareholders

at least 20 working days before such meeting and it 1s
Company policy not to combine resolutions to be proposed
at general meetings All shargholders are invited to the
GCompany's AGM, at which they have the opportunity to put
quastions to the Board and it 1s standard practice to have the
Senior Independent Director and the chairmen of the Audit,
Nomunations and Remuneration Committees avalable
{whether in person or by video Iink) to answer questions
Some questions may not be answered at the meeting,
should they not be in the interests of the Company, involve
the disclosure of confidential information or if it would not

be to the good order of the mesting The Charrman may also
norminate a Company representative to answer a specific
question after the AGM or may refer to a response on the
Company's website

The proxy votes receved for and aganst each resolution,
as well as abstentions which may be recorded on the proxy
form accompanying the Notice of Meeting, are counted
befare the AGM and the results are made availlable shortly
after the meeting The results are also announced to the
London Stock Exchange wvia Regulatory News Service and
are published on the Company's website

AGM resolutions

The resolutions 1o be proposed at the AGM to be held on
20 January 2011, together with explanatory notes, will be
detalled in full in the Notice of Annual General Meeting
15sued to each shareholder in advance of the meeting
This document will be available on the Company’s website
at www.wolseley com

The location of the AGM and the details of some of the
resolutrons to be put to the meeting may change If the
Company's proposals to change its corporate holding
structure are approved The Coempany, and if the proposals
are approved, the new holding company for the Group,

will keep shareholders informed

On behalf of the Board

T
Richard Shoylekov
Group Company Secretary and General Counsel
27 September 2010




Remuneration report

For the year ended 31 July 2010

Graphic removed

Dear Shareholder

The Remuneration Committee (the “Committee”) has
continued its approach of reviewing the packages of the
senior executives and wider remuneration policies i
general, 1aking into account the challenging business
conditions 1 a global economy balanced by the need to
ensure that executives are fully incentivised 1o deliver
shareholder value In so doing, the Commuttee has agreed
the following key palicy decisions for 2010/11

= the approach to Executive Directors’ base salarnes
would be the same as that for the whole of the UK
workforce, or In the case of our US-based director,
the US equivalent Non Executive Directors' fees have
been reviewed using the same policy and will not be
increased for the 20310/11 year, and

= at the start of the financial year 2009/10, a key focus
for the Company was the continued generation of cash
flow This was reflected in its equal weighting with
trading profit on bonus plans Significant stndes have
been made in reducing Group debt, to the extent that
greater focus is now concentrated on trading profit
Accordingly, the weightings in the Directors’ bonus plans
have been modified to reflect this

200910 was a very challenging year for the Company
Despite falling sales the Committee set financial cbjectives
aming 1o exceed the previous year’s trading prcfit while
delivening further reductions in net debt By the second
haff of the year the Company was agan delivenng
like-for-like sales growth, underperforming businesses
were either restructured or disposed and trading profit
exceeded the previous year Having delvered against
challenging financial objectives, set against the backdrop
of continuing market declines, the Committee has
approved bonuses at the upper end of the range

In 2008, share options and long term incentive plan
awards were scaled back to reflect the greater expected
value ansing from share pnce volatiity Award ranges will
remain broadly the same for 2010, recognising the
improved outlook for future performance iImprovements
2010 eamings per share fell from 2009 levels but the
Committee has decided to retam the higher 2009 EPS as
the base from which future performance targets are set
Consequently, vesting will require 2011 earnings tn
excess of consensus and 2012 and 2013 eamings

at histoncal levels

The Committee appreciates the dialogue and feedback
it receves from investors and it hopes to receive your
support at the AGM on 20 January 2011

N -

Andrew J Duff
Chaimnan of the Remuneration Commities

Directors’ report - Business roview
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Introduction

This report, approved by the Board, has been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006 (the “Act”), the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority
and Statutory Instrument 2008/41C¢ The Large and Medium-
sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports}
Regulattons 2008 (the “Regulations”) Furthermoere, the Board
has applied the principles of good governance relating to
Directors’ remuneration contained within the UK Combined
Code {the “Code") and, where applicable, has already
adopted pnnciples from the UK Corporate Governance Code
{the "Govermnance Code™) which will come into effect from
financial years beginning or after 29 June 2010 The Act
requires the auditors to report to the Company’s
sharehglders on the audited information within this report
and to state whether, in therr opinion, those parts of the report
have been prepared in accordance with the Act The auditors'
opinion 1s set out on page 125 and those aspects of the
report which have been subject to audit are clearly marked

Remuneration Committee

The Board sets the Company's remuneration palicy

The Committee makes recommendations to the Board, within
its agreed terms of reference (avallable on the Company's
website, www.wolseley.com) on the Company's framework
of executive remuneration and its cost It determines, with the
agreement of the Board, specific remuneration packages for
each of the Executive Directors, the Chaimman and the Group
Company Secretary [t also determines the remuneration,
based on proposals from the Group Chief Executive, for the
members of the Executive Committee The Charrman and

the Executive Directors determine the remunaration of the
Non Executive Directors The Committee 1s also responsible
for the Company’s share incentive schemes for all employees
Following a review of its terms of reference dunng the financial
year, the Committee broadened the scope of its work to
mctude the review of overall remuneration policy for
employees below executive level

The current members of the Committes, as detalled on

page 47, consist of four Non Executive Drirectors, ali of whom
are independent within the definition set out in the Code

The Group Chief Executive, Mr Meakins, the Charrman,

Mr Whybrow and the Group HR Director, Mr Mornson, are
usually invited to attend the meetings to respond to specific
questions raised by members of the Committee This
specffically excludes such matters concerning the details

of and any discusstons relating to therr own remuneration

To reach informed decisions on executive remuneration,

the Committee sources detaled external research on market
data and trends from expenenced independent consultants
Since 2003, the Committee has sought external advice from
Hewitt New Bndge Street, who provide no other seraces

to the Company A review of the service provided by Hewatt
New Bndge Street took place in September 2009 and in
Cctober 2000 1t was agreed that their contract would be
renewed for a further year The Committee met six times
dunng the year, at which all eligible Committee members
were In attendance Mr Le Goff attended one meeting, in July
2010, after his appomntment to the Committee in May 2010
The Commuittee has scheduled meetings throughout the year,
as well as ad hoc meetings to consider additional items as
they arise For example, an ad hoc meeting was called in
January 2010 to review and approve the severance packages
for the outgoing Directors and the service agreement and
rernuneration for the new Executive Director
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Remuneration report continued

At the scheduled meetings, among other tems,
the Committee considered

Date Kay agenda ltems

September 2009 Executive Committee bonus targets

for 2009/10
Executive bonus scheme rules

Procedure for approval of severance
packages

October 2009 Approval of awards under the Long Term
Incentve and Executive Share Option

Schemes for 2009/10
Review of advisers

Agreement to offer Group all-employee
share plans to vanous jurisdictions in
early 2010

Novermber 2009  Adjustment of earnings per share (“EPS”)

May 2010 Review of remuneration packages for

two new appointments to the Executive
Committee

Remuneration policy and bonus structure
reviews

Total shareholder return (“TSR”) review

Governance In remuneration following
the results of the Walker Review

Terms of reference

July 2010 FY11 Bonus Plan and Targets
EPS measurement review
Review of Committee effectiveness

Birectors’ shareholding guidelines review

Policy on Directors’ remuneration
Executive Directors

The Company's remuneration policy continues o be to
provide remuneration packages that fairly reward Executive
Directors for the contribution they make to the business,
taking into account the size and complexity of the Group’s
operations and the need to attract, retan and motivate
executives of the highest quality Remuneration packages
compnse salary, performance bonuses, share optons, long
term incentive awards, benefits in kind and retirement benefit
provisions The Company takes into account all of these
individual elements in adopting a comprehensive approach
to remuneration

The Company’s policy is that each of the packages should
incorporate components iinking ndmidual and Company
performance, short- and long-term returns, as well as
absolute and relative financial performance None of the
vanable elements of remuneration are pensionable These
packages have been designed by the Coempany to be broadly
comparable with those offered by other similar internatbonal
businesses and reflect competitive practices in the countnes
and markets in which the Executive Directors operate

The Committee believes that the choice of performance
measures for the Company's incentive plans continues to
be sutable and provides an approprate mix and balance
Following a review completed dunng the year, it 1s felt that
tha choice of EPS growth as a performance measurement
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for executive share options continues to be appropnate

The Committea reviewed the EPS targets in respect of the
2009 executive share option awards and adjustments werg
made n order to INncrease the targets so as to ensure that
they remained dermanding for the next three years Dunng
the year the Committee also completed a thorough review
of alternative comparator groups for measurement of TSR
under the Long Term Incentive Scheme It concluded that
the existing TSR comparator group remained the most
appropnate The policy 1s destigned such that a significant
proportion of total remuneration 1s performance-related to
incentivise the Executive Directors to meet the Company's
financial and strategic objectives The Commitiee considers
that the targets set for the different elements of performance
related remuneration ars appropnate and demanding m

the context of the Company's trading emvironment and

the business challenges it faces, and that the targets

ahgn executives’ interests with those of the sharehaolders
The contribution of financial banus targets based on trading
profit and cash flow, persanal targets linked to customer
service, health and safety and other strategic chjectives,
and longer term incentives provide streng alignment with
the Group’s strategy

The following chart shows total remuneration (base salary,
target and maxtimum amounts relating to bonus and the
value of long term incentive awards and executive share
options granted dunng the financial year} for the Executive
Directors in office dunng financial year 2009/10

Graphic removed

Non Executive Directors

The remuneration of Non Executive Directors 1s made up

of a basic fee plus an additonal fee where a Non Executive
Director acts as charrman of erther the Audit or Remuneration
Committees or has been nominated as Senior Independent
Director, details of these fees are Iisted below The Non
Executive Directors’ fees are reviewed from time to time

by the Charman and the Executive Directors of the Board

Fees Additional fees

Senior Independent Director £10,000
Remuneration Committea chaiman £12,000
Audit Committee chairman £16,000

The Non Executive Directors have letters of engagement
rather than service agreements and do not participate n any
Incentive plan, nor IS any pension payable in respect of therr
services as Non Executive Directors

The Board's policy I1s that Non Executive Drrectors are
normally appointed for an inital term of three years, which s
then reviewed and extended for a further three-year penod
Appontments may be terminated upon six months' notice
by either party There are no prowisions for compensation

in the event of termmation The terms and conditions of
appointment of the Non Executive Directors are available for
inspection at the Company’s registered office dunng normal
business hours and at the Annual General Mesting
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Efermant Objective Pertormance pericd Description Policy
Base salary To provide competitive  Annual Reviewed annually with  The target salary 1s set
base salary effect from 1 August at mid-market, with the
compensation to tMarket-competitive opporturity to go above this
executives allowing the base salanes are level if there 1s sustaned
Company to attract and reviewed aganst indmvdual high performance
retain talented leaders surtable comparator Compensation provided
companies based cn  should be commensurate
size and sector and with the executive's
take into account cantnbution to the Company
business and personal  The Committee intends to
performance and lccal  pay appropnately, based
market condiions on skill, expenence and
performance achieved
by the executive
Annual bonus To ensure a market Annual The maximum target To reward achievement of
competitve package ranges from 100% t0  budgeted and stretching
and Ink total cash 140% of base salary financial and operational
reward to achievement {varying by indmidual goals within year and,
of the Company's and geographical applying profitability metncs
financial and strategic location} and personal geals, which
business objectives are hnked to overall strategic
aims and shareholder
expectattons
Pension To ad retention and Ongoing Up to 32% of salary For remunerated executives
reward long service Is contributed for in the UK the aim 1s to
Defined Contnbution provide market-competitive
arrangements {varying  benefit for retrement
by indmdual and For remunerated executives
geograptucal location}  in the US, the vesting cntena
for the Senior Executive
Retrement Plan are related
to age and service
Long Term To incentivise Three years A maximum grant ¢f Awards under the LTIS are

Incentive Scheme
and Executive Share
Option Plan

axecutves to deliver
supenor long term
performance in
absolute terms and
also relative to peers,
To align executives'
interests with those

of shargholders and

to retan key individuals

125% of salary for
financial year 2010/11
may be made under
the LTIS

A maximum grant
230% of salary for
financial year 2010/11
may be made under
the ESOP

made annually to semor
executives and other
high-performing key leaders
Vesting 1s condiional on
Group TSR meeting certain
targets over a three-year
performance penod, relative
10 a comparator group of
pnncipally FTSE 100
companies, excluding banks,
telecommunications, [T

and utility companies but
including CRH pic and
Trawvis Perkins plc

Awards under the ESOP
are made annually to senior
management Vesting s
conditional on certain EPS
growth targets being
achieved over a three-year
performance penod
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Remuneration report continued

Salaries

The Commities intends that base salary refiects the level of
responsibility of the Director, the relevant market in which he
operates and indwdual performance Independent externat
advice is taken to benchmark salanes with market data,
derived from a group of companies selected on the basis

of comparable size, geographic spread and business focus
It 1s the Committee’s objective to set basic salanes around
the market median, with the opportunity to go above this
level in the event of sustained ndividual high performance
tn accordance with the core principles of the Governance
Code, consideration has also been given to general pay and
employment conditions across the Group The Committee
will continue to assess these and other matters, such as
the prevalhing market conditions, when determining levels

of remuneration for Executive Directors and the

Executive Committee

For new appointments, in particular intemal promotions, the
policy 1s for base salary to progress towards the mid-market,
once expertise and performance has been proven and
sustaned The payment of salanes at this level is considered
appropnate for motivation and retention of the calibre of
executive required to ensure the successful management

of the Company In the challenging internattonal business
environment in which it operates

The Committee reviews the fees of the Chairman and the
salanes of the Executive Directors annually, having sought
the views of both the Chairman and the Group Chief
Executive {other than in the case of therr own rermuneration)
In recognrtion of the financial circumstances faced by the
Company duning 2009, the Committee agreed that base
salares for each Executive Director and the Executive
Commuttee for the financial year commencing 1 August 2009
remain unchanged from the amounts pad from 1 August
2008 The Board also agreed that the fees payable to the
Non Executive Directors should also reman unchanged for
the financial year 2009/10

Following receipt of external market data, consideration of
the performance of each Executive Director, and Increases
tar the wider employee population, the Committee agreed
that base salanes for each Executive Director and the
Executive Committee for the financial year commencing

1 August 2010 should ba reviewed It was agread that the
fees payable to the Charman and Non Executive Directors
should remain unchanged for the forthcoming financial year
The fees payable to the Charrman and Non Executive
Directors and base salanes in respect of the Executive
Directors for the financial year commencing 1 August 2010
are therefore as follows J W Whybrow £360,500, | K Meakins
£794,375, J Martin £492,000, F W Roach $986,637, and,

for each of the Non Executive Directors, £61,800 (exclusive
of Committee fees) In the case of the Executive Directors,
this represents an increase of 2 5 per cent with the exception
of F W Roach, which represents an increase of 3 per cent
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Performance bonuses

Performance bonus arrangements for the Executive Directors
are designed to encourage indmduat performance, corporate
operating efficiencies and profitable growth Stretching
targets are set for each element of the bonus, determined by
the Commuttee each year, which also considers the levels of
performance targets to be achieved for bonus payments to
be mads in the succesding year The annual bonus awards
are based on a mix of demanding financial targets, denved
from the Company’s annual long-term strategic business
plan and annual budget, as well as market expectations

For financial year 2009/10, 80 per cent of potential bonus
was dnven by financial performance, with the balance
depending on specific strategic personal objectives set

for each Executive Director and member of the Executive
Committee The financial performance measure was targeted
equally at trading profit and cash flow, with tough trading
profit and cash stretch targets set for each market and at

the overall Company level to drive the turnaround in business
performance that the Board identfied was necessary
Depending on therr particular responstbilities and ther
performance, Executive Directors were eligible to receive

up to 100 per cent of salary for UK-based drrectors and up
to 110 per cant of salary for US-based directors, for on-target
performance No Director fully achieved the stretch levels

for ther personal objectives in the year

For the forthcoming financial year, the financial components
will continue to account for 80 per cent of the total potental
bonus, with increased weighting on trading profit

The remaining 20 per cent will again target specific strategic
personal objectives for each Executive Director The Committee
beheves that setting such stretching targets 1s appropnate
and will report on achievemnent aganst them in similar terms
in next year's report The Committee has determined that
the following percentages of base salary will be payable as
bonus, subject to the achigvement of the minimum, on-target
and maximum levels of performance for each element (with
the percentages increasing on a linear basis for achuievernent
between each level}

Percentage of base salary payable on achievement of

Minimum target On target  Maximum target
J W Martin 40 70 100
| K Meakins 80 100 120
F W Roach” 80 110 140
*US-based
Benefits in kind

Benefits in kind consist of the provision of car benefits at the
Company's expense and healthcare insurance In addition,
to ensure that Mr Roach as a senior executive and US citizen
1S not disadvantaged as a result of paying both UK and US
taxes on his income, the Company meets the cost of any
additional tax he would be obliged to pay through the
operation of a tax equalisation mecharism
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Qther inforrmation

Emoluments (audited)

The emaluments for 2009/10 payable from 1 August 2009 for the Dlrecto;s who served dunng thé financial year are set out
below The totals receved by Messrs Marchbank and Roach were paid in US dollars and have been translated into sterfing at
the exchange rate $1 5698 €1 (2009 $1 5708 £1)

Salary Compensation 2010 20089

andfees  Additional fees Bonuses Benefits  for loss of office Total Total
Drrectors £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 2000
Chairman
J W Whybrow 3605 - - - - 3605 3605
Executive Directors
J W Martin' 2400 - 2265 646 - 5311 -
I K Meaking? 7750 - 8928 2756 - 1,943 4 600
F W Roach?® 6102 - 7693 274 - 1,406.9 6407
Non Executive Directors
G Davis 618 100 - - - 71.8 718
A J Duff 618 120 - - - 73.8 738
A Le Goff* 56 6 - - - - 56.6 -
J | K Murray® 618 67 - - - 68.5 778
N M Sten 618 - - - - 61.8 618
M P Wareing® 55 93 - - - 60.8 -
Former Directors
R H Marchbank” 358 2 - 3020 1430 3218 1,1250 8615
S P Webster® 3708 - 344 4 192 8705 1,604.9 784 2
Total 30700 380 25350 5298 1,192 3 7,3651 2,9921
Pensions to former
Directors - - - - - 193 195
Penston contnbutions to
money purchase plans - - - - - 220 467
Aggregate gains on
exercise of share options - - - - - 17 -
Total - - - - - 430 662

1 Appointed to the Board with éffect from 1 Apnl 2010 £57,000 of the figure for benefits relates to a cash supplement in ieu of paymenits to the Company’s
pension scheme

2 Mr Meakins was appointed to the Board with effect from 43 July 2009, accordingly the amount shown for 2009 reflects the amount paid for the financtal year
2008/09 £248,000 of the figure for benefits relates to a cash supplement i ieu of payments to the Company’s pension scheme

3 The actual salary pald dunng the year in US dollars 1s unchanged from the figure reported in the 2008/09 Report and Accounts but Is subject to exchange
réle vanances

4 Appointed to the Board with effect from 1 September 2009
5 Mr Murray stepped down as Audit Gommittee chairman with effect from 1 January 2010
6 Appointed to the Board with effect from 1 Oclober 2009 and became Audit Commuttee chairman with effect from 1 January 2010

7 Mr Marchbank stepped down from the Board on 1 March 2010 A further payment of £685,466 relating to salary and benefits to which he was entitled in
connection with tha cassation of s employment will be paid dunng tha course of financial year 2010411 This excludas the $1,478,030 pension contribution
noted on page 61

8 Mr Webister stepped down from the Board on 31 March 2010 A further payment of £144,612 was made 1o compensats for the balance of underfundng of
the Funded Linapproved Reurements Benefits Schame at § Apnl 2006
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Remuneration report continued

Executive Board changes

Cn 25 January 2010, the Company announced that

Mr Robert Marchbank, Chief Executive Officer for Europe
and Managing Directer of Wolseley UK Limited, would step
down from the Board on 1 March 2010 as the European role
was no longer appropriate following a review of the overall
business structure It was also announced that Mr Stephen
Webster would step down as Cheef Financial Officer of

the Company from 31 March 2010 with Mr John W Martin
succeeding him from 1 April 201G

The Committee agreed a package for Mr Martin, which 1s
considered to be competitive, appropnately incentivising

and in algnment with the Interests of the Company’s
shareholders This comprised an annual base salary of
£480,000, a maximum annual bonus for 2009/10 of 100 per
cent of base salary and total awards in 2009/10 of executive
share options and long term incentive awards of 125 per cent
and 80 per cent of base salary respectively A cash
allowance of 25 per cent of base salary n lreu of joining the
Company pension scheme was alse made to Mr Martin

Mr Marchbank recerved a termination payment and benefits
consistent with his entitlements upen his redundancy

The outgomng Chief Financial Officer, Mr Webster, receved
the contractual severance entitiernent of 12 months' salary
and benefits Under the respective share plan rules, all of his
share options and long term incentives, to the extent not
already exercised, lapsed on 31 March 2010 Mr Webster
continued to be elgible for a bonus payment for the financial
year 2009/10 to be pro rated for completed months’ service

Service agreements

The Executive Directors have service agreements with
Wolseley plc In each case, the notice perod 1s 12 months

if given by the Company and six months if gven by the
executive This reflects current market practice and the
balance that should be struck between providing contractual
protection to the Directors that 1s farr and promoting the
interests of shareholders Typically, upen terminaticn by the
Company, a payment would be made equal to the aggregate
of base salary, any pension contributions made and the cost
to the Company of providing other benefits to the executive
The Company would also seek to ensure that any termination
payment 18 mrtigated in the event that the executive finds
alternative employment dunng the notice penod

Director Date of service agreement
J W Martin 25 January 2010
| K Meakins 13 July 2009
F W Roach 27 February 2006
Other senior executives

The members of the Executive Commuttee, who are not on
the Board, are seniar executives whose roles are considered
able 1o significantly influence the ability of the Group to meet
its strategic objectives The Committee determines the level
of remuneration for this group, based on proposals from the
Group Chief Executive Therr total remuneration including
salary and benefits, actual bonus, and the fair value of

long term incentives granted or awarded dunng the year
ended 31 July 2010 18 summansed below
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Tota! remuneration 2009/10
(£000}

401-500

501-600

601700

701-800

801-900

1,201-1,300

Number in hand*

{2008/09 in brackets”)

02

1(1)

2{1)

2

1{0)

1{0)

*These figures reflect changes mads to the composition of the Executive

Committee dunng financial years 2008/09 and 2009/10 and for 2009/10
nsluds payments of annual bonus

Director share ownership

A share ownership programme {the “prograrmmme”) was
introduced with effect from 1 August 2004 Following the
capital reorganisation and share issue in 2009, the targets
were reset o take into account the changes resultting from
those actions The programme 15 designed to encourage all
Directors and members of the Executive Committes to bulld
up a shareholding in value equivalent to the following levels

Group Chief Executive 15 times basic salary
Other Executive Directors 1 times basic salary
Charrman and Non Executive
Directors

Executive Committee members

1 times annual fees
0 5 tirmas basic salary

For Executive Directors and members of the Executive
Committee, share ownership may be achieved by retaining
shares receved as a result of participating in a Company
share plan, after taking into account any shares sold to
finance opticn exercises or to pay a National Insurance or
income tax hability or overseas equivalent The programme
specifically excludes the need for executives to make a
personal Investment should awards not vest Normally these
levels of shareholding should be expected to be achieved
within three to five years from the time the indvdual 1s
ncluded in the programme The Committee has reviewed
and noted the progress which has been made towards
meeting these targets during the year Directors’ current
Interests in shares are set out below

Directors’ interests in shares (gudted)

The interests of the Directors in office at 31 July 2010, and
of thair connected persons, In the ordinary shares of the
Company at the following dates were

Ordinary shares of  Ordinary shares

10 pence each held at of 10 pence

31 July 2010 and at each held at

the date of thisreport 1 August 2009

G Davis* 3,679 3,411
A J Duff 3,508 2,240
A Le Goff 3,234 -
J W Martin - -
K Meaking 34,533 -
J 1 K Murray* 3,468 3,200
F W Roach* 15,824 13,570
N M Stein* 3,628 3,360
M P Waraing 3,199 -
J W Whybrow” 28,844 27,288

"As a result of the capital reorgamsation which was compietad on 2 Apnit
20089, each of the Directors noted above also holds a number of deferred
shares of 24 pence sach These deferred shares hold no value or voting rights
and accordingly have not been disclosed in the table above




Pensions {audrted)

Mr Webster participated in the Wolseley Group Retirement
Benefits Plan (the “Plan”) until the termination of his
employment on 31 March 2010 The Plan s a defined benefit
scheme and provides benefits based on final pensionable
salary The Company makes contnbutions to the Plan based
on the recommendation of the Plan actuary Bonuses
payable to Executive Directors are not pensionable While he
was an employee, Mr Webster contnbuted exght per cent per
annum of his pensionable salary to the Plan

Mr Webster was subject to the Plan specific earnings cap
on his benefits accrual, which for the Plan year 2009/10 was
£123,600 The Company had previousty agreed to provide
Mr Webster with benefits which were broadly comparable
with those that would have applied under the Plan had the
cap not been introduced, which were provided for by
payments inte a Funded Unapproved Retirement Benefit
Scheme (“FURBS"} Following the introduction of the Finance
Act 2004, the FURBS was no longer a tax efficient vehicle
to fund pension benefits Accordingly, since 6 Aprl 2008,
Mr Webster's benefits were provided through the Plan and
through a cash supplement which, together, were broadly
comparable to those to which he would previously have
been entitled

The table below shows, for Mr Webster, the amount of
benefit accrued under the Group's defined benefit pension
scheme as at his date of leaving on 31 March 2010

In accordance with the terms of the termunation of his
employment, Mr Webster received a payment equivalent to
12 months' benefits in relation to his pension contributions
An amount of £84,618 was paid to the Plan to prowide this
henefit, of which £3,888 was paid by Mr Webster In addition
to this, his life assurance cover was extended to 31 March
2011 A premium of £2,981 was paid to the insurers for

this cover

Messrs Marchbank and Roach, who are US citizens,
participated In the defined contnbution pension arrangements
of Ferguson Enterprises, Inc , recenng contnbutions at the

Defined benefits pension

Directors’ report — Business review
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level of 23 per cent of therr base salary Bonus 1s not ncluded
n the calculatton of Company pension contnbuticns The
following table shows the cost of the Group's contnbutions
dunng the financial year for these Executve Directors

Defined contnbutions 2010 2010 2009
pensions (US) $000* £000 £000
R H Marchbank 1249 796 137
F W Roach 220.3 1404 140

“Exchange rate used to convert the § to £ over the year to 31 July 2010
15 1 5699

Dunng his career with the Company, Mr Marchbank
partcipated in Fergusen Enterprise, Inc s Executive
Retirement Plans, which included the Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan (“SERP"}, pursuant to which the
Company contnbuted funding for certain penston benefits

In the accounts for the 2007/08 and 2008/08 financial years,
this funding was disclosed as £107,000 and £137,000
respectively As at the date of cessation of his employment,
the value of Mr Marchbank's accumulated benefit under

the SERP stood at $1,478,030 {the “SERP retirement

fund”) and this had nol vested at that date In recognition of
Mr Marchbank’s service to the Company, the Remuneration
Committee agreed to pay Mr Marchbank the amount that had
accurnulated in the SERP retrement fund, together with a
further contnbution of $119,716 In respect of his notice penod
After these payments have been made, the Company will
not be liable to make any further payments in relation to

Mr Marchbank’s penston

Brossette, a French subsidiary undertaking, has a
cormmitment to a former director, who i1s a French crtizen,

to pay an annual penston of €232,701 (2009 €231,123), with
a widow's entittement of 60 per cent, subject to an annual
Increase based on the agreed French pension index The full
actuanal cost of this arrangement was provided In previous
years as part of Brossette's ongoing pension obligations

The Company 1s guarantor of this future pension commitment
which at 31 July 2010 was estmated at approximately

£2 7 million (2009 £2 7 million)

Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 Listing Rules

Transfer value

of the net of

revaluation

Increase n Increase in pensicn

Pension  Increasa in Transfer Transfer  transfer value Pansion pension Increase

Age asat accumulated penston value value 2010 net of accumulated 2010 net of 2010 net of
31 March 2010 2010 2010 2009 contributions 2010 revaluatton contributions
2010 £ £ £ £ £ £ £ o

S P Webster 57 68,043 6316 1,383,677 1,199,033 168,073 68,043 6,316 107,741

Notes Until tus termination on 31 March 2010, Mr Webstar bullt up benefits at the rate of 1/30ths of the earnings cap, payable from age 80 On lsaving he was
granted one additional year of pension by the Company in lieu of notice of which he contnbuted an additional £9 838 Mr Webster also had a FURBS into which
no contributions were paid during the year whie he was employed
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Remuneration report continued

Long term incentives {audited)

The Company currently operates a long term incentive plan
under the Wolseley plc 2002 Long Term Incentive Scheme
{‘LTIS™), which was approved by shareholders in December
2002 and amended at the 2004 Annual General Meeting
The purpose of the LTIS 1s to reward executives for relative
outperformance of the Cempany against a defined list of
comparator companies The LTIS {as amended) provides for
awards of ordinary shares in the caprtal of the Company,
subject to the Company meeting TSR targets over separate
three-year penods All awards are made subject to the
achievemnent of stretching performance conditions

The measure of TSR has been selected as the appropnate
performance measure to ensure that the interests of the
Executive Directors and senior executives are more closely
altgned with those of the Company’s shareholders over the
long term (as further detaled on page 56) Calculations of
TSR are independently carned out and verified before being
approved by the Committee

The following performance conditions apply for awards made
under the LTI

Percentage of award
Wolseley s TSR position in the comparator group which will vest
Top decile 100%
Between median and top decile 26-09%
At mecian 25%
Below median 0%

The lists of comparator companies for awards made under
the LTIS are based upon the constituent members of the
FTSE 100 as at the respective dates of grant, excluding
banks, telecommunications, IT and utiity companies but
Including CRH plc and Travis Perkins plc, which compete
in the same sector as the Company A similar group of
companies will be selected for the 2010 awards under

the LTIS

The LTIS Is discretionary The Committee’s current policy

15 to make annual awards to the Group Chief Executive,
Executive Directors and other senior executives Awards are
made in shares, save where there may be material secunties
or tax law constrants in overseas junsdictions where the
scheme would be operated, In which case conditional
awards in cash would be considered A total of 488,269
shares were conditionally granted under the LTIS in Octaber
2009 to 87 employees (2008 104} Under the same plan,
27,135 shares were conditionally granted to Mr Martin on

1 April 2010 following his appointment to the Board as

Chuef Financial Officer

The maximum amount that can be granted under the LTIS
for each award 1s 200 per cent of base salary per annum,
however, awards made to date have not exceeded 125 per
cent, or In the case of the Group Chief Executive 150 per
cent, of base salary Each year the Committee assesses the
relevant proportion of awards ansing from both share options
and long term incentive awards Extant awards remain
subject to the achievement of performance condihions
following a participant's agreed retirement and vesting is only
determined at the end of the performance period

The following table sets out the percentage of each award
which has vested and the percentage of each extant award,
had it vested on 31 July 2010

Percentage vested on matunty or indicative
vesting percentage basa on

Year of award perormance as at 31 July 2010
2005 0% (vested 31 July 2008)
2006 0% {vested 31 July 2009)
2007 0% (at 31 July 2010)
2008 0% (performance after 24 months}
2009 0% (performance after 12 months)

Detalls of the awards condionally made under the LTIS to the Executive Directors in office during the year and the number of
awards outstanding at 31 July 2010 are shown in the table below

Interests m shares

Interests lapsed  held at 31 July 2010

Interasts in shares held Interests awarded Interests lapsed at date of or at date
Name of Director at 1 August 2009 during the year dunng the year? terrmination? of termination?
R H Marchbank 71,676 30,339 8,465 93,550 o
J W Martin - 27135 - - 27,135
| K Meaking - 67,555 - - 67,555
F W Roach 70,920 34,163 8115 - 96,968
S P Webster 72,568 32,968 9,650 95,886 0

1 The share pncs for awards made on 23 October 2009 was 1434 pence per share The share price for Mr Martn's award, made on 1 Apnl 2010,

was 1592 pence per share

2 Awards granted in 2006 did not pass therr TSR performance condibons and all such awards lapsed in October 2002

3 In accordance with the rules of the LTIS as a consequence of cessation of employment all of Mr Marchbank s awards which did not pass therr
respective performance condiions, lapsed on 1 March 2010 All of Mr Webster's awards lapsed as a consequence of his cessation of employment

on 31 March 2010

4 The outstanding three year performance penods range from 1 August 2007 to 31 July 2012
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Other mfotrna"hczn }
Directors’ interests in share options (audied)
Cptions held ’
Options at 31 July
held at Options QOptions Ophons 2010 or at
31 Juty granted lapsad exsreised date of Option Dates options
Name of Director/scheme  Date of grant 2009  during year dunng year dunng year termination price (p) normally exarcisable
R H Marchbank®
Executive options 121101 7194 7194 - 1947 12104 -111111
041102 7192 7192 - 2264 041105-031112
271103 7191 7191 - 3098 271106-261113
041104 6,558 6,558 3957 041107-031114
210305 7,753 7,753 4587 210308-200315
021106 18,012 18,0122 - 5008 021108-011118
011107 27,346 27,346 3359 O11110-311017
311008 87,923 87,923 1334 311011 -301018
0611098 - 57,243 57,243 1269 061112-051118
UK Sharesave 1704 09 1,304 1,304 701 010612-301112
ESPP 180309 110 10 - 743 010510-190510
J W Martin
Executve options 010410 - 37,688 37,688 1592 010413-310320
| X Meakins
Executive options 061109 - 162,679 152,679 1263 061112-051119
UK Sharesave 220410 - 1,277 1,277 1276 Q10617 -011217
F W Roach
Executive options 041102 3156 3,156 2264 041105-031112
271103 7,191 7191 3098 271106-261113
041104 4162 4,162 3957 041107-031114
021106 17,269 17,2692 - 5008 021109-011118
1107 27171 27171 3358 01 1110-311017
311008 87,357 87,357 1334 311011 -301018
06 1109 - 72,800 72,800 1269 051112-051119
ESPP 180309 410 43 367 - 743 010510-190510
220310 — 236 236 1385 010511 -210511
S P Webster®
Executive options 201099 2,398 2,398° - 1656 201002-191009
201000 11,990 - 11,9908 - 1438 201003-191010
121101 17,986 17,986 - 1947 21 -111111
051102 19,185 19,185 - 2264 051105-041112
281103 21,744 21,744 - 3098 281106-271113
051104 13,863 10,863 - 3857 051107-041114
031106 22,594 22,5942 - 5008 031109-021116
021107 36,171 36,171 - 3359 021110-011117
311008 93,782 93,782 - 1334 311011 -301018
061109 - 54,787 54,787 - 1269  061112-051119
UK Sharesave 1704 09 1,304 1,304 - 700 010612-301112

1 In accordance with the rules of the 1989 Scheme and the Employes Share Purchase Plan (*ESPPT), all options lapsed on 1 March 2010 as a consequence
of Mr Marchbank's cessation of employment All options granted under the rules of the 2003 Opbion Plan prior to October 2006 have an exercise penod of six
months following the date of cessation of employment, accordingly the options granted in 2004 and 2005 lapsed on 1 Septembaer 2010 For awards granted
after October 2006 the six-month penod commences from the date that the option would ordinanly have vested (the thurd anniversary of the date of grant)
and 15 subject to the satisfaction of the relevant performance condiions These options will therefore be subject to thew performance tests n 2010, 2011 and
2012 respectively The UK Sharesave options were exercised on 26 August 2010, in accordance with the tarmination provisions set out in the rutes of this
scheme A total of 429 oplions were exarcised, the remairing 875 lapsed

2 Options lapsed on 2 November 2009 as the 2006 grant did not pass the relevant EPS performance condiions

3 Under the ESPP, a total of 410 options were grantad in Apni 2009 However, the exchange rate increased betwsen the date of grant and the date of matunty
n May 2010, whuch led to a lewer number of options equating to total contnbutions bang exerased Accordingly the balance of options lapsed

4 In accordance wath the rules of the 1989 Scheme and the 2003 Opton Plan, all options lapsed on 31 March 2010 as a consequence of Mr Webster's
cessation of employment

5 Performance targsts were not passed prior to the options reaching the 10-year it from the date of grant

B Mr Webster exercised executive share options on 25 March 2010 in respect of 11,990 ordinary shares at an option pnce of 1458 pence {the closing
mid market pnce was 1604 pence) Of these, Mr Webster sold 425 ordinary shares at 1603 pence in order to cover tax and NIC withholdings

The highest mid-market pnce of the Company's ordinary 10 pence shares dunng the year was 1724 pence and the lowest
was 1160 pence The pnce of the Company's ordinary 10 pence shares on 31 July 2010 was 1438 pence
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Remuneration report continued

Executive share options (audited)

The Wolseley Share Option Plan 2003 (*2003 Option Plan™
received shareholder approval at the Annual General Mesting
held in November 2003 Congequently, no further options have
been granted under the Executive Share Option Scheme
1984 (1984 Scheme") nor under the Executive Share Option
Scheme 1989 (1989 Scheme™), which are now closed

No options under any of these schemes have been or will

be granted at a discount ta the relevant middle market price
at the time of grant and no option under any such scheme
can be exercised unless performance conditions have

been satisfied

The purpose of the 2003 Option Plan i1s to reward executives
for absolute EPS growth of the Company above UK inflation
All employees and Executive Directors of the Company and
its subsidiaries are eligible to parttcipate In the 2003 Option
Plan Participants are selected by the Committee at its
discretion and upon the recommendation of the Group Chief
Executive The Commitiee considers annually the levels of
grant, which are phased over time It also determines the
size of each award at the time of grant based on individual
performance, the ability of each individual to contribute to
the achievement of the performance conditions, and market
levels of remuneration Awards may nct exceed an amount
equal to five times salary for US-based executves and three
times salary for European-based executives, although the
Committee may, If It so determines, also use the five times
salary hmit In exceptional circumstances

No options may be granted more than 10 years after the date
onwhich the 2003 Option Plan was approved by the
Company’s shareholders In October 2008, the Committee
formally reviewed the 2003 Option Plan and concluded that
it remaned suitable and approprate as part of the senier
executive remuneration package

Satisfaction of options

The Company continually monitars the effect that awards
made undgr the various employee and discretionary share
plans may have on dilution imits Options are either satisfied
by the 1ssue of new shares or shares purchased in the
market In accordance with the recommendations of the
Association of British Ingurers (“ABI™), the number of new
shares that may be 1ssued to satisfy options granted under
the 2003 Option Plan and any other employee share scheme
15 restricted to 10 per cent of the 1ssued ordinary share
capital of the Company over any 10-year period Further, as
set out in the ABI principles and guidelines, the number of
new shares that may be 1ssued to satisfy executive options
granted under the 2003 Option Plan and any other
discretionary share scheme 1s restricted to five per cent of
the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the Company over any
10-year penod The Company adheres to these requirements
In additon, far US-based participants, the Company
ensures that the 2003 Option Plan i1s restnicted such that
the aggregate number of shares for which opticns may

be granted to such participants dunng the life of the 2003
Option Plan will not exceed 5 per cent of the issued ordinary
share capital of the Caompany as at the date the 2003 Plan
was approved by shareholders

At 31 July 2010, awards had been granted resulting in shares
being 1ssued or capable of being issued during the preceding
10 years under all of the Company's employes share plans
representing 9 01 per cent of the issued ordinary share
capital at that date and 4 24 per cent of the 1ssued ordinary
share capital under the Company’s discretionary share plans
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These percentages remain high, as the adjustment factors
used dunng the caprtal reorganisation and share issue In
2008 cannot be applied to shares which have aready been
issued under the Company's share option schemes in the
last 10 years, the penod used for this calculation 1t 1s not
expected that the granting of new optians in 2010 will breach
these imits

The extent to which the options will be capable of exercise
depends on the satisfaction of a performance condition,
its operation 1s explained below

Performance conditions

The extent to which options will be capable of exercise
depends on the satisfaction of a performance condition,
based on achieving growth above UK inflation in the
Company's EPS The performance of the Company 1s
measured over three financial years, starting with the financial
year In which the option grant takes place For all grants
undgler the 2003 Optron Plan made on or after 5 November
2004 there 1s a single three-year performance penod and,

in the event that the performance conditions are not fully

met on the third anniversary of the date of grant, the unvested
options will lapse Provided the performance condition has
been satisfied, an option may be exarcised at any time untl

it lapses, 10 years from the date of grant No amount 1s
payable on the grant of an option

The Committee may set different EPS targets from those
described below, provided that the new conditions are no
less challenging at the tme of resetting than when the initial
targets were agreaed As noted on page 58, during the
financial year 2009/10 the Committee decided to revise the
EPS targets in advance of grants made in Novemnber 2009
The Committee has decided to retain these higher targets
for grants made in 2010 Addtionally, the Committee has
decided to index the base EPS at the 2009 achieved EPS
which 1s higher than that achieved in 2010 In order for grants
made in 2010 to vest EPS must again be at historic levels by
212 and 2013 and exceed concensus expectations for 2011
It 1s the Commuttee’s opinton that these revised targets fulfil
the requirement that any adjustments be more challenging
than those previously set

The performance conditions are currently as follows

Shding scale for Shding scale for
ophens granted options granted
under the 2003 under the 2003
Option Planin Optien Plan from
2003-2008 2009/10

Total margin of growth over

Muttple of safary worth

of shares under option UK inflation after three years

First 100% of salary 9% 9%
Second 100% of salary 12% 15%
Next 50% of salary 15% 21%
Greater than 250% of salary 15% 10 21% 21%

The Committee can also vary the terms of existing options to
take account of any techrical changes, for example, changes
in accounting standards Any amended target will be
matanally no less challenging as a result of any such change
The Committee continues to believe that the EPS condition

Is approprate for share options, as 1t requires substantial
improvement n the Company's underlying financial
performance and complements the imherent requirement

for share price growth for an option to have value




In November 2009, 4,003,386 options were granted under
the 2003 Option Plan to 1,121 employees (2008 1,279} at
an option pnce of 1269 pence An award of 37,688 options
under the 2003 Option Plan was made to Mr Martin at an
option price of 1592 pence on 1 Aprl 2010 upon his
appointment to the Board The table on page 63 shows the
number of share options awarded to Executive Directors in
office during the year and the number of awards outstanding
as at 31 July 2010

Savings related share option schemes

audited)

The UK-based Executive Directors may also participate in the
UK Savings Related Share Option Scheme ("UK Sharesave”)
and the US-based Execubive Directors may participate in the
Employee Share Purchase Plan ("ESPP"} Under the UK
Sharesave, participants can enter into a savngs contract

for three, five or seven years, up to a maximum level of £250
per month {over all contracts} and are granted options to
subscnbe for shares in the Company Under the ESPP, a US
Code 423 Plan, US participants may enter into a one-year
savings contract to a maximum level of no more than $400
per month {the savings amount i1s inked to the £250 UK
savings amount and 1s therefore adjusted annually for
exchange rate purposes) The Board may determine that

the ophions granted under either scheme may be awarded
at a discount The maximum discount, which was appled to
the 2010 awards, 1s 20 per cent for the UK Sharesave, and
15 per cent for the ESPP, of the average market prices used
to determine the price of the award A similar scheme 15 also
offered to employees across Europe under the Wolseley
European Sharesave Plan (“WESP"}

Allowing for lapses completed after the date of grant, a total
of 385,326 cptions were granted in Apnl 2010 to 3,537
employees n the United States and Canada under the ESPP
and 385 employees across Europe under the WESP, at an
option price of 1356 pence per share In the UK, a total of
179,130 options were granted at an ophon pnce of 1276
pence per share to 1,003 employees

The table on page 64 sets out the number of share options
granted to Executive Directors durning the year under the UK
sharesave and ESPP and the number of options outstanding
as at 31 July 2010

Directors’ report — Business review
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Financial statements
Other imnformation

Performance graph

The following graph shows the Company's TSR performance
against the performance of the FTSE 100 Index over the
five-year penod to 31 July 2010 The FTSE 100 Index has
been chosen as being a broad equrty market index censisting
of companies comparable in size and complexity to Wolseley

Graphic removed

The Remuneration report has been recerved and adopted

by shareholders at each of the Annual General Meetings held
since 2003 Shareholders will again be invited to receive and
adopt this report at the Annual General Meeting to be held
on 20 January 2011

This report has been approved by the Board and 1s signed
on its behalf by the chairman of the Committee

On behalf of the Board

=

Andrew Duff
Chairman of the Remuneration Committes

27 September 2010
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Group income statement

Year ended 31 July 2010

2010 2010 2009 2009
Before  Exceptional Before Exceptional
excephional items 2010 exceptional #tems 2009
tems {note 4) Total tems (note 4) Total
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 2 13,203 - 13,203 14,441 - 14,441
Cost of sales (9,548) 8 {9,556) (10,436) (28) (10,464
Gross profit 3,655 (8) 3,647 4,005 (28) 3,977
Distnbution costs (2,624} (57) (2,681) {2,831) (266) (3,097
Administrative expenses
amortisation of acquired
intangibles (92) - {92) (105 - {105)
impaiment of acquired
intangibles (223) - (223} (490) - (490)
other (592) {270) (862) {743} (164) {207)
Administrative expenses total (907) (270) (1,177) (1,338) (164) (1,502)
Other income 1 3 14 16 - 16
Operating profit/(foss) 2,3 135 {332) (197) (148) (458) (606)
Finance revenue 5 14 - 14 72 - 72
Finance costs 6 (91) - {91} (217) - 217)
Associate - share of after tax loss 7 (24) 1 (13) ©) ©) (15)
Associate —imparment 7 - (41) (41) - - -
Profit/(loss) before tax 34 {362) {328) (302) (464) {766}
Tax (expense)income 8 (112) 74 (38) 72) 106 34
Loss from continuing operations (78) (288) (366} (374) (358} (732)
Profit/(loss) from discontinued
operations 9 - 26 26 (265) (176) {a41)
Loss for the year attnibutable to
equity shareholders (78) (262) (340) (639) (534} (1,173)
Eamings per share 11
Continuing operations and
discontirnued operations
Basic loss per share (120 6}p (558 O)p
Diluted loss per share (120 6)p (558 Op
Continuing operations only
Basic loss per share (129 8)p (348 2)p
Diluted loss per share {129 8)p {348 2)p
Non-GAAP measures of
performance 12
Continuing operations only
Tradng profit 450 447
EBITDA before exceptional tems 635 688

Prcfit before tax, exceptional items
and the amortisation and impairment
of acquired intangbles 349 293

Basic earmnings per share before

exceptional tems and the

amortisatton and imparrment of

acquired intangibles 741p 95 6p

Diluted earnings per share before

exceptional tems and the

amortisation and impatrment of

acquired ntangibles 739p 95 5p

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these consoldated financial statements
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Group statement of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 July 2010

Dwectors' report - Business review

Directors’ raport — Corporate governance
Finangial statements -
Other information |

2010 2009
Em £m

Loss for the year

(340) (1,173}

Other comprehensive Income

Exchange gan on translation of overseas operations 156 708
Exchange loss on translation of borowings and denvatives designated as hedges
of overseas operations 1) (381)
Cumulatrve currency translation differences on disposals recycled to mcome statement (13) (a7}
Actuanal loss on retirement benefits (93) (115)
Valuation gains on nterest rate swaps 5 -
Valuation losses on cash flow hedges reclassified to income statement 4 -
Avallable-for-sale investmenits reciassified and reported in net profit for the year - 20}
Tax on gains and losses not recognised in the income statement 23 42
Other comprehensive ncome for the year 11 187
Total comprehensive incoms for the year attnbutable to shareholders (329) {986}
Group statement of changes in equity
Retamed eamings
Share Share Transiation Hedging Own Profit and
capital premium reserve reserve shares  loss account Total
Year ended 31 July 2010 £m £m £m £m £m £m fm
Total comprehensive ncome - - 72 6 - (407) (329)
New share capital subscnbed - 4 - - - - 4
Creditt to equity for share-based
payments - - - - - 8 8
Net addrbon to/{reduction in)
shareholders’ funds - 4 72 6 - (399) (317)
Opening shareholders’ funds 241 1,152 228 (11) (78) 1,844 3,376
Closing shareholders' funds 241 1,156 300 (5 (78) 1,445 3,059
Retaned samings
Share Share Translation Hedgng Own Profit and
capital premium resenve reserve shares  loss acoount Total
Year ended 31 July 2009 Erm £m £m £m m £m £m
Total comprehensive INncome - - 280 {14) - (1,252) (986}
New share capital subscrbed 76 203 - - - 720 999
Purchase of own shares by
Employee Benefit Trusts - - - - {5} - 5)
Credit to equity for '
share-based payments - - - - - ] 9
Net addition to/(reduction i}
shargholders’ funds 76 203 280 {14) 5) {523} 17
Opening shareholders' funds 165 849 (52) 3 (73) 2,367 3,359
Closing shareholders' funds 241 1,152 228 (11} (78) 1,844 3376

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Group balance sheet

As at 31 July 2010

2010 2000
Notes £m m
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets goodwill 14 1,347 1,514
Intangible assets other 15 465 709
Property, plant and equipment 16 1,409 1,593
Investment 1n associate 17 - 53
Financial assets avalable-for-sale investments 18 3 3
Deferred tax assets 19 284 244
Trade and other recavables 21 182 116
Denvative financial assets 23 66 34
3,756 4,266
Current assets
Inventones 20 1,611 1,624
Trade and other recevables 21 1,850 1,883
Current tax receivable 1 124
Financial assets trading investments 22 - 1585
Denvative financial assets 23 10 23
Financial recevables construction loans (secured) 24 80 163
Cash and ¢ash equivalents 25 665 635
4,217 4,707
Assets held for sale 26 111 88
Total assets 8,084 9,061
Liabilities
Current habiihes
Trade and other payables 27 2,673 2,586
Current tax payable 177 173
Borrowings construction loans (unsecured) 24 80 163
Bank ioans and overdrafts 28 226 42
Obkgations under finance leases 30 14 12
Dervative financial labilities 23 5 25
Provisions 31 123 122
Retirement benefit obligations 32 23 33
3,321 3,156
Non-current hiabilities
Trade and other payables 27 83 59
Bank loans 28 778 1,857
Obligations under finance leases 30 61 59
Denvative financial labilittes 23 3 11
Deferred tax labilities 19 136 176
Provisions 3 223 244
Retrement benefit abligations 32 409 308
1,693 2,514
Liabiliies of disposal groups held for sale 26 11 15
Total iabilities 5,025 5,685
Net assets 3,059 3,376
Shareholders’ equity
Called up share capital 33 24 24
Share premium account 35 1,156 1,152
Fereign currency translation reserve 35 300 228
Retaned earmings 35 1,362 1,755
Equity shareholders’ funds 3,059 3,376

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 124 were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 September 2010

and were signed on its behalf by

Kok~

.J@W AAA A

lan K Meakins John W Martin
Group Chief Executive
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Group cash flow statement

Year ended 31 July 2010

Directors report — Business revléw
Diractors’ report — Comporate govermnance

Financial statements

Other information

2010 2009
Notes £m m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 36 705 1,200
Interest receved 18 66
Interest paid (69) (231)
Tax receved/(paid) 20 (27)
Net cash generated from operating actmties 744 1,008
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisttion of businesses (net of cash acquired} 37 (1) (18)
Disposals of businesses (net of cash disposed of (10) (15)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (54) ©1)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and assets held for sale 96 172
Purchases of intangible assets {30) (66)
Purchases of investments - {155}
Disposals of Investments 159 5
Net cash generated from/(used by} investing actmities 150 {168}
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the issue of shares to shareholders 35 4 999
Purchases of shares by Employee Benefit Trusts 35 - {5)
Repayments of borrowngs and denvatwes (992) (1.437)
Finance lease caprtal payments in (26}
Net cash used by financing actvities (1,005) (469)
Net cash {used)y/generated (111) 371
Effects of exchange rate changes 88 24
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts (23) 385
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the beginning of the year 40 598 203
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the end of the year 40 575 598
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Group accounting policies

Year ended 31 July 2010

The consohdated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{“iFRS") as adopted by the European Union, including
interpretations issued by the Intemational Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”} and its committess, and with those
parts of the Compantes Act 20086 appiicable to companies
reporting under IFRS The date of transition to IFRS was

1 August 2004

A summary of the principal accounting policies appled by
the Group In the preparation of the consolidated financial
staternents Is set out below

Basis of accounting

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the histoncal cost convention as modified by the
revaluation of avalable-for-sale investments and financial
assets and labiliies held for trading

Accounting standards and interpretations
adopted during the year

The Group has adopted IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial
Statements” (revised 2007) In the year This requires changes
In equrty to be shown Ina pnmary statement As a result,
changes In equity are disclosed n these consolidated financial
staterments In a pnmary statement rather than in the notes

The Group has also adopted IFRS 7 ([amendment) Improving
Disclosures about Financial Instruments The amendment
requires enhanced disclosures about farr value measurement
and hquidity nsk including the disclosure of farr value
measurements by level of a farr value measurement hierarchy

The Group has also adopted the following new financial
reporting standards, interpretations and amendments to
published standards in the year which have not had a matenal
effect on the results or the financial posiiion of the Group for
the year ended 31 July 2010

IFRS 2 (amendment) Share-based Payment
IAS 23 (revised) Borrowing Costs

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
IFRS 3 {revised) Business Combinations

IAS 27 (revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foraign Cperation

Exceptional items

Exceptonal items are those matenal tems which, by virtue of
therr size or incidence, are presented separately in the ncome
staternent to enable a full understanding of the Group's
financtal performance These exclude impairments of acquired
intangibles which are also presented separately n the income
statement Transactions which may give nse to exceptional
terns include restruciunngs of busness activites and gans or
losses on the disposal of businesses

Consolidation

The consclidated financial infformation includes the results of
the parent company and its subsidiary undertakings drawn up
to 31 July 2010

The trading results of businesses other than diecontinued
operations acquired or sold dunng the year are ncluded in
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profit on ordinary actvities from continuing operations from
the date of acquisition or up to the date of sale

Intra-group transactions and balances and any unrealised
gains and losses ansing from intra-group transachons are
eliminated on consohdation

Discontinued operations

When the Group has disposed of or intends to dispose of a
busmess component that represents a separate major fine of
business or geographical area of operations it classifies such
operations as discontinued The post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operations 1S shown as a single ine on the face
of the iIncome statement, separate from the other results of
the Group

Foreign currencies

items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s subsidiary undertakings are measured using the
currency of the pnmary economic environment in which the
subsidiary undertaking operates (the “functional currency”)
The consclidated financial statements are presented in
stering, which is the presentaticnal currency of the Group
and the functional currency of the parent company

The trading resuits of overseas subsidiary undertakings are
transiated into stering using average rates of exchange ruling
dunng the relevant financial penod

The balance sheets of overseas subaidiary undertakings are
translated into stering at the rates of exchange ruling at the
penod end Exchange differences ansing between the
translation mto sterting of the net assets of these subsidiary
undertakings at rates rubng at the begnning and end of the
year are recognised In the currency translation reserve as are
exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings to the
extent that they are used 1o finance or provide a hedge
against foreign currency net assets

Changes in the farr value and the final settlement value of
denvative financial nstruments, entered nto to hedge foreign
currency net assets and that satisfy the hedging condrtions
of IAS 39, are recognised in the cumrency translation reserve
(see the separate accounting policy on dervative financial
Instruments)

In the event that an overseas subsidiary undertaking ts sold,
the gain or loss on disposal recognised in the ncome
statement I1s determined after taking into account the
curmulative currency translation differences that are
attnbutable to the subsidiary undertaking concerned

Foreign currency transactions entered into dunng the year are
franslated no stering at the rates of exchange rubng on the
dates of the transactions Monetary assets and labiities
denominated in foreign cuwencies are retranslated at the rate
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date All currency
translation differences are taken to the income statement with
the exception of differences on foresgn eurrency borrowings to
the extent that they are used to finance or provide a hedge
against foreign currency net assets as detaled above

Revenue

Revenue is the amount recevable for the provision of goods
and services faling within the Group’s ordinary actvties,
excluding Intra-group sales, estmated and actual sales
retums, trade and early settlement discounts, value added tax
and similar sales taxes.




Revenue from the prowision of goods 1s recognised when
the nsks and rewards of ownership of goods have been
transferred to the customer The nsks and rewards of
ownership of goods are deemed to have been transferred
when the goods are shipped to, or are picked up by,

the customer

Revenue from services 1s recogrised when the service
provided to the customer has been completed

Customer loyalty credits are accounted for as a separate
component of the sales transaction in which they are granted
A portion of the farr value of the consideration receved 1s
allocated to the loyalty credits and deferred over the penod
that loyalty credits are redeemed

Revenue from the provision of goods and services is only
recognised when the amounts to be recognised are fixed
or determinable and collectability 1s reasonably assured

Cost of sales

Cost of sales Includes purchased goods, the cost of bnnging
inventory to its present location and condrtion, and labour and
overheads atinbutable to assembly and construction services

Vendor rebates

The Group enters into arrangements with certain vendors
providing for inventory purchase rebates These purchase
rebates are accrued as earmed and are recorded intially as a
reduction in nventory with a subsequent reduction in cost of
sales when the related product is sold

Business combinations

The Group has applied the purchase method in its accounting
for the acquisition of subsidianes

The cost of an acquisition 1s measured as the far value of the
assets given, equity instruments 1ssued and liabiities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange Identffiable assets
acquired and llabihies and contingent habilities assumed in a
business combination are measured inthally at their far values
at the acquistion dats, wrespective of the extent of any
minorty interest Acquistion related costs are expensed

The excess of the cost of acquisiion over the far value of

the Group’s share of the identfiable net assets acquired 1s
recorded as goodwill If the cost of acquisition is less than

the far value of the Group's share of the net assets of the

subsidiary acquired, the difference 1s recognised directly in
the ncome statement

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the farr value of the Group's share of the net identfiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary undertaking at the date

of acquisition Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiary
undertakings 1s included in intangible assets

Goodwill 1s not amortised but is tested annually for impairment
and camed at cost less accumulated impaiment losses
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold

Goodwll 13 allocated to cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units (*CGUs") for the purpose of mparment
testing Each of those CGUs represents the lowest level within
the Group at which the associated goodwillis monitored for

Financial statements
Other information

management purposes and are not larger than the reporting
segments determined in accordance with IFRS 8 “Operating
Segments”

Other intangible assets

An intangible asset, which i1s an identifiable non-monetary
asset without physical substance, 15 recognised to the extent
that it 15 probable that the expected future aconomic benefits
attnbutable to the asset will flow to the Group and that its
cost can be measurad reliably The asset 1s deemed to be
wentifiable when it 1s separable or when it anses from
contractual or other legal nghts

Intangtble assets, pnmanly brands, trade names and customer
relationships, acquired as part of a busness combination are
capitalised separately from goodwill and are camed at cost
less accumulated amortsation and accumulated mparrment
losses Amortisation is calculated using the reducing balance
method for customer relaticnships and the straight-ine
method for other Intangible assets The cost of the Intangble
assets I1s amortised over ther estimated useful lives as follows

Customer relationships 4 - 25 years
Trade names and brands 1-15years
Other 1 -4 years

Computer software that 1s not integral to an item of property,
plant and equipment Is recognised separately as an ntangible
asset and 15 camed at cost less accumnulated amorhisation
and accumulated impairment losses Costs include software
llcences, consulting costs attnbuiable to the development,
design and implementation of the computer software and
intermal costs directly attnbutable to the development, design
and implementation of the computer software Costs n
respect of traning and data conversion are expensed as
incurred Amortisation 1s calkculated using the straight-line
method so as to charge the cost of the computer software to
the income statement over its estimated useful Iife as follows

Computer software 3 -5 years

Property, plant and equipment (“PPE")

PPE i1s camed at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, except for land and assets
In the course of construction, which are not depreciated and
are camed at cost less accumulated impairment losses
Cost includes expenditure that 1s directly attnbutable to the
acquisiion of the tems In addition, subsequent costs are
included in the asset’s camying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as approprate, onty when it 1s probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item wall flow to
the Group and the gost of the item can be measured reliably
All other repairs and mantenance costs are charged to the
inceme statement dunng the financial pencd in which they
are ncurred

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-ine
method to allocate the cost of each asset to 1ts residual value
over its estimated useful Iife, as follows

Freehold buldings and long leaseholds 35 - 50 years
Short leaseholds over the pencd

of the lease
Plant and machinery 7 — 10 years
Fixtures and fittings 5-7years
Computer hardware 3-—5years
Motor vehicles 4 years

The residual values and useful Ives of PPE are reviewed and
adjusted if appropnate at each batance sheet date
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Borrowang costs directly attnbutable to the long-term
construction or production of an asset are captalised as part
of the cost of the asset

Leased assets

Assets held under finance leases, which are leases where
substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the
asset have transferred to the Group, are capitalised in the
balance sheet and depreciated over the shorter of the lease
term or their useful lives The asset 1s recorded at the lower
of its far value and the present value of the minmum lease
payments at the incephion of the lease The capital elements
of future obhgations under finance leases are ncluded In
labilties in the balance sheet and anatysed between current
and non-current amounts The interest elements of future
obhgations under finance leases are charged to the income
statement over the penods of the leases and represent a
constant proportion of the balance of capital repayments
outstanding in accordance with the effective interest rate
method

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the nsks and
rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases

The cost of operating leases {net of any ncentives receved
from the lessor) 1s charged to the income staternent on a
strasght-line basis over the penods of the leases

Assets and disposal groups held for sale

Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful ife, such as goodwill,
are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
imparment and whenever events or changes in creumstance
incicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable
Assets that are subject to amortisation and assets under
construction are tested for imparment whenever events or
changes in crrcumstances indicate that the camying amount
may not be recoverable An imparment 1055 1s recognised for
the amount by which the asset's camying amount excesds s
recoverable amount The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's far value less costs to sell and value In use

Inventories

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value Cost s determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFOQ)
method or the average cost method as appropnate to the
nature of the transactions in those tems of inventory The cost
of goods purchased for resale ncludes import and custom
duties, transport and handling costs, freight and packing
costs and other attnbutable costs less trade discounts,
rebates and other subsidies It excludes borrowing costs
Net realisable value 1s the estimated selling pnce in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable vanable seling
expenses

Taxation

Assets are classified as held for sale if ther camying amount
will be recovered by sale rather than by continuing use in

the business Where a group of assets and ther directly
associated liabilties are to be disposed of in a single
transaction, such disposal groups arg also classfied as held
for sale Far this 10 be the case, the asset or disposal group
must be avalable for immediate sale in its prasent condition,
and management must be committed to and have intiated a
plan to sell the asset or disposal group which, when intiated,
was expected to result in a completed sale within 12 months
Assets that are classified as held for sale are not depreciated
Assets or disposal groups that are classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell

Associates

Associates are all entibes over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20 per cent and 50 per cent of the
voting nghts investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting and are initialty
recogntsed at cost

The Greup's share of its associates’ post-acquistion profits or
losses 1s recognised in the income statement, and rts share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised n
reserves The cumulatve post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carmying amount of the Investment When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its nterest in the associate, iIncluding any other unsecured
recevables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the asscciate
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Cumrent tax represents the expected tax payabls (or
recoverable) on the taxable income for the year using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date and taking into account any adjustments ansing from
pror years

Deferred tax 1s provided in full, using the hability method, on
temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets
and labilities and therr carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements Deferred tax 1s not accounted for if 1t
anses from intial recognition of an asset or bability m a
transaction, other than a business combination, that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss

Deferred tax 1s determuned using tax rates {and laws) that have
been enacted or substantally enacted by the balance sheest
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax
asset 1s realised or the deferred tax lability 1s settlied Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that
future taxable profit will be available aganst which the
temporary difierences can be utiised

Deferred tax 15 prowded on temporary differences ansing on
nvestments in subsidianes except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future
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Derivative financial instruments

Denvative financial instruments, in particular interest rate
swaps and currency swaps, are used to manage the financial
nsks ansing from the business actwities of the Group and the
financing of those actvities There Is no trading activity in
denvative financial nstruments

At the inception of a hedging transaction entaling the use of
denvative financial nstruments, the Group documents the
relationship between the hedged item and the hedaging
instrument together wath its nsk management objective and
the strategy underiying the proposed transaction The Group
also documents its assessment, both at the inception of the
hedging refationship and subsequently on an ongoing basis,
of the effectiveness of the hedge in offseting movements in
the fair values or cash flows of the hedged items

Denvative financial nstruments are recognised as assets and
llabilities measured at therr farr values at the balance sheet
date Where denvative financial instruments do not fulfil the
cntena for hedge accounting contanead in (AS 39, changes in
therr far values are recognised in the income statement

When hedge accounting 1s used, the relevant hedging
relatonships are classified as far value hedges, cash flow
hedges or net investment hedges Where the hedging
relationship 1s classified as a far value hedge, the carrying
amount of the hedged asset or liability 1s adjusted by the
increase or decrease In its far value atinbutable to the hedged
nsk and the resulting gain or loss 1s recognised in the ncome
statement where, to the extent that the hedge 1s effective, it
will be offset by the change in the farr value of the hedging
instrument If the hedge no longer mests the crtena for hedge
accounting, the adustrment to the carmying amount of a
hedged item for which the effective mnterest method 1s used 1s
amortised to profit or loss over the pencd to matunty Where
the hedging relationship 1s classified as a cash flow hedge or
as a net Investment hedge, to the extent the hedge 1s
effective, changes in the far value of the hedging instrurment
ansing from the hedged nsk are recognised directly in equity
rather than in the ncome staterment When the hedged tem 1s
recognsed in the financial statements, the accumulated gains
and losses recagnised 1N equity are ether recycled to the
income statement or, If the hedged item results in a non-
financial asset, are recognised as adjustments to ts Nk
canying amount When a hedging instrurment expires or s
sold, or when a hedge no lenger meets the cntena for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gan or loss existing In equrty at
that time remains in equity and 1s recognised when the
forecast transaction is ulhmately recognised in the income
statement When a forecast transaction 1s no fonger expected
to oceur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in
equity 13 immediately transferred to the Income statement

Other information

Pensions and other post-retirement
benefits

Contrbutions to defined contnbutton pension plans and other
post-retirement benefits are charged to the income statement
as incurred

For defined benefit pension plans and other retirement
benefits, the cost s calculated annually usting the projected
unit crecit method and 1s recognised over the average
expected remaning service lives of participating employees,
i accordance with the recommendations of independent
qualfied actuanes The current service cost of defined benefit
plans 1s recorded within operating profit The total expected
retum from pension scheme assets less the total interest on
pension scheme liabilmes 1s recorded wathin finance revenue
if a gan and finance costs f an expense Past senice costs
resulting from enhanced benefits are recorded within
operating profit and recognised on a straight-line basis over
the vesting penod, or immediately if the benefits have vested
Actuanal gains and losses, which represent differences
betwaen the expected and actual returns on the plan assets
and the effect of changes in actuanal assumptions, are
recognised in full In the statement of comprehensive ncome N
the penaod in which they cccur The defined benefit iability or
asset recognised in the balance sheet compnses the net total
{or each plan of the present value of the benefit obligation at
the balance sheet date, less any past service costs not yet
recogmsed, less the far value of the plan assets, f any, at the
balance sheet date Where a plan 1s in surplus, the asset
recognised is Iimited to the amount of any unrecogrised past
service costs and the present value of any amount which the
Group expects to recover by way of refunds or a reduction in
future contnbutions

Trade receivables

Trade recewvables are recognised inmally at farr value and
meastired subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
Interest method, less provision for mpaiment A prowsion for
impatrment of trade receivables Is established when there 1s
objective evidence that the Group will not be ables to collect all
amounts due accorcing to the ongnal terms of the
receivables Examples of such evidence include significant
financial difficutties of the debtor, probability that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or
delinquency n payments The amount of the provisicn 1s the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the onginal effective interest rate The amount of the loss 15
recognised in the Income statement Trade recevables are
written off against the provision when recoverability 1s
assessed as being remete Subsequent recovenes of
amounts previously wntten off are credited to the income
staterment
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Construction loans

Share capital

Construction loan recevables are secured loans made to
builders 1o finance the constructon of properties or the
purchase of land These receivables are financed from bank
facihes which have a purpose clause under which the Group
can borrow to finance construction loan recevables, but only
to the extent that 1t has sufficient recevables to offset these
borrowings This clause has the consequence that any
borrowings designated for this purpose are repayable whan
the corresponding recevables are erther collected or go into
default In the latter case, amounts not expected to be
recoverable have to be funded from the Group’s normal
facilities

Accordingly, the Group restncts the amount designated as
construction loan borrowings to the recoverable ameunt of the
loan portfolic This amount 1s then disclosed separately n the
financial statements as it 1s not considered part of the Group's
net debt The construction loan borrowings are classified as a
current hability since the amounts are repayable when the
coresponding recewvables are collected, and the recevables
are classified as current assets

Construction loan recevables are recognised intally at far
value and measured subsequently at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for Imparrment

A provision for mpaiment of construction loan receivables 1s
established when there 1s objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
onginal terms of the recevables Examples of such evidence
include significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankrupicy or financial reorganisation,
and default or delinquency in payments The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estmated future cash flows
callectible from the debtor or recoverable from the disposal
of the asset on which the recenvable 1s secured, discounted
at the onginal effective nterest rate The amount of the loss

1s recognised m the income statement Construction loan
recervables are wntten off aganst the prowision when
recoverability 1 assessed as being remote Subsequent
recavenes of amounts previously wrtten off are credited

to the Income statement

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
Investments with onginal matunties of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings i current liabiihes on the balance sheet to the
extent that there 1s no nght of offset and no practce of net
settlement with cash balances
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The Company has two classes of shares, ordinary and
deferred shares, which are both classified as equity

Incremental costs directly attnbutable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduchon from
the proceeds, net of tax

Where any group company purchases the Company's equity
share caprital (treasury shares), the consideration paid,
mcluding any directly attnbutable incremental costs (net of
tax), 1s deducted from equity attnbutable to the Company's
equity holders until the shares are cancelled, reissued or
disposed of Where such shares are subsequently sold or
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly
attrbutable incremental transaction costs and the related tax
effects, 1s Included in equity attnbutable to the Company's
equity holders

Borrowings

Botrowings are racognised inibally at the far vatue of the
consideration receved net of transaction costs incurred

Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost with
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs}
and the redemption value being recognised in the Incorme
statement over the penod of the borrewings using the
effective interest method

Borrowings are classified as cunrent liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional nght to defer settlernent of the hablity for
at least 12 months after the balance sheet date

Financial assets

The Group classifies ts financial assets in the following
categones financial assets at far value through profit or loss,
loans and recevables, held-to-matunty mvestments, and
avallable-for-sale financial assets The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired
Management determines the classification of its financiat
assets at inial recognition and re-evaluates this designation
at every reporting date

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category compnses financial assets held for trading
which have been acquired principally for the purpose of
seling in the short term Denvatives also fall within this
category unless they are designated as hedges and the
hedge 1s effective for accounting purposes Assets in this
category are classified as current




(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and recevables are non-denvative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and with no intention of trading They are
included n current assets, except for matunties greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date, which are classified
as non-current assets Construction loans are shown
separately on the balance sheet Other loans and recenables
are ncluded in trade and cother recervables in the balance
sheet

(c) Held-to-matunty investments

Held-to-matunty investments are non-denvative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
matunties that the Group’s management has the postive
intention and ability te hold to matunty They are meluded in
non-current assets unless the investment 1s due to mature
within 12 months of the balance sheet date

(d) Available-far-sate financial assets

Avatlable-for-sale financtal assets are non-denvate financial
assets that are etther designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categones They are included In
non-cunrent assets unless management intends to dispose of
the financial asset within 12 months of the balance sheet date

Financial assets are intially recogrised at far value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not camed at farr value
through profit or loss Financial assets are derecognised when
the nghts to recerve cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all nsks and rewards of ownership

Avallable-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at farr
value through profit or logs are subsequently camed at farr
value Loans and recevables and held-to-matunty
Investments are subsequently camed at amortised cast using
the effective interest method Realised and unrealised gans
and losses ansing from changes In the farr value of the
“Financial assets at far value through profit or loss" category
are included in the Income statement in the penod in which
they anse Unrealised gains and losses ansing from changes
in the farr value of non-monetary secuntes classified as
avallable-ior-sale are recognised in equity When secunties
classified as avalable-for-sale are sold or mpared, the
accumulated farr value adjustments are included in the ncome
statement as gains and losses from investment secunties

The Group assesses at sach balance sheet date whether
there i1s objective evidence that a financial asset or a Group
of financial assets 1s Impaired In the case of equrty securties
classified as avallable-for-sale, a signficant or prolonged
decline n the farr value of the securnty below its cost is
considered as an ndicator that the secunbes are impared

If any such ewvidence exists for avalable-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss, measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss, 1s removed from equity and recognised In the
ncome statement

Financlal statements
Other information

Provisions

Prowvisions for emaronmental restoration, restructunng costs,
product and service warmanties and legal clams are
recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it 1s more
likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required

to settle the obligation, and the amount can be reliably
estmated Such provisions are measured at the present value
of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date The
discount rate used to determine the present value reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses

Provisions for insurance represent an estimate, based

on histoncal expenence, of the uthmate cost of settling
outstanding claims and clams incurred but not reported at the
balance sheet date on certain nsks retained by the Group

Share-based payments

Share-based incentives are prowded to employees under the
Group's executrve share option, long-term incentive and
employee share purchase schemes The Group recogrises a
compensation cost in respect of these schemes that 1s based
on the farr value of the awards, measured using Black-
Scholes, Binomial and Monte Carlo valuation methodologies
For equity-setiled schemes, the far value 1s determined at
the date of grant (including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions such as a requirement for employees to save} and
1s not subsequently re-measured unless the conditions on
which the award was granted are modified For cash-settled
schemes, the far value 1s determined at the date of grant and
Is re-measured at each balance sheet date until the hiability 1S
seftled Generally, the compensation cost 1s recognised on a
straight-hne basis over the vesting penod  Adjustments are
made to reflect expected and actual forfeitures dunng the
vesting penad due to the falure to satisfy senice conditions
or non-market performance condons

Dividends payable

Dmdends on ordinary shares are recognised in the Group's
financial statements in the pencd in which the dvidends are
approved by tha shareholders of the Company (generally n
the case of the final dvidend} or paid (in the case of intenm
dmdends)

Wolseley plc 77
Annual Report and Accounts 2010

Dtrect;)rs report - Business review
Dwractors’ repart — Corporata govermanca



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Year ended 31 July 2010

1. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial staternents in accordance with IFRS requires management to make estimates and assumptions
In certain crcumstances that affect reported amounts The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial staterments are n
the areas set out below

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Prowision 1s made against accounts that in the estmation of management may be impared Within each of the businesses
assessment is made locally of the recoverabilty of accounts recevable based on a range of factors including the age of the
receivable and the creditworthiness of the customer The provision 1s assessed monthly with a detaled formal review of
balances and secunty being conducted at the full year and half year Determining the recoverabiity of an account nvolves
estimation as to the likely financial condition of the customer and therr abilty to subsequently make payment if the Group Is
cautious as to the financial condition of the customer the Group may prowde for accounts that are subsequently recovered
Similarty if the Group 1s optimistic as to the financial conditron of the customer the Group may not provide for an account that
15 subsequently determined to be Irecoverable Furtherrore, while the Group has a large geographically dispersed customer
base, a slowdown in the markets in which the Group operates may resuft in higher than expected uncoflectible amounts

and therefore higher (or lower) than anticipated charges for Imecoverable recevables The amount relating to continuing
operations charged to the Income statement in 2010 0 respect of doubtful accounts represented 0 32 per cent of revenue
(2009 O 62 per cent)

Wolseley held a prowision for impaimment of recevables at 31 July 2010 amounting to £60 milion (2009 £81 milion}
Inventores

For financial reporting purposes the Group evaluates its inventory to ensure it 15 camed at the lower of cost or net realisable
valug Provisicn 1s made against slow mowving, cbsolete and damaged invertones Damaged inventones are identried and
written down through the inventory counting procedures conducted within each business  Prowvision for slow moving and
obsolete inventones 1s assessed by each business as part of ther ongoing financial reporting Obsolescence 1s assassed based
on compansaon of the level of inventory holding to the projected likely future sales Future sales are assessed based on histoncal
expenence, and adjusted where the manufacturer has mdicated that it will no longer continue to manufacture the particular tem
To the extent that future events impact the salsability of inventory these provisions coukd vary significantly For exarmple,
changes in specifications or regulations may render inventory, previously considered to have a realisable value in excess of
cost, obsolete and require such inventory to be fully wntten off The Group held allowances in respect of inventory balances at
31 July 2010 amounting to £140 milion (2003 £351 million)

Impairment of long-lived assets

Wolseley penodically evaluates the net realisable value of long-ived assets, including goodwill, other intangible assets, property,
plant and equpment and investments in associates, relying on a number of factors, mcluding operating results, business plans
and projected future cash flows

Assets that have an indefinite useful Iife, such as goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested for impament annually
and whenever events or changes in arcumstance indicate that the camyng amount may not be recoverable Assets that are
subject to amortisaton are tested for mpament whenever events or changes in circumistance indicate that the camying
amount may not be recoverable An impairment loss Is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds s recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset’s farr value less costs to sell and value n use
The valug in use 1S IN Most cases based on the discounted present value of the future cash flows expected to anse from the
cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates, cr from the indmdual asset or asset group Estimates are used in derving
{hese cash flows and the discount rate

As disclosed in notes 14, 15, 16 and 17, the Group has charged £402 millon in respect of the impaiment of long-lived assets
during the year ended 31 July 2010 (2009 £879 million)

The results of tests for mparment are sensitive to the assumptions made in the value n use calculations The Group has
estimated the effect of mcreasing the discount rate by one percentage pont, and of decreasing the trading margin for each
asset group by half a percentage point in the final year of the cash flow forecast The additional impaimment charges that would
ange from applying either of these alternative assumptions to those cash-generating units impaired in the year 1s £109 million
The impact on the Group’s other cash-generating units of the altemative assumptions would be a ¢harge of less than 2 per cent
of the carrying amount of tharr goodwill and acquired intangible assets of £1,585 mulbon at 31 July 2010

Captive tnsurance

The Group operates a caplive insurance company, Walseley Insurance Limited, which 1s registered and cperational in the Isle
of Man This company provides remnsurance exclusively to certan companies within the Group, prncipally to cover US casualty
and global property damage nsks Provision 1s made based on actuanal assessment of the lliabilities ansing from the insurance
coverage provided  The actuanal assessmment of the reserve for future clams necessanly includes eshmates as 1o the bkely frend
of future clasims’ costs and estimates as to the emergence of further claims subsequent to the year end An actuanal review of
claims 15 performed annually To the extent that actual claims differ from those projected the prowisions could vary significantly
At 31 July 2010, the provision for claims ansing from this insurance was £55 rmullion (2009 £57 milkon)
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1. Critical accounting estimates and judgements continued
Consideration receved from vendors

The Group enters mto agreements with many of its vendors providing for inventory purchase rebates pnmanty upon
achievernent of specified volume purchasing levels with many of these agreements applying to sales in a calendar year

For certain agreements the rebate nses as a proportion of purchases as higher quantities or values of purchases are made
The Group accrues the receipt of vendor rebates as part of its cost of sales for products sold, taking into consideration
cumulative purchases of Inventory to date and projected purchases through to the end of the qualifying penod Rebates are
accrued for each reporting pencd with an extensive reassessment of the rebates eamed being performed at the end of the
financial year and half way through the financial year The Group has agreements with numerous and geographically dispersed
suppliers, but a slow down In the markets in which the Group operates, or a significant change in the profile of products
purchased may result in purchases for the remander of the year diifenng signficantly from those projected Consequently the
rebate actually recerved may vary from that accrued in the financial statements

Legal, environmental and other provisions

The Group makes prowisions for known and potential legal claims and environmental and other matters, including asbestos
related Imigaton and product liability clams, where an cutflow of resources 1s considered probable and a reasonable estimate
may be made of the likely cutcome of the dispute or matter In establishing such provisions the Group takes into account

the relevant facts and circumstances of each matter and considers the adwice of its legal and other professional advisers

The ultmate habilty for potential legal claims and other matters may vary from the amounts provided and may be dependent
upon the discovery of facts that are cumrently uncertain, the outcome of Iitigation proceedings and possible settlement
negotiations There can, therefore, be no assurance that any losses that result from the final outcome of these matters will not
exceed the amount of the provisions reported in the Group’s financial statements At 31 July 2010 legal, environmental and
other prowisions amounted to £152 milion (2008 £107 million)

Onerous lease provisions

When the present value of the future cash flows receivable from the operation of leased assets Is less than the present value of
the rental payments to which the Group ts committed, the Group applies the shortfall firstly against the carrying amount of the
assets (n the case of finance leases} and then provides for any further onerous element of the contract (for all leases)
Determining the amount of such provision requires estimating the future net cash flows recevable In respect of these assets,
and in the particular case where the leased properties are vacant this requires assessing the likely penod for which the property
will remasn vacant, the cost of any works reguired to enhance s marketability and the rental Income receivable when the
property I1s sublet To the extent that actual cash flows receved differ from those estimated, the amount of prowision recognised
could differ matenally At 31 July 2010, the prowvision for onerous leases was £88 million (2002 £124 millon)

Impairment of construction loan receivables and foreclosed properties held for sale

A prowvision for impairment of construction loan receivables 1s made when management estimates that the present value of
future cash flows recoverable in respect of these recevables 1s less than the canying amount Detenmining the amount of such
provision requires estimabing the amount and tming of such future cash flows, which requires an assessment of

» the financial condition of the debtor,
» the abilty of the debtor to meet contractual payments, and

« 1 the event that the Group forecloses on the property on which the recevable 1s secured, the likely cost of enhancing the
marketability of the property, the lkely disposal proceeds, and the likely penod for which the property will be held to before a
sale can be achieved

To the extent that actual amounts recovered differ from those estimated, the amount of provision recognised could differ
matenally At 31 July 2010, the provision for impairment of construction loans recevables was £36 million (2009 £39 milion)
and the provision aganst foreclosed properties held for sale was £24 mifion (2009 £18 milkon)

Taxation

Accruals for tax contingencies require management to make judgements and estimates in relation to tax audit issues and
exposures Amounts accrued are based on management’s interpretation of country-specific tax law and the Ikelihood of
settlement Tax benefits are not recognised unless the tax positions are probable of being sustaned Once considered to be
probable, management reviews each matenal tax benefit to assess whether a proviston should be taken aganst full recognimion
of the benefit on the basis of any potential settiement through negotiation and/or Iigation  All such provisions are included in
creditors due within one year Any recorded exposure to interest on tax liabilities 1s prowvided for in the tax charge

Penstons and other post-retirement henefits

The Group operates defined benefit pension schemes in the United Kingdom and in a number of overseas locations that are
accounted for using methods that rely on actuanal assumptions to estimate costs and liabilties for nclusion in the financial
statements These actuanal assumptions include discount rates, assumed rates of retum, salary Increases and mortality rates,
and are disclosed In note 32

Waolseley plc 78
Annual Report and Accounts 2010



Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
Year ended 31 July 2010

1. Critical accounting estimates and judgements continued

While management believes that the actuanal assumptions are appropnate, any significant changes to those used would affect
the balance shest and income statement The Group considers that the most sensitive assumptions are the discount rate and
Iife expectancy The Group has estmated the sensitvity of the financial statements to changes in these assumptions as follows

(Increase)/
decrease
in hability

2010
Effect of a change n discount rate £m
Increase of 0 5% 107
Decrease of 0 5% (120)
Efiect of an increase in life expectancy
Increase of one year (33)

2. Segmental analysis

Wolseley's reportabla segments, which ars those reported to the Group's Executive Committee, are the operating businesses
overseen by distinct divisional management teams responsible for therr performance Al reportable segments denve ther
revenue from a single business activity, the distnbution of plumbing and heating products and building matenals The UK
segment, which was formerly named "UK and Ireland”, includes the results of the Insh business up to the date of disposal

The Group's business 1s not highly seasonal but revenue and trading profit are normally somewhat higher in the second half
The Group's customer base 1 highly diversified, with no indwdually significant customer

The revenue, trading profit and cperating {(oss)/profit of the Group’s reportable segments are detaled in the following tables

2010 2009
Revenue by reportabla sagment for continuing operations £m Em
USA 5174 5,820
Canada 765 700
UK 2,466 2,699
Nordic 2,001 2,113
France 1,937 2,144
Central and Eastem Eurcpe 860 965
Group 13,203 14,441
Amortisation
and
imparment of
Tradng  Exceptional acquired Operating
Trading profit (note 12} and operating profit/{loss} by reportable segment profit/(loss) items ntangibles profit/{loss)
for continuing operations for the year ended 31 July 2010 £m Em £m £m
USA 239 (16) (27) 196
Canada 41 (3) - 38
UK 2] (87) (105) (1o1)
Nordic 100 (8) (69) 23
France 30 (3) (114) 87)
Central and Eastem Europe 10 (20) - (10)
Construction loans )] (24) - {28)
Corporate (57) (171) - (228)
Group 450 (332) (315) (197)
Finance revenue 14
Finance costs (91
Associate — share of after tax loss (13)
Associate — impamment (41)
Loss before tax (328)
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2. Segmental analysis continued

Amortsation

and

imparment of
Trading Exceptional acquired Operating
Trading profit {note 12} and operating profit/(loss) by reportable segment profit/toss) terns intangibles profit/foss)
or contnueng operations for the year ended 31 July 2009 em em £m £m
USA 309 (80} 31) 198
Canada 32 {6) (1} 25
UK 55 (183} (123} (251)
Nordic 96 (11) 414y (329
France 32 20 (3} 9
Central and Eastem Europe - (85) 23) (108)
Construction lcans (24) 31) - {55)
Caorporate (53) (42) - (95)
Group 447 458) (595) (6086)
Finance revenue 72
Finance costs (217)
Share of after tax loss of associates {15)
Loss before tax (768)

The change in revenue and trading profit between the years ended 31 July 2009 and 31 July 2010 can be analysed into the
effects of changes in exchange rates, disposals and acquisttions with the remainder being organic change

2009 Exchange Disposals  Acquisitions gl%nang:g 200
Analysis of change In revenue £m £m £ £m £m
USA 5,820 3 - 20 (669) 5,174
Canada 700 86 - - 21 765
UK 2,699 2 (103) - {132) 2,466
Nordic 2,113 67 - - {(179) 2,001
France 2,144 38 (14 - {231) 1,937
Central and Eastern Europe 965 27 (90) - (42) 860
Group 14,441 223 (207) 20 (1,274} 13,203

When entities are disposed in the year, the difference between the revenue in the current year up to the date of disposal and the
revenue In the equivalent portion of the prior year 1s Included in organic change

2009 Exchange Disposals  Acquesmions S;g;ng;g 2010
Analysis of changa in trading profit (note 12) £m £m £m £m £m £m
USA 309 - - 1 71} 239
Canada 32 4 - - 5 a1
UK 55 - 23 - 13 o1
Nordic 96 3 - - 1 100
France 32 1 - - 3) 30
Central and Eastern Europe - 1 4 - 5 10
Construction loans (24) - - - 20 )]
Corporate (53} - - - 4) (57)
Group 447 9 27 1 34) 450
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2. Segmental analysis continued

Other segmental nformation

Central
and
Easten Construction
USA Canada UK Nordic France Europe loans Corporate Total

For the year ended 31 Juty 2010 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 68 4 33 23 a3 11 - - 172
Amortisation of non-
acquired mtangibles 2 - - 1 - 2 - 1 16
Impairment of non-
acquired intangibles - - - - - - - 138 138
Amortisation of acquired
intangioles 27 - 10 52 3 - - - 92
fmpament of acquired
intangibles - - 95 17 111 - - - 223

97 4 138 a3 147 13 - 149 64
Additions to property,
plant and equipment 8 2 12 11 23 26 - - 82
Additions to non-acquired
Intangible assets 2 - - - - 1 - 12 15

10 2 12 11 23 27 - 12 97
Additions to goodhwaill 4 - - - - - - - 4
Additions to acquired
intangible assets 2 - - - - - - - 2
Segment assets 2,304 357 1,166 1,753 902 392 117 64 7,055
Recanciliation to total
assets as reported in the
Group balance sheet
Deferred tax assets 284
Financial assets — cunrent
and non-current 3
Current tax recewvable 1
Derivative financial assets 76
Cash and cash
equivalents 665
Total assets as reported In
the Group balance sheet 8,084
Segment labilies 929 136 1,042 608 458 214 82 156 3,625
Reconcilation to total
llabiities as reported in the
Group balance sheet
Current tax payable 177
Bank loans and overdrafts 1,004
Oblgations under finance
leases 75
Denvative financial
labdities 8
Deferred tax labilties 136
Total izbities as reported
W the Group balance sheet 5,025
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Orther infarmation

Central
and Dyscon-
Eastem  Construction tnued

usAa Canada UK Nordic France Europe lbans Corporate  operabons Total
For the year ended 31 July 2009 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Depreciation of property,
plant and egquipment 85 4 52 24 35 12 - 1 15 228
Impairment of property
plant and equipment - - 34 - - 8 - - 16 58
Amorbsation of non-
acquired intangibles 3 - 1 1 - 2 - 12 - 19
Imparrment of non-
acquired intangibles - - - - - 3 - 40 - 43
Amoertisation of acquired
ntangibles 31 1 14 55 3 ] - - 12 117
Imparment of acquired
ntangibles - - 109 359 - 22 - - 288 778

119 5 210 439 38 48 - 53 331 1,243
Additions to property,
plant and equipment 10 2 19 25 30 5 - - 3 94
Additions to non-acquired
intangible assets 2 - - - 1 - - 74 - 77

12 2 19 25 31 5 - 74 3 171
Segment assets 2,237 305 13%4 1847 1,188 47 207 195 - 7,790
Reconciliation to total
assets as reported in the
Group balance sheet
Investment in associate 53
Deferred tax assets 244
Financial assets — current
and non-current 158
Current tax recewable 124
Denvative financial assets 57
Cash and cash equivalents 635
Total assets as reported in
the Group balance sheet 9,081
Segment liabilities 856 106 Q27 546 565 220 165 145 - 3530
Reconciiation to total
labilities as reported in the
Group balance sheet
Current tax payable 173
Bank loans and overdrafts 1,699
Obhgations under finance
leases 71
Denvative financial labilities 36
Deferred tax habities 176
Total labidities as reported
in the Group balance sheet 5,685
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3. Amounts charged in arriving at operating (loss)/profit

2010 2009
£m Em

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 172 213
Impaimment of property, plant and equpment - 42
Amortisation of non-acquired Intangible assets 16 19
Imparment of non-acquired intangible assets 138 43
t.oss on disposal of businesses and revaluations of disposal groups 57 40
toss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and assets held for sale 7 6
Staff costs {hote 13} 1,925 2,131
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 92 105
Imparment of acquired ntangble assets 223 480
Operating lease rentals land and buldings 244 222
Operating lease rentals plant and machinery 41 35
Amounts Included in costs of goods sold with respect to inventory (note 20) 9,126 10,339
Amounts credited 10 reverse write downs of Inventory 9 (13)
Trade recevables Impaiment 43 90
Construction loan recevables impaiment 20 38
Durng the year the Group obtained the following services from the Company’s auditor and its
associates
Fees for the audit of parent company and consolidated financial statements 07 086
Other services
— Fees for the audit of the Company’s subsidianes pursuant to legislation 30 43
— Fees for other services pursuant to legislation 12 28
~ Taxation 45 54
- Other services 10 03
Total fees payable to the audrtors 104 134

Operating lease rentals land and buildings shown above excludes exceptional charges of £25 miflon relating to future loase

rentals on vacant properties (2009 £153 million}

4. Exceptional items

Exceptional temns are those matenal tems which, by virtue of therr size or Incidence, are presented separately in the income

statement to enable a full understanding of the Group's financial performance

Exceptional tems included in operating profit from continuing operations are analysed by segment as follows

2010 2009

£m £m
USA (16) {80)
Canada (3) 6}
UK (87) (183}
Nordic 8 {11
France ()] {20)
Central and Eastem Europe (20) {85)
Construction loans 24 31)
Corporate (171) {42)
Group (332) (458
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Excepticnal tems included in operating profit from continung operations are analysed by purpose as follows

2010 2000

£m £m
Staff redundancy costs (30$) {75}
Provisions for future lease rentals on closed branches and asset wnte-downs (51) (271)
Restructunng costs (81) (346)
White-down of construction loan portfolio (24) (31)
Impairment of software assets under construction (note 15) (138) 41)
Cther costs ansing from revised approach to the Group’s Business Change Programme (note 15) (32) -
L.oss on disposal of businesses and revaluations of disposal groups (57) (40)
Group (332) (458}

The Group’s associated undertaking released certain restructunng provisions dunng the year The Group's share of the after tax
credt to income of £11 millien has been disclosed as an exceptional tem (2009 restructunng costs of £6 milion) In additon
the Group has recorded a £41 milkon imparment of the asscoiate as an exceptional tem (note 7)

Exceptional items relating to disconhnued operations are detaled in note 9

5. Finance revenue

2010 2009
£m £m
Interest recevable — continuing operations 14 72
Net income recevable on construction loans included n finance revenue and finance costs amounted to £5 millon
(2009 £8 milion)
6. Finance costs
2010 2009
fm £m
Interest payable
- Bank loans and overdrafts 61 193
- Finance lease charges 5 5
Discount charge on recevables funding arrangements 6 12
Net pension finance cost {note 32} 13 10
Unwind of discount on provisions 3 -
Valuation {gainsilosses on financial nstruments
— Denvatives held at farr value through profit and loss (30) (43
- Leans in a fair value hedging relationship 29 37
- Ineffectiveness recognised in respect of cash flow hedges - 1
— Valuation losses on cash flow hedges reclassified from equity 4 -
— Impaiment of avalable-for-sale investment - 2
Total finance costs — continuing operations 91 217
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7. Results of associate
a) Share of after tax loss

2010 2009

£m £m
Share of after tax loss of associate before exceptional items (24) (9)
Share of after tax exceptonal tems of associate 1 {6)
At 31 July 2010 (13) {15}

On 6 May 20089 the Group sold 100 per cent of the shares of its subsidiary Stock Building Supply Holdings LLG to Satum
Acquisition Holdings LLC ("Satum”) in exchange for 49 per cent of the voting nghts and common equity of Saturn and norminal
consideration Since 6§ May 2009 additional non-voting equity has been 1ssued by Saturn such that as at 31 July 2010 the
Group had a 44 per cent interest In its common equity

The associate released certain restructunng provisions dunng the year The Group's share of the after tax credit to income of
£11 milion has been disclosed as an exceptional tem (2009 net restructunng costs of £6 million)

In the year ended 31 July 2010, Satumn recorded revenue of £605 rmilkon and a loss after tax of £29 milon In the penod from
6 May 2009 to 31 July 2009 Saturn recorded revenue of £110 milion and a loss after tax of £33 million

b) Impairment

During the year ended 31 July 2010 Saturn continued to be loss making due to challenging conditions in #ts markets
Consequently there I1s significant uncertanty as to whether the Group will receve dvidends or other returns from s investment
In the future and therefore the Group has fully impaired the carmying value of its investment at year end

8. Taxation

2010 2009
The tax charge/lcredit) for the year compnses fm £m
Current year tax charge 81 139
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of pnor years (32) ()
Total current tax charge 498 130
Deferred tax credit ongination and reversal of temporary differences (t1) (164)
Total tax charge/{credit) — continuing cperations 38 (34}

The cumrent tax pnor year credi 1s £32 milton The averall pnor year tax charge taking Into account prior year movernents in
deferred tax 1s £15 milion

2010 2009

Tax on tems credited to the statement of other comprehensive Income £m €m
Deferred and current tax credit on actuanal loss on retirement benefits 26 36
Deferred tax charge on change in far value of cash fiow hedges (3) -
Deferred tax credit on avalable-for-sale investments - B
Total tax on items credited to other comprehensive ncome 23 42
2010 2008

Tax reconciliation % %
Statutory UK corporation tax rate 28 28
Pror year amounts (5) 2
Non-deductible amortisation and impaiment of acquired intangibles (18) (19)
Cther non deductible and non-taxable items (12) (7}
Share of loss of associate disclosed net of tax 4) 2)
Higher average tax rates n overseas companies - 2
Effective tax rate on loss before tax — continuing operations (1) 4
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8. Taxation continued

2010 2009
The tax expense can be analysed as follows £m £m
UK 12 (26)
Overseas 37 156
Current tax — continuing cperations 49 130
UK 37} (49
Overseas 26 (115}
Deferred tax — continuing operations 11 (164}

9. Discontinued operations

On 6 May 2009, the Group completed the sale of Stock Building Supply Holdings LLC In accordance with IFRS 5,
“Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations”, this business was classified as discontinued

(a) The results from the discontinued operations, which have been included in the consolidated income statement,
are as follows

2010 2009
Before 2010 Befare 2009

exceptional  Exceptional 2010 exceptional Exeeptional 2009

temns items Total tems fems Total

£m £m £m £m £m £rn

Revenue - - - 1,140 - 1,140

Cost of sales - - - (896) - (896)

Gross profit - - - 244 - 244

Operating expenses - - -

amortisation of acquired ntangibles - - - {12) - {12)

impatrrment of acquired intangibles - - - (288) - (288)

other - - - (361) (156) (517)

Operating expenses total - - - (661) (156) {817}

Operating loss before tax - - - {417) (156) {573)

Tax credit - - - 152 61 213

Loss on disposal of Stock - 09 (19) - {159) (159)

Tax credit on loss on disposal of Stock - 45 45 - 78 78

Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations - 26 26 {265} (176) (441)
Earnings pet share '
Discontinued operations I

Basic eamings/{loss) per share 9 2p {209 8p

Diluted eamings/{loss) per share 92p {209 8)p

The £26 million credited to discontinued operations in 2010 was generated from movements In tax, provistons and other items
ansing from the sale of Stock Building Supply in 2009

The exceptional tems included in operating loss before tax from discontinued operations in 2009 refate to restructunng actions
before the disposal and compnse staff redundancy costs of £9 million and prowvisions far future lease rentals on closed branches
and asset wnte-downs of £147 mullion
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9. Discontinued operations continued

(b) Taxation
2010 2009
£m £m
Current year tax credit - {75)
Adustrments to tax charge in respect of pnor years - -
Total current tax credit - {75)
Deferred tax credit ongination and reversal of termporary differences - (138)
Total tax credit from discontinued operations excluding tax on loss on disposal of Stock - 213)
(¢) Cash flows from discontinued operations included in the cash flow statement are as follows
2010 2009
£m £m
Net cash generated from/{used In) operating actmities 130 64)
Net cash used in investing actvities 1y (12)
Net cash used in financing actaities - -
Net cash generated from/{used In} discontinued operations 123 (76)

Atax loss ansing on the disposal of Stock Building Supply Holdings LLG was camed back aganst taxable US profits of earlier
years resulting in a £130 millon tax refund in the year

10. Dividends
No dwvidends were approved or paid in 2009 or 2010 and no dwvidend 1s proposed for the year ended 31 July 2010

11. (Loss)/earnings per share

Basic loss per share from continuing and discontinued operations of 120 6 pence (2009 loss per share of 558 O pence} is
calcutated on the loss for the year attnbutable to shareholders of €340 mullion (2008 loss of £1,173 millon) on a weightaed
average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue dunng the year

Basic loss per share from continuing operations of 129 8 pence (2009 loss per share of 348 2 pence) 1s calculated on the loss
after tax from continuing operations of £366 milion (2009 loss of £732 milklor} on a weighted average number of erdinary
shares In 1ssue dunng the year, excluding those held by Employee Benefit Trusts, of 282 miion {2009 210 milion) As detarfed
in note 12 below, the Group believes that profit measures before exceptional items and the amortisation and impairment of
acquired intangibles provide valuable additional information for users of the financial statements Basic eamings per share from
continuing operations, before exceptional items and the amortisation and impaiment of acquired intangibles, has, therefore,
been presented in the following table

Conbnung operalions 2010 2009
Before exceptional tems and the amortisation and impairment of acquired intangibles 74 ip 95 6p
Add back exceptional tems {net of tax) oz (1703)p
Add back amortisation and impairment of acquired intangbles (net of deferred tax) (101 8)p (273 5)p
Basic loss per share (1288)p (@482)p

The impact of all potentially ditutive share gptions en eamings per share would be to increase the weighted averags number of
shares inissue to 283 milllon (2009 211 mulion) The diluted loss per share from continuing operations 1s also 129 8 pence
(2009 loss per share of 348 2 pence) Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations before exceptional tems and the
amorhsation and imparment of acquired intangbles 1s 73 @ pence {2009 985 5 pence)
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12. Non-GAAP measures of performance

Trading profit 1s defined as operating profit before exceptional items and the amortisation and impaiment of acquired
ntangibles s a non-GAAP measure Exceptional items are matenal non-recumng ttems which are excluded from trading profit
to enable a clear and consistent presentation of the Group's underiying financial performance In addition, the cumrent
businesses within the Group have ansen through intermal organic growth and through acquisstion Operating profit includes only
the amortisation and imparment of acquired intangibles ansing on those businesses that have been acquired subsequent to

31 July 2004 and as such does not reflect equally the performance of businesses acquired pnor to 31 July 2004 (where no
amortisation or impairment of acquired ntangibles was recogmsed), businesses that have developed organically (where no
Intangibles are attnbuted) and those businesses more recently acquired (where amortisation and impairment of acquired
Intangibles 1s chargedy)

The Group believes that trading profit prowdes valuable additional mformation for users of the financial statements in assessing
the Group’s performance since tt provides information on the performance of the business that local managers are more directly
able to Influence and on a basts consistent across the Group The Group uses trading profit and certan key parformance
indicators, calculated by reference to trading profit, for planning, budgeting and reporting purposes and for its intemnat
assessment of the operating performance of ndmdual businesses within the Group

2010 2009
Continuing operations £m &m
Operating loss {197) {606)
Add back armorbisation and impainrment of acquired intangibles 315 595
Add back exceptional tems 332 458
Trading profit 450 447
Depreciation, amortisation and impanmment of property, plant and equipment and software excluding
exceptional tems 185 241
EBITDA before exceptional termns 635 688
L.oss before tax (328) {766)
Add back amortisation and imparrment of acquired intangibles 315 595
Add back exceptional tems 362 464
Prafit before tax and exceptional tems and the amortisaton and imparment of acquired intangbles 349 293
Tax {expense)incomea (38) 34
Add back deferred tax credit on the amortisation and impairment of acquired intangibles (28) 20)
Add back tax credit on exceptional tems (74) {(106)
Tax charge before exceptional tems and the amortisation and impairment of acquired intangibles (140) 92)
13. Employee information and Directors’ remuneration

2010 2009
Emplayes benefit costs £m £m
Wages and salanes 1,607 1,765
Social secunty costs 248 282
Pension costs ~ Defined contnbution schemes 35 43
Pension costs — Defined benefit schemes (note 32} 27 32
Share options granted to Directors and employees 8 9
Total employee benefit costs — continuing operations 1,925 2,131

Detalls of Directors’ remuneration and share options are set out in the Remuneration report on pages 55 to 65, which form part
of these financial statements The aggregate emoluments for all key management are set out n note 41

Average woolkdy number of amployses 2010 2009
USA 17,108 19,054
Canada 2,503 2,691
UK 10,678 13,731
Nordic 6,444 7,036
France 8,831 9,666
Centrat and Eastern Europe 2,615 2,904
Construction loans 47 50
Group 48,226 55,132

The average weelly number of Corporate head office employees 1s included in UK in the above table
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14. Intangible assets - goodwill

£m
Cost
At 1 August 2009 2,049
Exchange rate adjustment 32
Acquisthions 4
Disposals and transfers (116)
At 31 July 2010 1,969
Accumulated impairment losses
At 1 August 2009 535
Exchange rate adjustment (6)
Imparment charge for the year 205
Disposals and transfers (112)
At 31 July 2010 622
Net book amount at 31 July 2010 1,347
£m
Cost
At 1 August 2008 2,185
Exchange rate adjustment 250
Disposals and transfers (356)
At 31 July 2009 2,049
Accumulated impaiment losses
At 1 August 2008 160
Exchange rate adjustment 55
Imparment charge for the year 669
Disposals and transfers {349)
At 31 July 2009 535
Net book amount at 31 July 2009 1,514
The carrying value of goodwill by segment i1 as follows
2010 2009
£m £m
USA 392 385
Canada 95 85
UK 219 299
Nardic 461 475
France 134 245
Central and Eastem Europe 46 45
Group 1,347 1,514
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14. Intangible assets ~ goodwill continued

Directors’ report — Business review
Directors’ rapart — Corporate governance

Financial statements
Other information

All goodwill has ansen from bustness combinations On transition to IFRS, the balance of goodwill as measured under UK GAAP

was dllocated to cash-generating units and groups of cash-generating units (*CGUs"™) These are independent sources of

income streams, and represent the lowest level within the Group at which the associated goodwill 1s monriored for management

purposas, which may be at country, dmsional, brand or regional level Goodwill ansing on business combinations after
1 August 2004 has been allocated to the CGUSs that are expected to benefit from that business combination

The Group tests goodwill annually for impaimment, or more frequently If there are indications that goodwill right be impaired

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations These calculations use cash flow

projections based on five year financial forecasts approved by management The key assumptions for these forecasts are those
regarding revenue growth, trading margin and the level of working capital required to support trading, which management

estimates based on past expenence, reflecting the cyclicality of eamings, and expectations of future changes in the market

To prepare value In use calculations, the cash flow forecasts are extrapolated after the five year penod at an estimated average
long-term nominal growth rate for each market {ranging from 1 4 per cent to 2 5 per cent), and discounted back to present
value The discount rate assumptions use an estimate of the Group’s post-tax weighted average cost of capital of 8 3 per cent,
based on the five year histonc volatiity of Wolseley shares and on benchmark interest rates The pre-tax discount rate which

ranges from 10 per cent to 12 per cent has been applied to the nsk adjusted cash flows of each CGU

Imparrment tests were performed for all CGUs dunng the vear ended 31 July 2010 These impaimment reviews have resulted in

the recording of the following mpairment charges

Imparment charge
GCther scquired Pro-tax Long-term
Goodwall intangibles Total discount growth
CGU £m £m £m rate used rate used
Brandon Hire 38 12 50 11% 25%
Encon 42 - 42 11% 25%
Electnc Center - 3 3 11% 25%
UK segment 80 15 a5
PBM 102 - 102 11% 25%
Brossette 8 1 9 11% 25%
France segment 110 1 111
Woodcote 15 2 17 12% 25%
Nordic segment 15 2 17
Total 205 18 223

Market conditions have been more challenging than expected in France and a more gradual recovery in profit 1s now expected
In addmion the iImplementation of unfavourable suppler payment legislation has affected the level of workeng capital required to
support the business As a result of reflecting these changed expectations in the valug in use calculations of Brossette and
PBM, all of the goodwilt and other acquired intangible assets relating to Brossette have been impaired and an impairment

charge has been recorded against the goodwill relating to PBM The camying value of the remaming goodwill and other acquired

intangbles retating to PBM was £144 million at 31 July 2010

The UK segment has continued to expenence challenging market conditions and this has been reflected in reduced
expectations in its value In use calculations for certain businesses Goodwill and acquired intangibles relating to the Brandon
Hire and Electne Center businesses have been fully impared The camying value of the remamming goodwill and other acquired

ntangbles refating to the Encon business was £50 million at 31 July 2010

The Woodcote business in the Nordic segment has continued to perform below expectations as a result of difficult market
conditions and its long-term outlook has been downgraded Consequently its goodwll and other acquired intangibles have

been fully impaired
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15. Intangible assets - other

Trade names Customer
Software  andbrends relationships Other Total
fm £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 August 2009 283 31 526 M 1,191
Exchange rate adustment 1 - 11 2 14
Addtions 15 - - 2 17
Disposals and transfers (4) 27 {29) - (80)
At 31 July 2010 295 314 508 45 1,162
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
At 1 August 2002 m 88 260 23 482
Exchange rate adjustment 1 - 5 - 6
Amorhisation charge for the year 16 25 €1 6 108
Imparment charge for the year 138 9 8 1 156
Disposals and transfers {4) (25) (26) - (55)
At 31 July 2010 262 97 308 30 697
Net book ameount at 31 July 2010 33 217 200 15 465
Trade names Custamer
Software and brands  relabonships Other Total
tm £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 August 2008 205 323 657 43 1,228
Exchange rate adjustment 4 22 103 5 134
Additions 77 - - - 77
Disposals 3 {4) {234) ] {248)
At 31 July 2009 283 341 526 41 1,13
Accumulated amortisation and impaiment losses
At 1 August 2008 50 61 257 19 387
Exchange rate adjustment 2 5 46 - 53
Amortisation charge for the year 19 25 84 8 136
{mparment charge for the year 43 1 108 2 152
Disposals @ (4} (233) (6) {246)
At 31 July 2009 111 88 260 23 482
Net book armount at 31 July 2009 172 253 266 18 709

Software assets are generally either purchasss from third parties or intemally generated Cther intangible assets anse on
tbusiness combinations Included in the amounts above are £8 milion (2009 £134 millon) relating to assets under construction

In December 2009 the Board determined that the branch deployment of the supply chain management part of the Group's
Business Change Programme, that was intended to commence in 2010, would be deferred for a penod of at least 24 months
after which time the future nugration plan would be reconsidersd Given the uncertainty surrounding future deployment,

the Board currently believes that it cannot conclude that 1t s probable that deployment will recommence and therefore certain
software assets under development, held at the Group centre, with a book value of £138 milion have been impared Total
software assets relating to the Group’'s Business Change Programme now have a book value of £26 milion In addrtion the
Group has provided for a further £32 milion of costs relating to contractual and constructive obligations which have been
classified as an exceptional tem (see note 4)

More details on the impairment charge for the year in respect of trade names and brands and customer relationships
15 provided in note 14
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Directors' repori — Business review

Directors'’ report — Corporate governance
Financial statements -
Other information

16. Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings
Cperating Plant
Finance leasehold machmery
Freehold lease Iimprovements equipment Total
£m £m £m £m £

Cost
At 1 August 2009 1,304 83 262 986 2,635
Exchange rate adjustment 17 - 9 25 51
Disposal of businesses (58) (1) (10) (26) (95)
Additions 12 18 9 43 82
Disposals and transfers (19) (3) (10) (151) (183)
Property reclassified as held for sale (42) - 1) (8) (51}
At 31 July 2010 1,214 97 259 869 2,439
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 August 2009 228 26 147 641 1,042
Exchange rate adjusiment 2 - 5 16 23
Disposal of businesses (18) - (6) (20) (44)
Deprectation charge for the year
— owned assets 34 - - 99 133
- leased assets - 2 26 i1 39
Disposals and transfers @ @ © (128) (146)
Property reclassified as held for sale (13) - - 4) 17)
At 31 July 2010 226 26 163 615 1,030
Owned assets 988 - 96 227 1,311
Assets under finance leases - ri - 27 98
Net book amount — 31 July 2010 988 71 96 254 1,409
Net book amount — 1 August 2009 1,076 57 115 345 1,593

Included in the amounts above are £13 milion relating to assets under construction At 31 July 2010, the book value of
property, plant and equipment that had been pledged as secunty for labities was £600 milicn
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
Year ended 31 July 2010

16. Property, plant and equipment continued

Land and buldings
Cperating Plant
Finance leasehold machnery
Freehold lease Improverments equipment Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 August 2008 1,329 79 270 1,157 2,835
Exchange rate adustrment 133 a 37 169 347
Disposal of businesses 73 - 21} (209) (303
Addrtions 28 i g 56 a4
Disposals and transfers (78) {5) (33) {167) {283)
Property reclassified as held for sale (35) - - (20) (55)
At 31 July 2009 1,304 83 262 986 2,635
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 August 2008 191 17 127 6858 993
Exchange rate adjustment 20 2 15 110 147
Disposal of businesses (22) - (13) (168) (203)
Depreciation charge for the year
- owned assets 40 - - 139 179
— leased assets - 3 31 15 49
Impairment charge for the year
— owned assets 19 - - 27 46
- leased assets - 9 3 - 12
Dispesals and transfers (14) o) (16) (125) (160)
Property reclassified as held for sale ) - - (15) 21)
At 31 July 2002 228 26 147 641 1,042
Owned assets 1,076 - 115 311 1,502
Assets under finance leases - 57 - 34 9
Net book amount — 31 July 2009 1,076 57 115 345 1,593
Net book amount — 1 August 2008 1,138 62 143 499 1,842

Included in the amounts above are £8 milion relating to assets under construction At 31 July 2009, the book value of property,
plant and equipment that had been pledged as secunty for lizbities was £616 million

17. Investment in associate

2010 2009
Em £m
At 1 August 53 -
Exchange rate adjustment 1 )
Addtions - 71
Share of retaned oss for the penod (13) {15}
Imparrment charge for the year (41) -
At 31 July - 53
See note 7 for further detalls of the Group's associate and the impaiment charge recorded in the year
The associate has a financial year ending 31 December Summansed balance sheet information in respect of the Group's
associate as at 31 July is set out below
2010 2009
£m &m
Total assets 207 397
Total liabilities (113) {278)
Net assets 94 119
Group’s share of associate’s net assets 41 53
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18. Financial assets - available-for-sale investments

Directors’ report — Business review
Directors’ report — Corporate governance
Financial statements

Other information

2010 2009
£m £m
Financial assets 3 3

These assets compnse tradeable government secunties and equity investments in uniisted companies They are mainly

denominated in euros

19. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The deferred tax assets and liabilities shown in the balance sheet are analysed as follows

2010 2009
Deferred tax £m £m
Deferred tax assets 284 244
Deferred tax habilties {136) (176}
148 68
Current 33 19
Non-current 115 87
148 68

The fallowang are the major deferred tax liabiliies and assets recognised by the Group and movements thereon dunng the

current and pnor reporting penod

Goodwill Retirerment
and Share-based Property, plant benefit Tax
intangibles payment and equipment chiigations Inventory assets Cther Total

&m £m £m £m m £m £m £m
At 31 July 2008 (140) 1) {111) 73 (60) 30 32 {183)
Credit to Income 111 9 40 4 31 17 80 302
Credtt 10 equity - 1 - 30 - - 6 37
Disposal of subsidianes (111) {1} 3 (1) (5] 112 (51} (55)
Currency translation
adjustment {10) - 9 5 (14) 8} 3 (33)
At 31 July 2009 (150) 2 7N 111 (49) 151 80 68
Credit to income 75 4 8 1 {6) {46) 10 46
Credit to equity - - - 26 - - 3) 23
Disposal of subsidianes 1 - 4 - - - (1) 4
Transfers between
categones - - - -~ - 8 8 -
Currency translation
adjustment 1) 1 - 3 (5) 7 2 7
At 31 July 2010 {75) 7 (65) 141 (60) 104 96 148

Tax losses in the LISA have been recognised on the basis that they are forecast to have sufficient taxable profits n the future to

enable these to be utlised

There are other potential deferred tax assets in relation to tax losses totalling £48 millon {2009 £96 million) that have nct been
recognised on the basis that thewr future economic benefit 1s uncertain The tax losses in aly of £21 milion and the Czech
Republic of £15 milion exptre after five years The remaining tax losses of £12 milhion can be carmned forward indefinitely

No deferred tax lability has been recognised in respect of temporary differences associated with investment in subsidianes
However, tax may anse on £503 millon {2009 £567 milon} of temporary differences but the Group 1s 1In a postion to control
the timing of the reversal of the associated temporary differences and 1t 1s probable that such differences will not reverse In the

foreseeable future
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
Year ended 31 July 2010

20. Inventories

2010 2009
£m £
Goods purchased for resale 1,611 1,624

£9,126 milion has been charged to operating profit in refation to INventones recogresed as an expense In the year {including
inventory shipped directly from the supplier to the customer} (2009 £10,339 millon} In addition an amount of £9 miflion has
been credited to the income statement to reverse wite downs of nventones to net realisable value (2008 credit of £13 million)

21. Trade and other receivables

2010 2009
Current £m £m
Trade recevables 1,572 1,722
Less prowvsion for imparment (60) 81)
Net trade recenvables 1,512 1,641
Other recevables 89 11
Prepayments and accrued income 249 23

1,850 1,083

Non-current

Other receivables 182 116

Movements in the prowision for impairment of trade recervables are as follows

2010 2009

£m £m

At 1 August 81 79

Disposals and transfers {15) {24)
Net charge for the year 43 119

Utihsed In the year {49) (100)
Exchange - 7
At 31 July 60 a1

Provisions for impasrment of recevables are made locally, and have two components

» a provision for amounts that have been individually determined not to be collectible in full, because of known financial
difficutties of the debtor or evidence of default or delinquency In payment, amounting to £47 milion at 31 July 2010
{2009 £66 milhon), and

» a provision based on histonc expenence of non-collectability of recevables, amounting to £13 million at 31 July 2010
(2009 £15 milkon}

Concentration of credit nsk in trade receivables 1s imited ags the Group’s customer base 1S large and unrelated  Accordingly,
management consider that there 1s no further credit nsk provision required above the current prowvision for impairment

Trade recewvables can be aged with respsct to the payment terms specified in the terms and conditions established with
customers as follows

2010 2009
£m £m

Armounts not yet due 704 876
Past due not mere than one month 552 530
Past due more than one month and less than three months 228 211
Past due more than three months and less than six months 27 25
Past due more than six months 14 14
Amounts indvidually determined te be impaired a7 66
1,572 1,722

Cther receivables include an amount of £44 milion (2008 £42 million) which has been discounted at a rate of 3 7 per cent
(2009 4 3 per cent) due to the long-term nature of the recevable The farr value of the remaining balances in trade and other
recewvables approximates to book value
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21. Trade and other receivables continued
The currency analysis of current trade and other recevables 1s as follows

2010 2009
£m £m
Sterling 428 475
US dollar 71 668
Euro 366 475
Other 345 365
Total 1,850 1,983
The currency analysis of non-current trade and other recevables I1s as follows
2010 2009
£m £m
Sterling 30 1
US dollar 108 a3
Euro 37 15
Other 7 7
Total 182 116
22. Financial assets: trading investments
2010 2009
£m em
Shart-term secunties (denominated in Danish krone) - 185
23. Derivative financial instruments
2010 2009
Nor-current assets £m £rn
Interest rate swaps far value hedges 66 34
Denvative financial assets 66 34
2010 2009
Current essets £m £m
Interest rate swaps far value hedges 5 4
Cumency swaps at far value through profit and loss 7
Currency swaps net investment hedges 2 12
Denvative financial assets 10 23
2010 2009
Gurent fiablibes £m £m
Interest rate swaps at far value through profit and loss (5) -
Interest rate swaps cash flow hedges - {14)
Currency swaps net investment hedges - (11}
Denvative financial liabilities 5) (25)
2010 2009
Non-current liataities fm £m
Interest rate swaps at far value through profit and loss (3) -
Interest rate swaps cash flow hedges - (11)
Denvative financial liabilities (3) (11)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
Year ended 31 July 2010

23. Derivative financial instruments continued

interest rate swaps

The Group uses interest rate swaps to manage its exposure to interest rate movements on its bormowings The far value of
interest rate swaps I1s estimated on the basis of the market values of equivalent instruments at the balance sheet date

The Group’s bank borrowings generally atiract vanable interest rates based on LIBOR Interest rate swap contracts compnsing
fixed interest payable on notional pnncipal of €300 milion (2009 €300 milion) were designated and effective as cash flow
hedges for the first half of the year, with the valuation gains being deferred in equity The contracts expire between August 2010
and August 2011 (2009 August 2009 and August 2011}, and the fixed interest rates range between 4 57 per cent and 4 59 per
cent (2009 2 59 per cent and 4 59 per cent)

2010 2009
Hedge of interest rate cash flows £m £m
At 1 August 25 2
Valuation gains/{losses) on effective hedges credited/{charged) to equity 5 (20}
Valuation losses charged to income staterment - (1)
Cash settlements in the penod B (S}
Transferred to far value through profit and loss 12 -
Exchange - (1)
At 31 July - (25)

The interest rate swap contracts were not designated as hedges for the second half of the year Valuation gans have been
credited to profit and loss As the cash flows which were the subject of the hedge relationship are still forecast to occeur,
valuation losses deferred in equity are being racycled over the duration of the previous hedge relationship

2010 2009
At fair valus through profit and loss £m Em
At 1 August - Z
Transfer from hedge of interest rate cash flows (12 -
Valuation gans credited to Income statement 4 -
At 31 July (&) -

The Group's private placement borrowings are at fixed rates Interest rate swap contracts compnsing fixed interest recevable
on notional pnncipal of $729 mullion (2009 $729 million) are designated as hedges of the far values of these borrowings

The movement in far value of these interest rate swaps has been analysed into a proportion that is effective as a hedge, and a
proportion that 1s ineffective, both portions have been charged to the Income statement with the effective portion ofisetting the
change n farr value of the hedged borrowings (see note 6) The contracts exprre between November 2012 and November 2020
and the fixed nterest rates range between 4 93 per cent and 5 32 per cent (2009 4 93 per cent and 5 32 per cent)

2010 2009
Hedge of far value of fixed interast borrowings £m £m
At 1 August 38 5
Valuation gans credited to income statement 30 36
Exchange 3 (3}
At 31 July 71 38

Currency swaps

The Group uses currency swaps either to obtan the optimum retumn on its surplus funds or to hedge cash flows in respect of
committed transactions The far value of currency swaps has been estimated as the cost of closing out the contracts using
market pnces at the balance sheet date

2010 2009
At tarr value through profit and loss £m £m
At 1 August 7 -
Valuation (losses)/gains (charged)/credited to income statement 4) 7
At 31 July 3 7
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23. Derivative financial instruments continued

At the balance sheet date the Group had entered into the following short-term cumrency swaps which were classified as far

value through profit or loss

2010 2009
Currency Currency
milhon £m mikon £m
Bought/{sold) forward DKK 1,418 (157) DKK 1,716 196
SEK 1,700 150 SEK 1,464 (122)
NOK 60 6 NOK 41 4)
EUR 5 4 EUR Y0 (60)
UsD 5 icH]
3 7
2010 2009
Hedge of net nvestment in overseas operatons m £m
At 1 August 1 1
Valuaton gains/(losses} on effective hedges credited/(charged) 1o equity 1 (36}
Cash settlements i the penod - 36
At 31 July 2 1

At the balance sheet date the Group had entered into certain short-term currency swaps and forward contracts which were

designated and effective as hedges of overseas operaticns as follows

2010 2009
Currency Currency
million £m milion fm
Bought/{sold) forward EUR 138 115 EUR 585 500
DKK 260 29 DKK 720 82
GBP 104 (104) GBP 251 (251)
usD 118 {75) USD 380 (227)
CAD 60 37 CAD 135 (75)
CHF 56 (31}
CZK 95 3
2 1
24, Construction loans
2010 2009
£m £m
Construction loan recevables (secured) 116 202
Less provision for impaiment {36) 39)
Net construction loan recevables 80 163
Borrowings to finance construction loan recevables (Unsecured) (80} {163)

Construction loan recevables are secured prncipally agamst homes in the course of construction or completed homes awarting
sale and are all denominated in US dollars These loans are generally settled when completed homes are sold, rather than at a
fixed term The average age since ongmnation 1s 15 months (2009 20 months) As the contractual matunty of these loans, which
did not exceed 12 months from the reporting date, was set at ongination to correspond to the normal operating cycle of the
construction business, and the Group nomally expects to realise the loans within thewr contractual matunty, these loans have all

been classified as current assets
As at 31 July 2010, the effective rate of interest on construction loans was 7 per cent (2009 8 per cent}
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24, Construction loans continued
Movements in the provision for mpaiment of construction loan recevables are as follows

2010 2009

£m e
At 1 August 38 18
Charge for the year — before exceptional items - 13
Charge for the year — exceptional 20 25
Utihsed in the year (26) a7
Exchange rate adjustment 3 -
At 31 July 36 39

In ight of the ongoing weak conditions in the credit markets and the poor performance of the business, the Group now plans
to accelerate 1ts exat from the business and accordingly has recorded an exceptional charge of £24 milion This consists of the
exceptional charge of £20 million for mpairment of construction loan receivables shown above and an exceptional charge

of £4 milon to wnte down assets held for sale to ther recaverable amaount

Construction loan recevables on which payments are definquent are subject to foreclosure of the property on which the
loan 1s secured, such that the disposal proceeds of the property can be applied in settlement of the outstanding hability
After foreclosure, the balance of recevables net of provisions for inpairment (s transferred to assets held for sale
Prowvisions for imparrments of recewables compnse

= a provision for amounts that have been individually determined not to be collectable n full, because of known financial
difficutties of the debtor or evidence of default or delinguency in payment, amounting to £12 millkon at 31 July 2010
(2009 £13 mihon}, and

» a provision based on histonc expenence of the shortfall of disposat proceeds of foreclosed properties to the outstanding
balance due, amounting to £24 mulion at 31 July 2010 (2009 £26 million)

Management consider that there 1s no further credit nsk provision required above the current provision for imparment

Constructon loan recevables can be aged with respect to the payment terms specified in the terms and conditions established
with customers as jollows

2010 2009

£m £m

Amounts not yet dus 65 107
Past due not more than one month 12 20
Past due mare than one month and less than three months 5 10
Past due more than three monthsg 22 52
Amounts individually detenmined to be impaired 12 13
116 202

Caonstruction loan receivables at 31 July 2010 includes £27 mullion 1n respect of loans on which foreclosure proceedings have
been started (2009 £54 milion) The far value of collateral held i respect of construction loans recevable is believed to be
sufficient to cover the net amount of construction loans receivable Dunng the year ended 31 July 2010 disposal proceeds

of £41 mitlion (2009 £36 millien) were realised from the sale of foreclosed praperties, In respect of loans with a pnncipal value
of £70 millon before prowisions (2009 £46 milion) Undrawn committed faciities at 31 July 2010 amounted to £25 million
(2009 £30 milion}

25, Cash and cash equivalents

2010 2000

£m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 249 277
Short-term bank deposits 416 358
Total cash and cash equivalents 665 635

Cash and cash equivalents includes an amount of £1 milkion held in escrow to settle deferred consideration on acquisitions
{2008 £3 milhon)
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26. Assets and liabilities held for sale
2010 2009
fm £m
Properties awaiting disposal 64 73
Assets of disposal groups held for sale 47 15
Assets held for sale 111 838
Liabitiies of disposal groups held for sale 11 15

Properties awaiting disposal at 31 July 2010 includes £37 rmullion relating to properties obtained after foreclosing on construction
lcans (2009 £43 million)

At 31 July 2010 the Group was in the process of disposing of ts Brandon Hire business and on 24 August 2010 the Group
announced that it had agreed to sell the business for a total cash consideration of £43 milion, subject to normal closing
adjustments Accordingly this business was classified as a disposal group held for sale at 31 July 2010 with £27 milhon
transferred from property, plant and equipment and £14 milion transferred from trade recenables

At 31 July 2009 the Group's plumbing and heating businesses in Belgium, Slovakia and the Czech Republic were classified
as disposal groups held for sale These businesses were sold in the year ended 31 July 2010

27. Trade and other payables

2010 2009
Curent £m £m
Amounits falling due within one year
Trade payables 1,962 1,847
Bills of exchange payable 109 166
Other tax and social secunty 100 92
Other payables i 176
Accruals 322 302
Deferred income 9 3
Total trade and other payables 2,673 2,586
Non-current
Other payables 83 59
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Year ended 31 July 2010

28. Bank loans and overdrafts

2010 2009
Current £m £m
Bank overdrafts 90 37
Bank loans 3 5
Senior unsecured loan notes 133 -
Total bank loans and overdrafts 226 42
2010 2009
Nen-cument fm £m
Bank loans 236 1,051
Senior unsecured notes 542 606
Total bank loans 778 1,857
£206 millken of the bank keans are secured against the Group's freehold property (2009 €216 million}
The non-current loans are repayable as folfows
2010 2009
£m £m
Due in one to two years 1 125
Due in two to three years 56 830
Due In three to four years 34 51
Due n four to five years 73 1
Due in over five years 614 650
Total 778 1,857

Interest receipts and payments on the floating rate assets and liabifities are determined by reference to short-term benchmark
rates applicable to the relevant currency or market, such as LIBOR

At 31 July 2010 borrowings with a par value of £598 millon camed a weighted average fixed interest rate of 5 0 per cent
(2009 £560 million at & 1 per cent) As certamn tranches of the bomrowing have been hedged with interest rate swaps, the

camying amount of these tranches has been adjusted to far value, such that these fixed rate borowings have a carrying value

of £666 millon (2009 £597 million)
Hedge of net investment in overseas operations

The Group has financial Instruments denominated in foreign currencies which have been designated as hedges of the net
rnvestment in its overseas subsidianes The prncipal value of these financial Instruments at the balance shest date was

£1,401 milion (2009 £1,551 milion}

The loss on transiation of the borrowings into sterling of £71 million {2009 loss of £381 miion} has been taken to the

translaton reserve
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Diractors' report — Corporate governance

Financial staternents
Other information

(a) Financial iInstruments by category

The accounting policies for financial nstruments have been applied to the following tems

Cash Dervatives Fair value
and cash Loans and used for through Available-
equvalents  recewvables hedging profit or loss for-sale Total
Assets at 31 July 2010 £m £m £m £m £m fm
Financial assets avallable-for-sale investments - - - 3 3
Trade and other recevables, excluding
prepayments and accrued income - 1,783 - - - 1,783
Denvative financial assets - - 73 3 - 76
Financial assets trading investments - - - - - -
Financial recevables construction loans {secured) - 80 - - - 80
Cash and cash equivalents 665 - - - - 665
665 1,863 73 3 3 2,607
Impaimment losses In the penod - 63 - - - 63
Farr value Other
through financial
profit or loss habilities Total
Liabilrhes as at 31 July 2010 £m £m £m
Trade and other payables, excluding accruals, deferred income and other tax and
social secunty - 2,325 2,325
Borowings construction loans {unsecured) - 80 80
Bank loans and overdrafts - 1,004 1,004
Chligations under finance leases - 75 75
Denvative financial labilities 8 - 8
8 3,484 3,492
Cash Denvatives Far value
and cash Lcans and used far through Avallable-
equevalents recenvables hedgng  profit or loss for-sale Total
Assets at 31 July 2009 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets avallable-for-sale investments - - - - 3 3
Trade and other receivables, excluding
prepayments and accrued Income - 1,868 - - 1,868
Denvative financial assets - 50 7 - 57
Financial assets trading investments - - - 165 - 155
Financial recevables construction loans (secured) - 163 - - - 163
Cash and cash equivalents 635 - - - - 635
835 2,031 50 162 3 2,881
Impairment losses in the year - 157 - - - 157
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29. Financial instruments and financial risk management continued

Derivatvas
used for  Other financial
hedging lebllies Total
Liabifibes as at 31 July 2009 om £m £m
Trade and other payables, excluding accruals, deferred income and other tax and
socid secunty - 2,248 2,248
Borrowings censtruction loans {unsecured) - 163 163
Bank lcans and overdrafts - 1,699 1,699
Obligations under finance leases - 71 71
Dernvatwe financial labilties 36 - 36
38 4,181 4,217

(b) Financial instruments by measurement basis

Financial Instruments i the categones “denvatives used for hedging”, “farr value through profit or loss” and “available-for-sale”
are all measured in the balance sheet at far value With effect from 1 August 2009, the Group has adopted the amendment
to IFRS 7 for such financial instruments  This requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following far value
measurement hierarchy

» Quoted pnees (Unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities (leval 1),

= Inputs other than quoted pnces included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly
(level 2),

» Inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on chservable market data (that 1s, unobservable inputs) (level 3)
The following tables present the Group’s assets and liabilities that are measured at far value at 31 July 2010 and 31 July 2009

Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets at 31 July 2010 £m £m £m £m
Financial assets avalable-for-sale investments 3 - - 3
Denvatives at far valus through profit and loss - 3 - 3
Denvatives used for hedging - 73 - 73
Total assets 3 76 - 79
Liabilities at 31 July 2010
Denvatves at fair value through profit and loss - 8 - 8
Total habdities - 8 - 8
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totat
Assets at 31 July 2009 £m £m £m £m
Financial assets avalable-for-sale investments 3 -~ - 3
Financial assets trading investments 155 - - 155
Denvatives at far value through profit and loss - 7 - 7
Denvatives used for hedging - 50 - 50
Total assets 158 57 - 215
Liabiities at 31 July 2009
Denvatives used for hedging - 36 - 36
Total habilities - 36 - 36

The far value of financtal Instruments traded in active markets 1s based on quoted market pnces at the balance sheet date

The far value of financial Instruments that are not fraded in an active market (such as over-the-counter denvatives) 1s determmned
by using valuation technigues The farr value of interest rate swaps 15 calculated as the present value of the estimated future
cash flows based on abservable yield curves The farr value of currency swaps has been estmiated as the cost of closing out
the contracts using market pnces at the balance sheet date
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29. Financial instruments and financial risk management continued

The Group’s other financial instruments are measured on bases other than far value Because current assets and habilities are
erther of short matunty or bear fioating rate mterest, therr fair values approximate to book values The book values and far values

of categones including non-current assets and habilities can be compared as follows

2010 2010 2009 2009
Book value Fasr value Book value Far value
£m £m £m £m
Trade and other recevables, excluding
prepayments and accrued ncome 1,783 1,782 1,868 1,868
Trade and other payables, excluding accruals,
deferred ncome and other tax and social secunty 2,325 2,325 2,248 2,248
Bank lcans 238 238 1,056 1,056
Senior unsecured notes 675 678 806 613
Finance lease obligations 75 75 71 71

{c) Financial nsk management

The Group I1s exposed to market nsks ansing from its nternational operations, and the financial nstruments which fund them
The rmain nsks ansing from the Group’s financial nstruments are foreign currency nsk, Nterest rate nsk and hguedity nsk

The Group has well defined policies for the management of interest rate, lquidity, foreign exchangs and counterparty
exposures, which have been consistently applied dunng the financial penods ended 31 July 2009 and 31 July 2010 By the
nature of its business the Group also has trade credit and commodity pnce exposures, the management of which 1s delegated
to operating businesses There has been no change since the year end n the mgjor financial nsks faced by the Group

The Treasury Committee of the Board regularly reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these nsks and they are
summansed below When the Group enters into denvative transachons (pnncipally iInterest rate swaps and forward foreign
currency contracts), the purpose of such transactions i1s to hedge certain interest rate and currency nsks ansing from the
Group's operations and its sources of finance 1t 1s, and has been throughout the penod under review, the Group's policy

that no trading In financial Nstruments or specutative transactions be undertaken
Capital nsk management

The Group’s sources of funding currently compnse cash flows generated by operations, eguity contnbuted by shareholders
and borrowings from banks and other financial institutions To assess the appropnateness of its capial structure to current
and forecast trading, the Group's pnncipal measure of financial geanng s the ratio of net debt, including recevables factonng
facities, to EBITDA The Group’s target 1s to keep this ratio within a range of 1 10 2, consistent wath an investment grade credit
rating The Group's main borrowang facilities contain financial covenants imiting the ratio of net debt to EBITDAt0 35 1, and

requinng the ratio of EBITDA to net interest to exceed 4 0

In order to maintain or adjust the caprtal structure, the Group may adjust the amounts of dwvidends paid to shareholders, retum

capital to shareholders, 1ssue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt
Liquidity nsk

The Group maintains a policy of ensunng sufficient borrowing headroom to finance all nvestment and bolt-on acquisiions for
the following financial year with an addtional contingent safety margin Large acguisitions are funded shortly before the
acquisttion 1s made As at 31 July 2010, the Group had undrawn centrally managed facilities matunng as follows

31July 2010 31 July 2009

£m £m
Less than one year 100 100
Between one and two years 1,394 -
Between two and three years 188 683
Between three and four years 832 43
Between four and five years - 852
Total 2,514 1,678

At 31 July 2010, the Group had £274 million {2009 £168 million} drawn and £96 millon (2009 £169 million) undrawn on

recevables factonng facilities
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29, Financial instruments and financial risk management continued

The Group has estimated its anticipated contractual cash outflows including interest payable in respect of its bank and
construction loan borrewings on an undiscounted basis The prncipal assumptions are that floating rate interest is calculated
using the prevaling inferest rate at the balance sheet date, and cash flows in foreign curency are translated using spot rates
at the balance sheet date These cash flows can be analysed by matunty as follows

Construction Interest rate

loan Interest on  and currency
Debt  bomrowings debt swaps Total
As at 31 July 2010 £m £m £m fm £m
Due In less than one year 136 80 141 5 262
Due in one to two years 1 - 38 3 42
Due in two to three years 53 - 36 - 89
Due in three to four years 4 - 24 - 58
Due in four to five years 73 - 24 - 97
Due in over five years 549 - 79 - 628
Total 846 80 242 8 1,176

Construction Interest rate

loan Interest on  and currency
Debt borrowings debt SWaps Total
As gt 31 July 2009 £m £m £m £m £m
Due n less than one year 5 163 61 29 258
Due in one to two years 125 -~ 56 8 187
Due in two to three years 830 -~ 33 1 864
Due in three to four years 49 - 30 - 79
Due in four to five years 1 -~ 29 - 30
Due in over five years 614 - 188 - 802
Total 1,624 163 397 36 2,220

Foreign currency nsk

The Group has significant overseas businesses whose revenues are mainly denominated in the currencies of the countnes in
which the operations are located Approximately 39 per cent of the Group’s revenue 1s in US dollars and 23 per cent in euros
The Group does not have significant transactional foreign curency cash flow exposure However, those that do anse are
generally hedged with either forward contracts or currency options The Group does not nommally hedge profit translation
exposure since such hedges have only temporary effect

Most of the foreign currency earmings generated by the Group's overseas operations are reinvested In the business to fund
growth in those terntones The Group's policy 1s to adjust the currencies in which its debt 1s denominated to match the
currencies N which its trading profit 1s generatad, as this hedges the ratio of net debt to EBITDA in the covenant calculation
Net debt at 31 July 2010 by currency was as follows

Cash,
overdrafts Currency
Interest Finance lease and bank bought/iscid}

rate swaps obhgatrons loans forward Total
As at 31 July 2010 £m fm £m £m £m
Stering - (2) 249 (104) 143
US dollars 71 ¥4] (416) {75) (427)
Euros, Danish kroner and Swedish kronor 8) 41) (105) 141 (13)
Other - (25) {67) 43 {49)
Total 63 (75) (339) 5 (346)
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29. Financial instruments and financial risk management continued
Net debt at 31 July 2003 by currency was as follows

Cash Currency

Trading Interest  Finance lease overdrafts and  bought/{scid)
nvestment rate swaps obligabons bank loans forward Total
As at 31 July 2000 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Stering - - (4} 218 (251) (37)
US dollars - 38 a1 (457) (230} (660)
Euras, Danish kraner and Swedish kronor 155 (25) {49) (855) 596 (178)
Other - - (7) 30 (107} (84)
Total 1565 13 (71} (1,064} 8 (959)

Detalls of average exchange rates used In the translation of overseas eamings and of year-end exchange rates used in the
translation of overseas balance sheets, for the pnncipal curencies used by the Group, are shown in the Five year summary

on page 137 The net effect of cumrency translation was to increase revenue by £223 million (1 5 per cent) (2009 £2,439 miflion,
or 16 5 per cent) and to increase trading profit by £5 million (1 1 per cent) (2009 £147 million, or 18 7 per cent) These cumency
effects reflect a movement of the average sterling exchange rate aganst US dollars and Euros as follows

2010 2009
Weakening Weakening
of sterling of stertng

US dallars 01% 27 3%
Euros 18% 16 2%
Interest rate nsk

To manage the Group’s exposure to interest rate fluctuations, the Group's policy 1s that at least 20 per cent of bank borrowings
required dunng the next two years should be at fixed rates The Group borrows In the desired currencies pnncipally at rates
which reset at least every 12 months, which are regarded as floating rates, and then uses interest rate swaps to generate the
dearred interest rate profile

The Group reviews deposrts and borrowings by cumency at both Treasury Commattee and Board meetings The Treasury
Committee gives pnor approval to any vanations from floating rate amangements

The Group's financial assets and habiities are exposed to both far value interest rate nsk {fixed rate borrowings) and cash flow
Interest rate nsk (floatng rate bomowings) The interest rate profile of the Group's net debt at 31 July 2010 and 31 July 2009,
after ncluding the effect of interest rate swaps, Is set out In the following tables

As at 31 July 2010 — currency Floating Fixed Total
Sterling 145 (2) 143
US dollars {290) {137} (427)
Euros, Darush kroner and Swedish kronor 286 (299) (13)
Other currencies (24) {25) 49)
Total 117 (463) (3486)
As at 31 Juty 2009 ~ currency Floating Fixed Total
Sterling (33) ) (37)
US dollars 479 {181} (660)
Euros, Danish kroner and Swedish kronor 493 {671} (178)
Cther currencies {77) 7} (84)
Total (96} (863} (959)

Fixed rate borrowings at 31 July 2010 camed a weighted average interest rate of 4 6 per cent fixed for a weighted average
duration of 1 6 years (31 July 2009 4 2 per cent for 1 4 years) Floating rate borrowings at 31 July 2010 camed a weighted
average nterest rate of 1 5 per cent (31 July 2009 1 8 per cent)

Credit nsk

Wolseley provides sales on credit terms to many of ts customers There 1s an associated nsk that customers may not be able to
pay outstanding balances The Group's construction loan business also provides loans to finance the construction of properties
There 1s an associated nsk that customers may not be able to pay outstanding loan balances At 31 July 2010 the maximum
expasure to credit nsk was £1,863 million (2008 £2,031 milion) of which £80 million {2009 £163 million) 1s secured against
homes under construction or completed homes awaiting sale
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29. Financial instruments and financial risk management continued

Each of the businesses have established procedures in place to review and collect outstanding recevables Significant
outstanding and overdue balances are reviewed on a regular basis and resutting actions are put in place on a timely basis
In many cases, protection 1s provided through lien nghts on projects, or through credit iInsurance arrangements Al of the major

businesses use professional, dedicated credit teams, In some cases field-based Appropnate provisions are made for debts that

may be mpared on a tmely basis

The Group's constructicn loans are secured on the related properties and are managed by a dedicated lending team within
that business Policies are also applied to provide further protection and KPls are mantared regularly by management outside
the business

The Group has cash balances deposited for short penods with financial nstitutions, and enters inte certain contracts (such as
interest rate swaps) which entitle the Group to receve future cash flows from financial Insttutions These transactions give nse
to credit nsk on amounts due from counterparties with a maximum exposure of £744 millon (2009 £850 milion) This nsk i1s
managed by setting credit and settlement fimits for a panel of approved counterparties, all of which have credt ratings
equivalent to Standard & Poor's A or higher In exceptional aircumstances the Treasury Committee will allow deposits with
relationshup banks with other investment grade ratings, subject to close monitonng of the exposure The mits are approved
by the Treasury Committee and ratings are momitored regularty

Market price nsk

The Group monitors its interest rate and currency nsk by reviewing tha effect on financial Instruments over vanous penods of
a range of possible changes in interest rates and exchange rates On the basis of the Group’s analysis, 1t 15 estimated that the
maximum effect of a nse of one percentage point In the prncipal Interest rates on the Group's continuing businesses would
result n a credit 1o the income statement of £1 mithon {2002 charge of £4 milion), ansing from the Group's net exposure 1o

floating rate deposits at 31 July 2010, and have no effect on equity (2009 charge of £4 million, resutting from changes in the far

value of interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges) Smilarly, it is estimated that a weakening of steding by 10 per cent
aganst all the currencies N which the Group does business would result in a charge to the ncome statement of £1 muillion
(2009 charge of £2 milion} anstng from denvatives held at fair value through profit and loss, and a charge to equity of

£62 rmillon (2009 £122 million), ansing from the translation of borrowings denominated in foreign currency and designated
as net investment hedges

The Group does net require operating businesses to adhere to a formalised nsk management policy in respect of trade credit
nsk or commodity pnce nsk, and does not consider that there 1s a useful way of gquantifying the Group's exposure to any of the
macro-economic vanables that might affect the collectability of recevables or the pnces of commoditias

30. Obligations under finance leases

Gross Gross Net Neat
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Due wathin one year 18 15 14 12
Due in one to five years 43 48 3z 36
Due in over five years 4 34 29 23
102 97 75 71

Less future finance charges (27) {26)

Present value of finance lease obligations 75 71

Current 14 12
Non-current 61 59
Total obligations under finance leases 75 71

Its the Group’s policy to lease certain of its property, plant and equipment under finance leases Finance lease obligations
included above are secured against the assets concemed
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31. Provisions

Envronmental Wolselay Cther

and legal Insurance  Restructunng PrOVISION'S Total

£m £m £m £m £m

At 1 August 2008 42 51 50 35 178
Utlhsed In the year () (22) (100} (15) (143}
Charge for the year 16 20 354 25 415
Disposal of businesses {1) - (1086) {1) (108)
Exchange differences 7 8 4 5 24
At 31 July 2009 58 57 202 49 366
Utilised In the year 4 (31 (100) {7} (142)
Amortisation of discount - - 3 - 3
Charge for the ygar 10 26 50 42 128
Disposal of businesses - - (22) (1) (23)
Exchange differences 3 3 6 2 14
At 31 July 2010 67 55 139 85 346

Prowvisions have been analysed between cunent and non-current as follows

Environmental Wolseloy Other
and legal Insurance Restructunng provisions Total
At 31 July 2010 £m £m £m £m £rm
Curmrent 22 23 50 28 123
Non-current 45 32 B89 57 223
Total provisions 67 55 139 85 346
Emarcnmental Wolseley Other
and legal Insurance  Restructuring Proasions Total
At 31 July 2009 £m Em £m £m £m
Current 6 16 79 21 122
Non-current 52 41 123 28 244
Total provisions 58 57 202 49 366

Wolseley Insurance provisions represent an estimate, based on histoncal expenence, of the ulimate cost of setting outstanding
clams and clams incurred but not reported on certain nsks retaned by the Group {prncipally US casuatty and global property
damage)

The environmental and legal provision includes the estimated hability for asbestos Iihigation on a discounted basis using a long-
term discount rate of 3 7 per cent {2009 4 3 per cent) This amount has been actuanally determined as at 31 July 2010 based
on adwvice from independent professional advisers The Group has insurance that it currently believes 1s sufficrient cover far the
estimated hability and accordingly an equivalent Insurance recevable has been recorded in other receivables Based on current
estimates, the amount of performing nsurance cover significantly exceeds the expected level of future clams and no matenal
profit or cash flow impact is therefore expected 1o anse in the foresesable future There were 249 clams outstanding at

31 July 2010 (31 July 2009 273)

Restructunng provisions include prowisions for staff redundancy costs, future lease rentals on closed branches and asset
write-downs In determining the provision for anercus leases, the cash flows have been discounted on a pre-tax basis using
appropnate govemment bond rates The weighted average matunty of these obligations 1s approximately four years

Other provisions Include the Group’s best estimate of the cost of potential product and service warranty claims ansing in Stock
Building Supply Holdings LLC (“Stack”) hefore its disposal on 6 May 2009, separation costs relating to the disposal of Stock
and contractual and constructive obligations relating to the Business Change Programme {note 15) Other prowvisions also
include rental commitments on vacant properties other than those ansing from restructunng actions, dilapidations on leased
properties and warranties The weighted average matunty of these obligations 1s approximately three years
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32. Retirement benefit obligations
(1) Descnption of plans

United Kingdom

The pnncipal scheme operated for UK employees 1s the Wolseley Group Retirement Benefits Plan which provides benefits
hased on final pensionable salanes The assets are held in separate trustee adrministered funds The scheme’s retirement
benefits are funded by a salary sacnfice arrangement from employess with the balance being paid by Group companies
Employees salary sacnfice etther 5 per cent or 8 per cent of eamings depending on the level of benefits accruing The Group
contribution rate 1s calculated on the Projected Unit Method and agreed with an independent consulting actuary This scheme
was closed to new entrants in 2009 A defined contnbution scheme 1s also operated and contributions are charged to the
income statement in the perod N which they fall due In the year ended 31 July 2010 the cost of defined contnbution plans
charged to the income statement was £1 milion 2009 £1 mdiion)

Outside the United Kingdom
North Amenca

The pnncipal schemes operated for US employees are defined contnbution schemes, which are established in accordance
with US 401k rules Companies contnbute to both employee compensation deferral and profit shanng plans Coninbutions are
charged to the income statement in the penod in which they fall due In the year ended 31 July 2010 the cost of defined
contnbution plans of continuing operations charged to the Income statement was £14 milion (2009 £21 million)

In addition, the Group operates two defined benefit schemes in the United States In Canada, a defined benefit scheme and a
defined contnbution scherme are operated One of the US schemes and the Canadian scheme are funded, two plans are closed
to new entrants The majonty of assets are held in frustee administered funds independent of the assets of the companies

The closed plans now provide a minmum pension guarantee in conunction with a defined contnbution scheme  The remaining
schemes provide benefits based on final pensionable salanes The contribution rate 1s calculated on the Projected Urit (credit)
Method as agreed with independent consulting actuanes

Europe

Both defined contrbuticn and defined benefit schemes are operated Liabilities ansing under defined benefit schemas are
caleulated N accordance with actuanal advice Contributions to defined contribution schemes are accounted for in the penod
n which they fall due In the year ended 31 July 2010 the cost of defined contnbution schemes charged to the ncome
statement was £20 milion (2009 £21 milion}

Post-retirement healthcare
There are no matenal obligations to provide post-retirement healthcare benefits

The Group expects to contnbute £54 million to the UK defined benefit schermes in the year ending 31 July 2011, including
an additronal £25 mifion ansing as a result of the recently completed funding valuations The Group expects to contnbute
£11 milicn to the non-UK defined benefit schemes

(m Financial impact of plans

2010 2009
As disclosed in the balance sheet £m Em
Current liability (23) {33)
Non-current liability (409) (308}
Total habilty (432) (341}
2010 2010 2009 2009
Analysis of balance shest liability £m fm £m £m
Fair value of plan assets
UK 593 511
Non-UK 131 129
724 640
Present value of defined benefit cbligation
UK 897 (737)
Non-UK (259) (244)
(1,156) (981}
Net defictt recognised in balance sheet (432) (341)
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2010 2009
Analysts of total expense recogrused n income staternsnt £m £m
Current service cost 26 34
Past service cost 1 -
Curtalment - (2}
Charged to administrative expenses 27 32
Interest on pension liabilities 57 57
Expected retum on scheme assets 44) (47)
Charged to finance costs 13 10
Total expense recognised In iIncome statement 40 42

2010 2009
Analysis of amount recogmised in the statement of comprehensive ncome £m £m
Actuanal loss (93) {115)
Deferred tax thereon 26 36
Total amount recogrnised in the statement of comprehensive Income 67) {(79)

The cumulative amount of actuanal losses recognised In the statement of comprehensive income was a loss of £270 millon

{2009 loss of £177 midlion)
The assets in the UK schemes and the expected rates of retum were

2010 UK 2008 UK

Long-term Long-term

rate of rate of
retumn Value at retum Value at
expected at 31 July expected at 31 July
31 July 2010 31 July 2009
2010 £m 2009 £m
Equrites 7 3% 41 80% 350
Bonds 4 5% 158 50% 141
Cther 4 3% 24 47% 20
Total market value of assets 6 4% 593 7T1% 511

The assets in the non-UK scheimes and the expected rates of retum were

2010 Non-UK 2009 Non UK

Long-term Long-term

rate of rate of
retum Value at retum Value at
expected at 31 July expected at 31 Juty
31 July 2010 31 July 2009
2010 fm 2009 £m
Equities 7 7% 61 7 6% 59
Bonds 4 3% 49 46% 52
Property 48% 8 47% 6
Other 4 0% 13 39% 12
Total market value of assets 59% 131 6 0% 129
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32. Retirement benefit obligations continued

UK Non-UK Tota! UK Non-UK Total

2010 2010 2010 2009 2000 2009

Fair value of plan assets £m £m m £m om £m
At 1 August 511 129 640 542 130 672
Expscted return on plan assets 36 8 44 38 9 47
Actuanal gan/{loss) 40 4 44 B87) (26) (113
Employer’s contnbutions 36 6 42 42 5 47
Partoipants’ contnbutions 1 2 3 1 2 3
Disposal of businesses - (23) (23) - - -
Transfers - - - - 2 2
Settlerments - - - - {1} (1}
Benefits pad (31) (6) 37) (25) {10} (35}
Currency translation - 11 11 - 18 18
At 31 July 593 131 724 511 129 640
Actual retum/{loss) on plan assels 76 12 88 {(48) (17 (65)

The expected long-term rates of return for equities are long-term assumptions and were set after talung actuanal adwice

The expected equity retums can be considered as a nsk free rate of retum {determined by reference to government bond rates
in the countries In which the plang are based) plus a nsk premium to reflect the addtional nsks associated with equities For the
UK scheme the expected retum implies a premwm of 2 9 per cent per year as at 31 July 2010 (2008 3 2 per cent) over the
expected retumn from government bonds For the pnncipal overseas schemes in USA, Canada and Switzerland a similar
approach was adopted with returns set by reference to long-term bond rates after taking actuanal advice

The Group’s nvestment strategy for its funded post-employment plans s decided locally and, if relevant, the trustees of the
plan, and takes account of the relevant statutory requirements The Group's objective for the investment strategy 1s to achieve
a target rate of retum in excess of the ncrease i the labiities, while taking an acceptable amount of Investment nsk relative
to the lrabilities

This objective 1s iImplemented by using specific allocations to a vanety of asset classes that are expected over the long term to
deliver the target rate of retumn Most investment strategies have significant allocations to equities, with the intention that this wall
result in the ongoing cost to the Group of the post-employment plans being lower over the long term and within acceptable
boundaries of nsk

For the UK scheme, the policy 1s to Invest approximately 75 per cent of the assets in equities and 25 per cent In other asset
classes, pnncipally bonds The investment strategy 1s subyect to regular review by the scheme trustees in consuttation with the
Group For the overseas schemes the investment strategy involves the investment in defined levels of predominantly equities
wath the remainder of the assets being invested in cash and bonds

UK Non-UK Total UK Non-UK Total
2010 2010 2010 2009 2009 2009
Present value of defined benefit cbiigation €m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 August 737 244 981 693 215 a08
Current semvice cost 20 6 26 28 6 34
Past sernce cost 1 - 1 - - -
Curtallment and settlement - - - 2) {1) (3}
Interest cost 44 13 57 44 13 57
Participants’ contnbutions 2 2 4 1 2 3
Disposal of businesses - (24) (24) - - -
Benefits paid (31} (1) (42) (26) (20) {46)
Transfers - - - - 2 2
Actuanal loss/{gain) 124 13 137 {1} 3 2
Currency translation - 16 16 - 24 24
At 31 July 897 259 1,156 737 244 981
2010 2009
Analysis of present valua of defined benafit oblgation £m £m
Amounts ansing from wholly unfunded plans 67 61
Amounts ansing from plans that are wholly or partly funded 1,089 920
1,156 981
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(i} Valuation assumptions

The financial assumptions used to estimate defined benefit obligations are

2010 2009
UK Non-UK UK Non-UK
Discount rate 54% 47% 6 0% 53%
Inflation rate 34% 20% 37% 16%
Increase to deferred benefits dunng deferment 34% 2 0% 37% 0 5%
Increases to pensions in payment 33% 18% 36% 10%
Salary Increases 4 4% 27% 4 7% 19%
The life expectancy assumptions used to estimate defined benefit obligations at 31 July 2010 are
2010 2009
UK Non-UK UK Non-UK
Current pensioners (at age 65) — male 22 20 20 20
Current pensioners (at age 65) — female 24 22 23 22
Future pensioners (at age 65) — male 24 21 21 20
Future pensioners (at age 65) — female 26 23 24 22
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
History of expenence gams and losses — UK schemes £m £m £m £m tm
Farr value of plan assets 593 511 542 588 501
Present value of defined benefit oblgation (897) (737} {693) (630) (619
Defictt in the plan (304) (226} {151} 42} (118)
Expenence adjustments to scheme assets
Amount 40 87) {103} 40 36
Percentage of scheme assets % (17)% (19)% 7% 7%
Expenence adjustments on scheme labilties
Amount - - - @ -
Percentage of the present value of scheme labilities - - - 1% -
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
History of expenence gans and losses - non-UK schemes £m £m £m £m £m
Far value of plan assets 131 128 130 123 112
Present value of defined benefit obligation (259) (244) {215) (188) {182)
Defictt in the plan (128) (115} (85) (B5) 73
Expenence adjustments to scheme assets
Amount q (26) (14) 5 -
Percentage of scheme assets 3% (20}% (11)% 4% -
Experience adustments on scheme labilities
Amount {2) 1 6 3 2)
Percentage of the present value of scheme habiihes (1)% 0% 3% 2% 1%
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33. Share capital

Allotted and 1ssued

2010 2009
Number of deferred 24 pence shares {million) 887 887
Number of ordinary 10 pence shares {milion) 284 284
Total number of shares {million) 1,171 1,171
Nominal value of deferred 24 pence shares (£ milkon} 213 213
Nominal value of ordinary 10 pence shares (€ mihion) 28 28
Total nominal value of shares (£ million} 241 241

All the allotted and issued shares, mcluding those held by Employee Benefit Trusts, are fully paid or credited as fully paid
From 1 August 2009 to 31 July 2010, shares in the Company were issued to satisfy options exercised under the Company's

share schemes A summary of the movements in the year s detaled n the following table

2010 2009
MNumber of 25 pence ordinary shares in1ssue at 1 August - 661,982,888
Exercise of savings related share options - 5,652
Exercise of executive shars options - -
Share placing (Apnl 2009} - 225,000,000
Capital reorganisation - (886,988,540)
Number of 25 pence ordinary shares Inissue at 31 July - -
Number of 10 pence ordinary shares in 1ssue at 1 August 283,838,366 -
Number of 10 pence ordinary shares in 1ssue after capital reorganisation in
which ordinary 1 penny shares converted to ordinary 10 pence shares (Apnl 2009) - 88,698,854
Rights 1ssue of 10 pence ordinary shares (Apnl 2009) - 195,137,478
Exercise of executive share options 11,990 -
Exercise of savings related share options 548,468 3,034
Number of 10 pence ordinary shares in 1ssue at 31 July 284,399,824 283,830,366
Number of 24 pence deferred shares i Issue at 1 August 886,988,540 -
Number of 24 pence deferred shares in 1ssue after capital reorganisation - 886,988,540
Number of 24 pence deferred shares in issue at 31 July 886,988,540 886,988,540

The deferred shares have no votng nghts, no entitternent to a dvidend and cannot be traded

Employee Benefit Trusts

Three Employee Benefit Trusts have been established in connection with the Wolseley Sharg Option Plan 2003 and the
Wolseley plc 2002 Long Term Incentive Scheme No shares were purchased by the trusts dunng the year The market value
of the 1,948,819 shares held by the Employee Benefit Trusts at 31 July 2010, which have a nominal value of £0 2 million,
was £28 milon (2009 £26 millson) Dunng the year, 28,118 shares were allocated from the Employee Benefit Trusts to
employees under the Restncted Share Plan Dwvidends dug on shares held by the Employee Benefit Trusts are waved in

accordance with the provisions of the trust deeds
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34. Share-based payments

The Group operates six share option plans the 1984 Executive Share Option Scheme, the 1889 Executive Share Option
Scheme and the Wolseley Share Option Plan 2003 (collectively, the “Executive Option Schemes”), the Wolseley Employees
Savings Related Share Option Scheme 1981 and the Wolseley Eurcpean Sharesave Plan 2001 {collectively, the “Employees
Savings Option Schemes”), and the Wolseley Employee Share Purchase Plan 2001 {the “ESPP™}

Awards granted under the Executive Option Schemes are subject {o a condition such that they may not be exercised unless the
growth in eamings per share over a penod of three consecutive financial years exceeds the growth in the UK Betall Price index
over the same pencd by at least 9 per cent and consequently vest over a penod of three years Awards granted under the
Employes Savings Option Schemes vest over penods ranging from three to seven years Awards granted under the ESPP

vest over a one-year penod

The Group also operates a Long Term Incentive Scheme {“LTIS”) and the Wolseley Restncted Share Plan (*RSP”) for senior
executves Under the LTIS, executives are awarded a vanable number of shares depending on the level of total shareholder
retum over the next three years relative to that of a number of comparator companies The vesting penod Is three years
The maximum award under the LTIS 1s determined at grant date and then adjusted at vesting date in accordance with the
market performance condition Under the RSP, executves (excluding Directors) are granted free shares The vesting penod
IS three years and there are no performance measures other than retaned employment

Fallowing the caprtal reorganisation and share 1ssue which was completed dunng Apnl 2009, appropnate adjustments were
made to reflect the dilutive effect of both transactions on outstanding awards The calculations were made in accordance

with HM Revenue and Customs ("HMRC"} recommendations Such calculations were reviewed by the Company's auditors,
who performed specific procedures to recalculate the adjustments made to outstanding awards, on the basis that the Directors
of the Company deemed the adjustments to be far and reasonable

After adjustments had been made to outstanding awards to reflect the caprtal reorgamisation, a further adjustment was made
using the theoretical ex-nghts pnce caleulation ("TERP”) as agreed with HMRC Al outstanding awards made under the
Company's share plans were multiphed by a TERP factor of 2 398177677 and the respective option pnces and market pnces
at allocation were muthplied by a factor of 0 416983283

These formulae were designed to minimise the effect of the capital reorganisation and the share 1ssue upon outstanding awards
and, subject to roundings, ensured that the overall value of outstanding awards was the same after adjustment
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34. Share-based payments continued

Share options outstanding dunng the year

YYear ended 31 July

2010 2009
Weighted Weighted
2010 average 2009 average
Shares exercise pnce Shares  exercise pnce
000's £ 000's £
Executive Option Schemes
2010
Qutstanding as at 1 August 9,987 24 46
Granted 4,041 1272
Exercised 12 14 58
Surrendered or expired (1,877} 113
Quistanding as at 31 July 12,139 17 98
Exercisable as at 31 July 889 3381
Weighted average far value of options granted dunng the year 448
2009
Outstanding as at 1 August 23,796 951
Granted 23,796 321
Exercised - -
Surrendered or expired pre-rights issue (4,418) 1121
Qutstanding as at 30 Apni 43,174 585
Converted following nghts 1ssue 10,332 24
Surrendered or expired pest-nghts 1ssue (345) 2312
Qutstanding as at 31 July 9,087 24 46
Exercisable as at 31 July 1,220 3331
Weighted average far value of opticns granted dunng the year 502
Employees Savings Option Schemes and ESPP
2010
Qutstanding at 1 August 3,843 901
Granted 699 13 35
Exercised (548) 723
Surrendered or expired (754) 1088
QOutstanding as at 31 July 3,240 981
Exercisable as at 31 July 37 3476
Weighted average fair value of options granted dunng the year 518
2009
Cutstanding as at 1 August 7,934 494
Granted 14,678 167
Exercised ) 403
Surrendered or expired pre-nghts 1ssue (5,738} 455
Qutstanding as at 30 Apnl 16,868 223
Converted following nghts 1ssue 4,007 923
Exercised following nghts 1ssue @) 1797
Surrendered or expired post-nghts 1ssue (161} 1452
Qutstanding as at 31 July 3,843 9t
Exercisable as at 31 July 52 3472
Weighted average far value of options granted dunng the year 39
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The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised dunng the penod was £15 66 (2009
£14 95) The total ntnnsic value of options exercised dunng the penod was £5 rmillion (2009 nil) The aggregate intnnsic value
of options outstanding and exercisable at 31 July 2010 was £29 mullion and nil respectively (2009 £21 million and nil}

Details of shares outstanding and exercisable under the LTIS and RSP

Year endod 31 July

2010

2010 Share price at

2009
2009 Share prce at

Shares  award date Shares award date
000's £ 000's £
2010
Outstanding as at 1 August 971 2274
Granted 535 14 45
Vested (31) 56 25
Surrendered or expired (380) 2796
Qutstanding as at 31 July 1,095 15.94
Exercisable as at 31 July - -
Weighted average far value of shares awarded dunng the year 834
2009
Qutstanding as at 1 August 2,612 1026
Granted 3,315 287
Vested 4] 1349
Surrendered or expired pre nghts 1ssue {860) 1047
Qutstanding as at 30 Apnl 5,063 539
Converted following nghts 1ssue 1,213 2245
Vested post-nghts 1ssue (3} 56 25
Surrendered or expired post nghts i1ssue (239) 2090
Outstanding as at 31 July a7 2274
Exercisable as at 31 July - -
Weighted average farr value of shares awarded dunng the year 4 96
Wolseley plc 117

Annual Report and Accounts 2010




Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
Year ended 31 July 2010

34. Share-based payments continued

Details of options exercisable

Options outstanding and exercisable at 31 July 2010 under the Executive Option Schemes, the Employees Saving Option
Schemes and ESPPF can be analysed as follows

Opbons outstanding Cohons exarcisahlo

Weighted Waighted
average Waghted average Weyghtad
remaining average remanmg average
contractual axercise contractual EXerIse
Sharas Ifa pace Shares lde pnca
Range of exercise pnces 000s Years £ 000's Years e
£501-£1000 2,248 3 708 - - -
£1001 -£1500 9,913 8 1308 8 - 14 58
£15 01 -£20 00 309 3 17 26 40 1 1899
£20.01 -£25 00 136 2 2264 137 2 22 64
£2501-£3000 4 1 27 40 - - -
£3001-23500 2,232 7 3331 235 3 3098
£3501 -£4000 480 4 39 51 479 4 39 52
£40 01 —£45 G0 41 1 4182 19 - 41 41
£45 01 -£50 Q0 16 3 47 24 8 5 45 87
15,379 7 16 25 926 3 3385

The far value at the date of grant of options awarded dunng the year has been estimated by the binamial methodolegy for all
schernes except the LTIS, for which a Monte Carlo smulation was used The farr valus of shares granted under the RSP was
calculated as the market pnce of the shares at the date of grant reduced by the present value of dvmdends expected to be pad
over the vesting pencd

The pnncipal assumptions required by these methodologies were
Long Term Incentve

Executive Share Options Employee Share Options Schemes

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Risk free interest rate 323% 4 09% 1 55% 217% 211% 3 66%
Expected dwvdend yisld 170% 1 85% 143% 167% 136% 1 04%
Expected volatility 3919% 3582% 4856% 47 86% 5197% 4500%
Expected Iife 58years 58years 1-7years 1-7years 3 years 3 years

Expected volatility has been estimated on the basis of histonc volatiity over the expected term, excluding the effect of
extraordinary volatiity due to the capital recrganisation and nghts 1ssue in 2008 Expected Iife has been estimated on the basis
of hustoncal data on the exercise pattern
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35. Shareholders’ funds and statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

Retamed eammgs
Share Share  Translation Hedging Owm Profit and

caprtal premium reserve reserve shares loss account Total
For the year ended 31 July 2010 £m £m £m m £m fm £€m
Profit for the year attnbutable to
equity shareholders - - - - - (340) (340)
Exchange gan on transiation of
overseas operations - - 156 - - - 156
Exchange loss on translation of
borrowings and dervatives
designated as hedges
of overseas operations - - {71) - - - 71)
Cumulative currency translation
differences on disposals recycled to
Income statement - - (13) - - - (13)
Actuanal loss on retrement benefits - - - - - (83) (93)
Valuahon gan on interest rate swaps - - - 5 - - 5
Valuation losses on cash flow hedges
reclassified to Income statement - - - 4 - - 4
Tax on gans and losses not
recognised in the Income statement - - - (3) - 26 23
Total comprehensive ncome - - 72 6 - (407) (329)
New share capital subscnbed - 4 - - - - 4
Credit to equity for share-based
payments - - - - - 8 8
Net addihons to shareholders’ funds - 4 72 6 - (399) 317)
Opening shareholders' funds 241 1,152 228 1) (78) 1,844 3,376
Closing shareholders’ funds 241 1,156 300 (5) (78) 1,445 3,059
Total retamed earmings, which is the sum of the hedging reserve, own shares reserve and profit and loss account, was
£1,362 milion at 31 July 2010 {2009 £1,755 million)
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35. Shareholders’ funds and statement of changes in shareholders’ equity continued

Retaned eamings
Share Share Translation Hedging Cwn Profit and
capital premim reserve esenve sharas  loss account Total
For the year ended 31 July 2009 m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Profit for the year attnbutable to
equity shareholders - - - - - (1,173) (1,173)
Exchange gain on translation of
overseas operations - - 708 - - - 708

Exchange loss on translation of
borrowings designated as hedges
of overseas operations - - (381) - - - (381)

Cumulative currency transtation

differences on disposals recyded to

income statement - - {47 - - - {47
Actuanal loss on retirement benefits - - - - - (115 (115)
Avallable-for-sale-investments

reclassiied and reported in net

profit for the year - - - (20} - - {20}
Tax on gains and losses not

recognised in the Income statement - - - 6 - 36 42
Total comprehensive income - - 280 (14) - (1,252) (286)
New share capital subscnbed 76 203 - - - 720 999
Purchase of own shares by

Employee Benefit Trusts - - - - (5} - 5}
Credit to equity for share-based

payments - - - - - 9 9
Dmdends - - - - - - -
Net additions to shareholders’ funds 76 203 280 (14) {5) (523} i7
Opening sharehclders' funds 165 949 52} 3 (73) 2,367 3,359
Closing shareholders' funds 241 1,152 228 (11) (78) 1,844 3,376

Orchinarnly, the excess of the net proceeds over the nominal value of the share capital Issued would be credited to a non-
distnbutable share premium account However, the nghts 1ssue was effected through a structure which resulted in the excess
of the net proceeds over the nominal value of the share capital 1ssued being recognised within retained earmings under Section
131 of the Companies Act 1985

36. Reconciliation of loss to cash generated from operations
Loss for the year 1s reconciled to cash generated from operations as follows

2010 2009
£m £m
Loss for the year (340) (1,173)
Net finance costs 77 145
Share of after tax loss of associate 13 15
Imparment of associate 41 -
Tax expense/{incoms} 38 (246}
Loss on disposal of businesses and revaluation of disposal groups 31 121
Depreciation and mpaiment of property, plant and equiprment 172 286
Amortisation and mpairment of non-acquired intangbles 154 62
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and assets held for sale 7 3
Amortsation and imparment of acquired intangibles 315 894
Decrease in inventones 13 4383
Decrease in trade and other recevables 124 928
Increase/(decrease) In trade and other payables 108 (565)
{Decrease)increase 1 provisions and other labidities (56) 238
Share-based payments and other non-cash items 8 g
Cash generated from operations 705 1,200
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36. Reconciliation of loss to cash generated from operations continued

Trading profit 1s reconciled to cash generated from operations as follows

2010 2009
£m £m
Trading profit ~ continuing operations 450 447
Trading profit - discontinued operations - (117}
Exceptional iems in operating profit - continuing operations (332) (458}
Exceptional tems In operating profit — discontnued operations - (156)
Loss on disposal of businesses and revaluation of disposal groups 57 40
Depreciation and tmpainment of property, plant and equipment 172 286
Amortisation and impaiment of non-acquired ntangibles 154 62
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and assets held for sale 7 3
Decrease In inventones 13 483
Decrease in trade and other recewvables 124 928
Increase/{decrease) In trade and other payables 108 (565)
(Decrease)increase n provisions and other habilihes (56) 238
Share-based payments and cther non-cash items 8 9
Cash generated from aperations 705 1,200
37. Analysis of the net outflow of cash in respect of the purchase of businesses
2010 2009
£m £m
Purchase consideration 7 -
Deferred and contingent consideration paid in the year 6 18
Cash consideration 13 18
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts acquired (2) -
Net cash outflow In respect of the purchase of businesses 11 18

38. Acquisition

On 1 September 2009 the Group acquired Decorative Product Source, Inc, a company engaged in the distnbution and supply
of construction matenals and services, for a cash consideration of £7 midion The acquisition of {his company has not had a

matenal effect on the financial statements
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39. Disposals

Cn 8 January 2010, the Group disposed of 100% of Wolseley Ireland Holdings Limited which compnsed all the Group's
businesses in the Republic of Ireland and the Brooks business in Northem Ireland  Dunng the year ended 31 July 2010, the
Group also disposed of a business In Switzerand and rts businesses in Belgium, Slovakia and the Czech Repubhe ncluded n
the Central and Eastern Europe segment, a business in France and two businesses in the USA Detals of assets and habilities
disposed of, transaction costs and consideration received in respect of these disposals are provided m the following table

2010
Assets

disposed of

£m

Intangible assets 10
Property, plant and equipment 51
Inventones N
Recevables 36
Assets held for sale 2
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 1
Finance leases (2)
Payables and provisions (43)
Deferred tax 4
Total 92
Consideration (36)
Disposal costs 9
Cumulative currency translation gain recycled from reserves (13)
Loss on tsposal 52

Analysis of the net outflow of cash In respect of the disposal of businesses

2010

£m

Sale consideration 36
Defarred consideration 7
Cash consideration recewved 18

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts disposed
Disposal costs
Payments in respect of pnor year divestments

(1)
&)
@

Net cash outflow In respect of the disposal of businesses

{10)
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40. Reconciliation of opening to closing net debt
Accuisitions New Far value
and finance and other Exchange

At1August  Cash flows disposals leases adjustments movement At 31 July

For the year ended 31 Juty 2010 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 635 665
Bank overdrafts (3N (90)
598 (111) - - - &8 575

Financial assets trading investments 155 {159) - - - 4 -
Denvative financal instruments 21 8 - - 36 3 68
Bank loans (1,662) 284 - - (89) {147) (914)
Obligations under finance leases {71) 17 2 (22) - (1) (75}
{959) 739 2 (22) (53) (53) (346)

Acqustions New Far value
and finance and other Exchange

At1August  Cashfiows disposals leases  adustments  movernent At 31 July

For the year ended 31 July 2009 £m om £m £m £m £m m
Cash and cash equivalents 321 635
Bank overdrafts (118} (37)
203 37 - - - 24 538

Financial assets trading investments 5 150 (1) - - 1 155

Denvative financial nstruments 8 31 - - (16} ) 21
Bark loans {2,598) 1,406 - - (106} {364} (1,662}
Obligations under finance leases (87) 26 4 (4 - {10} {71}
2,469) 1,984 3 ) (122) {351} (959}

41. Related party transactions

There are no refated party transactions requinng disclosure under IAS 24, “Related Party Disclosures” other than the
compensation of key management personne! which is set out i the following table

2010 2009
Koy managerment personal compensation {including Dwvectors) £m £m
Salanes, bonuses and other shart-terrn employee benefits 10 5
Termination and post-employment benefits 3 2
Share-based payments 1 1
Total compensation 14 8
More detalled disclosures on the remuneration of the Directors are provided in the Remuneration report on pagss 55 to 65
42. Capital commitments
Authonsed caprtal expenditurs which was contracted for but not provided in these accounts was as follows

2010 2009

£m £m

Property, plant and equipment 6 2
Intangible assets software - 8
Total caprtal commitments 6 10
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43. Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for the following penods are

2010 2009

£m £m

Within one year 253 258
Later than one year and less than five years 674 659
After five years 365 412
Total operating lease cormmitments 1,292 1,329

Operating lease payments manly represent rent payable by the Group for certan of its properties Some of these
operating lease arrangements have renewal options and rental escalation clauses, though the effect of these 1s not matenal
No arrangements have been entered Into for contingent rental payments

The total minimum sublease payments expected to be receved under non-cancellable subleases at 31 July 2010 1s
£16 millen {2009 £16 rulkon)

The commitments shown above include commitments for enerous leases which have already been provided for
At 31 July 2010 prowsions include an amount of £88 mulhon {2009 £124 mithon) In respect of minimum lease payments for
such onerous leases net of sublease payments expected to be receved {note 31)

44. Contingent liabilities

The Group has quantrfiable contingent habibties under sundry guarantess and indemnities of £9 milion (2009 £13 millon) which
arose N the ordinary course of business and which have not been provided in these accounts since no actual lability 1s
expected to anse In addition the Group has exposure in the ordinary course of business to certain legal and product liability
clams Whist provision 1s made for any known or quantifiable tems, it 1s possible that additional clams may anse in the future

45. Post balance sheet events

On 24 August 2010 the Group announced that it had agreed to dispose of Brandon Hire, its UK tool and equipment hire
business, for a cash consideration of £43 million, subject to nommal closing adjustments The disposal was complsted on
22 September 2010

46. Parent company

Wolseley plc 1z a lmted kabiity company incorporated in England and Wales and domicied in the United Kingdom It operates
as the ultmate parent company of the Wolseley Group Its registered office 1s Parkview 1220, Arlington Busingss Park, Theale,
Reading RG7 4GA, United Kingdom

The Group's principal subsidiary undertakings are set on pages 140 to 141
47. Accounting standards and interpretations that are not yet effective

Certain new standards, amendments to and interpretations of existing standards have been pubhshed that are mandatory for
the Group's accounting penods beginning on or after 1 August 2010 or later penods, but which the Group has not earty
adopted The new standards which are expected to be relevant to the Group’s cperations are as follows

IAS 24 {revised) Related party disclosures (applicable from 1 August 2011)

This revision simphifies the definition of a related party, clarfying s intended meaning and eliminating iNnconsistencies from the
defintion, and provides a partial exemption from the disclosure requirements for government-related entities Management Is
currently assessing the impact of this amendment on the Group's future financial statements

IFRS 9 Financial instruments — classification and measurement (applicable from 1 August 2013)

The part of this standard so far 1ssued 1s the first stage in a comprehensive revision of the accounting for financial instruments
This standard requires all financial assets 10 be classified on the basis of the entity's business modet for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow charactenstics of the financial asset, to be intially measured at far value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at far value through profit and loss, particular transaction costs, and to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or far value
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Independent auditors’ report roctors oprt - oot govarance
to the members of Wolseley plc Pranoa saienent

We have audited the consohdated financial statements of Wolseley plc for the year ended 31 July 2010 which compnse the
Group income staterment, Group statement of comprehensive Income, the Group statement of changes in equity, the Group
balance shest, the Group cash flow statement, the Group accounting policies and the related notes The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in ther preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™)
as adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibility statement set out on page 51, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view Our responsibiity
15 to audit the consolidated financial statements in accordance with applicable law and Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland) Those standards reguire us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in gmng these opinons, accept or
assume responsibiity for any other purpose or to any other persan to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may
come save where exprassly agreed by our pnor consent in withing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit nvolves obtanng ewdence about the ameunts and disclosures In the financial staternents sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal musstatement, whether caused by fraud or eror This Includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's crcumstances and have been consistently
apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estmates made by the Directors, and the
overal presentation of the financial statements

Opmion on financial statements
In our opinion the consohdated financial statements

« give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's affarrs as at 31 July 2010 and of its loss and cash flows for the year then
ended,

* have been property prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and
» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Begulation
Opmnion on other matter prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the nformation given in the Directors' report for the financial year for which the consolidated financial statements
are prepared Is consistent with the consolidated financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you i, In our opinion

+ certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
+ we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit
Under the Listing Rules we are reguired to review

» the Directors’ statement, set out on page 29, in relation to going concem, and

+ the part of the Corporate Govemance Report refating to the Company's compliance with the nine provisions of the June 2008
Combined Code specified for our review

Other matter

We have reported separately an the parent company financial statements of Wolseley plc for the year ended 31 July 2010 and
on the information N the Remuneration report that 1s descnbed as having been audited

0e?ls,

Michael Phillips (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

27 September 2010
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Company balance sheet

As at 31 July 2010

2010 2009
Notes £m om
Fixed assets
Investments 2 5,702 5,702
5,702 5702
Cumrent assets
Debtors amounts falling due within one year 3 227 3,380
Debtors amounts falling due after one year 3 2,411 -
Cash at bank and on hand 415 360
3,053 3,740
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 4 (213) (4,761)
Net cumrent habilittes 2,840 (1,051)
Total assets less current abilities 8,542 4,651
Creditors amounts faling due after one year 5 (4,244) (279)
Net assets 4,298 4,372
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 6 241 211
Share premium 7 1,156 1,152
Profit and loss reserve 8 2,901 2,979
Total shareholders’ funds 9 4,298 4,372

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Company financial statements

The Company financial statements on pages 126 to 133 were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 September 2010 and

were signed on its behalf by

lan K Meakins John W Martin
Group Chuef Executive Chief Financial Officer
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NOtes tO the company ﬁnanCiaI Statements Duwrectors’ report - Corporate governance

Year ended 31 July 2010 Financial statements
Qther information

1. Company accounting policies
Basis of accounting

These Companies Act 2008 financial statements are prepared under the histoncal cost convention and in accordance with
applicable UK accounting standards The principal accounting policies, as set cut balow, have been apphed consistently
throughout the penod

Note 10 on page 88, note 32 on pages 110 to 113, note 33 on page 114 and note 34 on pages 115 to 118 of the Wolsseley plc
consolidated financial statements form part of these financial statements

Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company 1s exemnpt from the requirements to present its own profit and loss
account Under Financial Reporting Standard 1 (rewsed 1996) the Company 15 exempt from the requirement to prepare
statements of cash flow as the consclidated statements have been published

Foreign currencies

The cost of the Company's iInvestments in overseas subsidiary undertakings 15 translated nto stering at the rate ruling at the
date of Investment

Foreign currency transactions entered into dunng the year are translated into sterbing at the rates of exchange ruling on the
dates of the transactions Monetary assels and habilities denominated in foreign curencies are retranslated at the rate of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date Al cumency translation differences are taken to the income statement

Investments

Fixed asset investments are recorded at cost less provision for imparment The Company assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there 1s objective evidence that an investrment or a group of investments is impaired

Taxation

Current tax represents the expected tax payable (or recoverable) on the taxable income for the year using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and taking into account any adjustments ansing from pror years

Frowision 1s made for deferred taxation in so far as a hability or asset has ansen as a resutt of transactions that had oceurred by
the balance sheet date and have given nse to an obligation to pay more tax in the future, or the right to pay less tax i the future
An asset has not been recogrised to the extent that the transfer of economic benefits In the future 1s uncertan Deferred tax
assets and liabiities recognised have not been discounted Prowision is made for UK or foreign taxation ansing on the
distnbution to the UK of retamed profits of overseas subsidiary undertakings where dwidends have been recogrised

as recewvable

Denvatives and financial instruments

Denvative financial instruments, in particutar, interest rate swaps and currency swaps, are used to manage the financial nsks
ansing from the business actmvties of the Company and the financing of those actmties There i1s no trading actity in dervative
financial instruments

At the inception of a hedging transaction entailing the use of denvative financial ingtruments, the Company documents the
relationship between the hedged tem and the hedging instrument together with its nsk management objective and the strategy
underiying the proposed transaction The Company also documents s assessment, both at the inception of the hedging
relationship and subsequently on an ongoing basis, of the effectveness of the hedge in offsetting mavements In the far values
or cash flows of the hedged tems

Denvative financial nstruments are recognised as assets and labilities measured at therr far values at the balance sheet date
Where dervative financial mstruments do not fulfil the cntena for hedge accounting contained in FRS 26, changes in ther farr
values are recogrused In the income statement

When hedge accounting I1s used, the relevant hedging relationships are classified as far value hedges, cash flow hedges or net
investment hedges Where the hedging relattonship 1s classified as a far value hedge, the carmying amount of the hedged asset
or labilty 1s adjusted by the increase or decrease in its far value atinbutable to the hedged nsk and the resutting gain or loss Is
recogrised in the profit and loss account where, to the extent that the hedge 1s effective, it will be offset by the change in the farr
value of the hedging mstrument If the hedge no longer meets the entena for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying
amount of a hedged rtem for which the effective interast method 1s used 1s amortised to profit or loss over the pencd to matunty
Where the hedging relationship 1s classified as a cash flow hedge or as a net mvestment hedge, to the extent the hedge 1s
eiffective, changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument ansing from the hedged nsk are recogrised directly in equity rather
than in the profit and loss account When the hedged item s recognised in the financial staternents, the accumulated gamns and
losses recognised In equity are erther recycled to the profit and loss account or, f the hedged itemn resufts In a non-financial
asset, are recognised as adjustments to s intial carrying amount When a hedging nstrument expires or 1s sold, or when a
hedge no longer meets the cntena for hedge accounting, any cumulative gamn or loss existing in equity at that ime remains in
equity and 1s recogrised when the forecast transaction 1s ultimately recognised in the profit and loss account When a forecast
transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or lass that was reported n equity 1s iImmediately transferred to
the profit and loss account
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued
Year encded 31 July 2010

1. Company accounting policies continued
Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as asssts and hahilittes measurad at far value as at the reportmg date Far value 1s
estimated by discounting expected cash flows at a market rate Changes in far value are recognised In the income statement

Pensions and post-retirement benefits

Contnbutions to defined contnbution pension plans and other post-retirement benefits are charged to the ncome statement
&s incurred

For defined benefit pension plans, the Company has taken advantage of the mult-employer exemplion under the terms of
FRS 17 Itis not possible to obtain a reasonable allocation of the scheme assets and liabiities for the employees of the
Company and accordingly the Company accounts for the plan as if it were a defined contnbution plan

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash in hand and deposits held at call with banks Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current labiliies on the balance sheet to the extent that there 1s no nght of offset and practice of net settlement
with cash balances

Share capital

The Company has two classes of shares, ordinary and deferred shares, which are both classified as equity Incremental costs
cirectly atinbutable to the 1ssue of new shares or options are shown In equity as a deduction from the proceeds, net of tax

Where the Company or the Company’s trust purchases the Company’s equity share capntal, the consideration paid, ncluding
any directly attnbutable incremental costs (net of tax), 1s deducted from equity attnbutable to the Company’s equity holders until
the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration
received, net of any directly attnbutable incremental transaction costs and the related tax sffects, 1s Included in equity
attnbutable to the Company's equity holders

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised mitially at the fair value of the consideration recenved net of transaction costs incurred

Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost with any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value being recognised in the income statement over the penod of the bormowings using the effective
interest method

Borrowings are classified as current liabilites unless the Company has an uncenditional nght to defer settlement of the hability
for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date

Share-based payments

Share-based incentives are provided to employees under the Company's executive share option, long-term incentive and share
purchase schemes The Company recognises a compensation cost In respect of these schemes that 1s based on the far valus
of the awards, measured using Black-Scholes, Binomial and Monte Carle valuation methodologies For equity-settled schemes,
the far value 15 determined at the date of grant and 1s not subsequently re-measured unless the conditions on which the award
was granted are modified For cash-settled schemes, the farr value 1s determined at the date of grant and i1s re-measured at
each balance sheet date untd the labiity 1s settled Generally, the compensation cost 1s recognised on a straight-ine basis over
the vesting penod  Adjustments are made to reflect expected and actual forfeitures dunng the vesting penod due to the falure
to satisfy service conditions or achieve non-market performance conditions

Dividends payable

Dmidends on ordinary shares are recognised in the Company's financial statements in the penod in which the dmdends are
approved by the sharehclders of the Company (generally in the case of the final dvdend) or paid (in the case of intenm
dmdends)
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Orectors’ report - Buginess raview
Dureciors' report — Corporate govemanca

Financial staternents
Other information

2. Fixed asset investments

Cost Provsion Total
£m m fm
As at 1 August 2009 and at 31 July 2010 5,728 (26) 5,702

All of the above investments are n unlisted shares Particulars of pnncipal subsichary undertakings are listed on pages 140 and
141 of the Annual Report The Directors believe that the camying value of the investments 1s supported by their underlying net
assets

3. Debtors

2010 2000
Amounits falling due within one year £m £m
Amounts due from Group companies 221 3,315
Corporatiocn tax recoverable - 52
Denvative financial assets (note 12} 2 12
Deferred tax 4 1
Total debtors 227 3,380

The farr value of amounts included in debtors approximates to book value Amounts due from Group compantes due within one
year are not interest beanng and are payable on demand

2010 2000
Amounts faling due after one year fm £m
Amounts due from Group companies 2,411 —

The fair value of amounts iIncluded in amounts due from Group companies approximates to book value Amounts due from
Group companies due after one year are loaned under a three year revolving loan faciity expinng 1 August 2013 and interest 1s
charged at interest rates that vary between LIBOR + 0 5 and LIBOR + 3 5 per cent

4. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2010 2009

£m £m

Bank loans and overdrafts (note 13) 25 188
Corporation tax 39 -
Dervative financial habilites (note 12} 5 25
Amounts due to Group companies 143 4,578
Other creditors 1 -
Total creditors amounts falling due within one year 213 4,731

The far value of amounts included in creditors approxmates to book value Amounts due to Group companies due within one
year are not interest beanng and are payable on demand

5. Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

2010 2009

£m om

Barnk loans and overdrafts (note 13} 104 268
Denvative financial habilities (note 12) 3 11
Amounts due to Group companies 4,135 -
Other creditors 2 -
Total creditors amounts falling due after one year 4,244 279

The fair value of amounts included in creditors approxmates to book value Amounts due to Group companies due after one
year are borrowed under a three year reveiving loan facility expinng 1 August 2013 and interest 1s charged at interest rates that
vary between LIBOR + 0 5 and LIBOR + 3 5 per cent

6. Share capital

Detalls of the Company's share caprtal are set out in note 33, on page 114, to the Wolseley plc consolidated financial
statements
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued
Year ended 31 July 2010

7. Share premium

£m
At 1 August 2009 1,152
New share capital subscnbed 4
At 31 July 2010 1,156
8. Profit and loss reserve
£m
At 1 August 2009 2,979
Loss for the penod (86)
Equity-settled employee share options 8
At 31 July 2010 2,901
Included in the profit and loss reserve 1s an amount of £1,838 millon which may not be distnbutable The balance of
£1,063 mulion 1s distnbutable
9. Reconciliation of movements in equity shareholders’ funds
2010 2009
£m £m
Opening shareholders’ funds 4,372 2,575
Issue of share capstal of C0 25 each - 56
Issue of share capital of £0 10 each - 20
Share premium on new share capital subscnbed 4 203
New share capital subscnbed - 720
Purchase of own shares by Employee Benefit Trusts - (5)
(Loss)/profit for the penod (86) 794
Equity-settied employee share options 8 g
Closing shareholders’ funds 4,298 4,372

In Apnl 2009 a share placing and nghts issue generated net proceeds to the Company of £994 millon after costs of £52 millton
and excluding shares purchased by the Employee Benefit Trusts

10. Retirement benefit obligations

The Company participates in the Wolseley Group Retirement Benefits Plan This 1s a defined benefit multi-employer plan,
the assets and habiities of which are held independently from the Group The Company I1s unable to identfy its share of the
underlying assets and labilities of the plan and accordingly accounts for the plan as if it were a defined contnbution plan
Information in respect of the plan 1s provided In note 32, on pages 110 to 113, to the Wolseley plc consoldated financial
staternents The total contnbution to the defined benefit plan in the year was £nil (2009 £nil)

11. Share-based payments

Details of share options granted by Group comparues {0 employees, and that remamn outstanding, over the Company’s shares
are set out In note 34, on pages 115 to 118, to the Wolseley plc consciidated financial statements The Company recognised
an equity-settled share-based payment charge of £1 millon in the year (2009 £2 million)
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Dwectors' report ~ Corporata governance

Financial statements [ ]
Other nformation
12. Derivative financial instruments
2010 2009
Current assots m £m
Currency swaps 2 12
Denvative financial assets 2 12
2010 2009
Creditors amounts fafing dus within one year £m £m
Interest rate swaps (5) (14)
Currency swaps - {11}
Denvative financial habilities 5) {25}
2010 2009
Creditors amounts faling due after one year fm £m
Interest rate swaps 3) {11)
Denvative financial habilities 3 {11}

Interest rate swaps

The Company uses interest rate swaps to manage its and the Group's exposure to interest rate movements on therr
borrowings The far value of interest rate swaps 1s estimated on the basis of the market values of equivalent instruments
at the balance sheet date

The Group's bank borrowings generally attract vanable interest rates based on six-month UBOR For Group purposes interest
rate swap contracts compnsing fixed interest payable on notional pnncipal of €300 million (2009 €300 milkon} and basis point
swaps with notional pnncipal of €300 milkon (2009 €900 milion) were designated and effective as cash flow hedges in the first
half of the year, with valuation gains recognised in that penod deferred in equity untd reahsed The Company has recognised
the valuation gains through profit and loss throughout the year The contracts expire between August 2010 and August 2011
(2009 August 2009 and August 2011}, and the fixed interest rates range between 4 57 and 4 59 per cent (2009 2 59 and

4 59 per cent)

2010 2009
At far value through profit and loss f£m £m
At 1 August 2009 (25) 2
Valuation gains/(losses) credited/(charged) to profit and loss 9 (21}
Cash settlements in the penod 8 5
Exchange - nm
At 31 July 2010 (8) {25}

Currency swaps

The Company uses currency swaps either to obtain the optimum return on its and the Group's surplus funds or to hedge the
spot exchange rate nsk of its and the Group's assets and liabilities, pnncipally loans The far value of currency swaps has been
estimated as the cast of closing out the contracts using market pnces at the balance sheet date

2010 2009
At far valua through profit and loss £m £m
At 1 August 2009 1 1
Valuation gans/{losses) credited/{charged} to profit and loss 1 {(36)
Cash settlements in the penod - 36
At 31 July 2010 2 1
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued
Year ended 31 July 2010

12. Derivative financial instruments continued

At the balance sheet date the Company had entered into certain short-term currency swaps and forward contracts as follows

2010 2009
Currency Currency
million £m millicn £m
Bought forward EUR 138 115 FURS85 500
CAD 60 37 DKK720 82
DKK 260 29 CZK 95 3
Sold forward GBP 104 (104) GBP 251 {251)
usD 118 (75) USD 380 (227)
CAD 135 {75)
CHF 56 (31)
2 1
13. Bank loans and overdrafts
2010 2009
Creditors amounts faling due withen one yoar £m tm
Bank overdrafis 25 188
The farr values of overdrafts and loans falling due within one year approximate to bock value due to therr short matunties
The currency analysis of bank loans and overdrafts 1s as follows
2010 2009
fm £m
Sterling 14 71
US dollar 5 "
Euro 5 59
Other 1 47
25 188
2010 2009
Creditors amounts faling due afler one year £rn om
Bank loans 104 268
The loans faling due after cne year are repayable as follows
Due in two to five years 104 268
104 268

The far values of loans fallng due after one year approximate 10 bock value due to being at floating rates At 31 July 2010, no
loans camed a fixed interest rate (2009 £nil} Interest payments on flcating rate loans are determined by reference to short-term

benchmark rates applicable to the relevant currency or market, such as LIBOR
The curency analysis of loans faling due after one year ts as follows

2010 2009
£m £m
US dollar 104 268
104 268
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Diractors’ report — Corporate governance
Financeal statements [ ]
Other information

14. Contingent liabilities

Provision 1s made for the Directors’ best estmate of known legal clams and legal actions in progress The Company takes legal
adwvice as to the likelihood of success of claims and actions and no provision is made where the Directors consider, based on
that adwce, that the action 1s unlikely to succeed or a sufficiently reliable estimate of the potentiat obligation cannot be made

In additron the Company has given certain banks authonty to transfer at any time any sum outstanding to its credit aganst or
toward satisfaction of its habiity to those banks of certan subsidiary undertakings

The Company has given indemnities and warranties 1o the purchasers of businesses from the Company and certan Group
companies n respect of whuch no matenal habilities are expected to anse
15. Employees, employee costs and auditors’ remuneration

The average number of employees (ncluding Directors) of the Company In the year ended 31 July 2010 was 17 (2009 17}
Total employee costs of the Company for the year including termination costs and retirement benefit were £7 million (2009
£5 mihon)

Fees payable to the auditors for the audit of the Company’s financial statements are set out in note 3, on page 84, to the
Wolseley plc consolidated financial statements

16. Dividends

Details of the Company's dwvidends are set out in note 10, on page 88, to the Walsaley plc consolidated financial statements

17. Related party transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption avalable under FRS 8 “Related party disclosures” to dispense with the
requirement to disclose transactions with fellow subsichares, &l of whose voting nghts are held within the Group, and which are
included in the consclidated financial statements of Wolseley plc

18. Accounting standards and interpretations that are not yet effective

Certain new standards, amendments to and nterpretations of existing standards have been published that are mandatory for
the Company's accounting penods beginning on or after 1 August 2010 or later pencds, but which the Company has not early
adoptled The new standards which are expected to be relevant to the Company's operations are as follows

Amendment to FRS 11 Impairment of Fixed Assets and Goodwill (effective from 1 August 2010)

The amendment requires enhanced disclosure around the assumptions used to estimate valug i use or the net realisable value
of a fixed asset or Income-generating unit Management s currently assessing the impact of this amendment on the Company's
future financial statements

Amendment to FRS 20 Share-based Payment (effective from 1 August 2010)

The amendment clanfies both the scope of the standard and the accounting for group cash-settled share-based payment
transactions in the separate or Indvidual financial statements of the entity recemng the goods or servces when that entity has
no obligation to settle the share-based payments transacton Management 1s currently assessing the impact of this amendment
on the Company's future financial statements
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of Wolseley plc

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Wolseley plc for the year ended 31 July 2010 which compnse the
Company balance sheet and the related notes The financal reporting framework that has been apphed n ther preparation 1s
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained mare fully in the Directors’ responsibility statement set out on page 51, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the parent company financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr vew Our
responsibiiity 1s to audit the parent company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and Intermnational Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards

for Audttors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compares Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in gvng these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this repart 1S shown or Into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in wniting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit Involves obtaning evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or eror This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the parent company’s crcumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors,
and the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the parent company financial statements

+ give a true and fair iew of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 July 2010,

s have been propery prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and
* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opiron on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our cpinion

¢ the part of the Remuneration report to be audited has been property prepared in accordance wath the Cornpanies Act 2006,
and

¢ the information given in the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the parent company financial staternents are
prepared 1s consistent with the parent company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Wae have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 reguires us to report to you If,
N our Cpinon

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
receved from branches not visited by us, or

the parent company financial statements and the part of the Remuneration report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns, or

¢ certan disclosures of Directars' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

» we have not receved all the information and explanations we reguire for our audtt

Other matter

We have reported separately on the consolidated financial statements of Wolseley plc for the year ended 31 July 2010

AWM VL »

Michael Philhps (Serior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

27 September 2010
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Drectors’ report — Businass review

Fwe year Summary Drectors' report — Compaorate governance
Financial statements )
Other nformation i [
2008 2007 2006
2010 2009 (restated) {restated) [restated)
£m m £m Em fm
Revenue from contmuing operations
USA 5,174 5,820 5,613 5,685 5,396
Canada 765 700 684 619 646
UK 2,466 2,689 3,203 3171 2,690
Nordic 2,001 2,113 2,290 1,670 -
France 1,937 2144 21186 1,872 1,725
Central and Eastem Europe 860 965 908 846 735
Group 13,203 14,441 14,814 13,863 11,192
Trading profit from continuing operations
USA 239 309 389 401 367
Canada M 32 39 42 44
UK 91 55 176 211 201
Nordic 100 98 159 102 -
France 30 32 103 101 g1
Central and Eastem Europe 10 - - 32 31
Coenstruction loans 4 (24) (19 ) (3)
Comorate (57) (53) {80} (56) (44)
Group 450 447 787 828 687
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (92) (105) {105) 88) (24)
Impairment of acquired intangibles (223) (490) (67 - -
Excepticnal tems (332) (458} (70) - -
Operating (loss)/profit from contimuing operations (197) (606} 555 740 663
Net interest payable @7 (145) (156} (119) (65)
Associate — share of after tax loss (13) (15) - - -
Associate ~ wmparment (41} - - - -
(Loss)/profit before tax from continuing operations (328) (766} 399 621 598
Tax (charge)/credrt (38) 34 (157) {159} (214)
(Less)/profit on ordinary actmvities after tax from
continuing operations (366) (732) 242 462 384
Profit/{loss) from discontinued operations 26 (441} {(168) 12 153
(Loss)/profit attnbutable to equrty shareholders (340) (1,173) 74 474 537
Ordinary dvidends - - (74) 211) {(186)
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Five year summary continued

2010 2009 2008 2007 2008
B £m £m em £m
Net assets employed
Intangible fixed assets 1,812 2,223 2,836 2,680 1,506
Property, plant and equipment 1,409 1,693 1,842 1,718 1,144
Other net assets, excluding iquid funds 184 519 1,180 1,520 1,892
3,405 4,335 5,828 5918 4,542
Financed by
Share capital 241 241 165 165 149
Share premium 1,156 1,152 949 945 288
Foreign currency translation reserve 300 228 (52 (187 (49)
Profit and loss account 1,362 1,755 2,297 2,622 2,204
Shareholders’ funds 3,059 3.376 3,359 3,451 2,592
Net debt 346 959 2,469 2,467 1,950
Net assets employed 3,405 4,335 5,828 5,918 4,542
Cumulative goodwill and acquired intangibles witten off 2,307 1,892 1,097 7N 667
Gross capital employed for continuing and discontinued
aperations 5712 6,327 6,825 6,709 5,209
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Financial statements

Other information

2008 2007 2006
2010 2009 r ) {rostated) {restatod)

Gross margin from continuing operations 27 7% 27 7% 28 2% 28 3% 282%

Trading margin from contnuing cperations 34% 31% 53% 60% 61%

Eamings per share from continuing operations before

exceptional tems and the amortisation and impairment

of acquired intangibles {note 1) 741p 95 6p 240 3p 309 8p 250 0p

Basic fossyeamings per share from continuing and

discontinued operations (note 1) (120 6)p (558 O)p 41 0p 266 7p 329 3p

Dividends per share (in respect of the financial year) (note 1) - - 40 8p 117 5p 106 7p

Cover for ordinary dvidends - - 10 22 31

Net tangible assets per ordinary share {note 1) 438 5p 406 2p 286 6p 423 2p 658 9p

Return on caprtal employed for continuing operatons (note 2) 195% 16 2% 26 8% 29 3% 298%

Retum on gross capital employed for continuing operations

{note 3} 74% 69% 127% 15 2% 18 3%

Average number of employees for continuing operations 48,226 55,132 62,774 63,136 47,058

Aggregate wages and salanes for contnuing operations

(£ milion) 1,607 1,765 1,654 1,524 1,253

Number of shares i 1issue at year end (million} (note 1) 284 284 182 182 165

Number of branches at year end

Total continuing operations 4,118 4,394 5,025 4,988 4,344

Discontinued operations - - 285 308 314

Total branches 4,118 4,394 5,310 5,296 4,658

US dollar translation rate

Income statement/profit and loss 1 5699 15708 20000 19487 17885

Balance sheet 15682 16718 19835 20285 18673

Canadian dollar translation rate

Income statement/profit and loss 16445 18471 20134 21932 2 0595

Balance sheet 16146 18017 20293 21644 21128

Eurc translation rate

Income statement/profit and loss 11396 11597 13470 14823 1 4577

Balance sheet 12016 11729 12715 14835 14628

Note 1 Shares n issue and amounts per share for pnor years have been restated to show the amount per equivalent new 10 pence share

Naote 2 Return on capital employed s the rabio of trading profit to the aggregate of average sharsholders funds excluding net debt and goodwil and other

intangible assets

Note 3 Retum on gross capital employed is the ratio of trading profit to the aggregate of average shareholders’ funds, minority interests, net debt and cumulatwve

goochwll written off
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Pro forma information in United States dollars

2008 2007 2006
2010 2008 {restatoc) (restated) {restated)
$m &m $m &m $m
Revenue from continuing operations
USA 8,123 9,142 11,226 11,079 9,651
Canada 1,201 1,100 1,368 1,206 1,155
UK 3,871 4,240 6,406 6,179 4,811
Nordic 3,141 3,318 4,580 3,254 -
France 3,041 3,368 4,232 3,648 3,085
Central and Eastem Europe 1,350 1,516 1,816 1,649 1,315
Group 20,727 22,885 29,628 27,015 20,017
Trading profit from continuing operations
USA 375 485 778 781 656
Canada 64 50 78 a2 79
UK 143 86 352 411 359
Nordic 157 151 318 169 -
France 47 50 206 197 163
Central and Eastem Europe 16 - - 62 55
Construction lcans (6) (38} (38} (10) (5)
Corporate (89) 83} (120) {109) (78)
Group 707 o 1,574 1,613 1,229
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (144) {165} (210 {71) 43)
Imparment of acquired intangibles (350) {770) {114) - -
Exceptional items {521) {719) (140) - -
Operating (loss)/profit from continuing operations (308) {953) 1,110 1,442 1,186
Net interest payable (121) (228) (312) (232) (116)
Associate ~ share of after tax loss (20) 24) - - -
Associate — impairrnent (64) - - - -
(Loss)/profit before tax from continuing operations (513) (1,205) 798 1,210 1,070
Tax (charge)/credit (60) 53 (314) (310} (383}
{(Loss¥profit on ordinary activities after tax from
continuing operations (573) (1,152} 484 900 687
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations 1 (693) {336) 23 273
{Loss)y/profit atinbutable 10 equity sharehoiders 532) {1,845) 148 2923 960
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Drrectors' report ~ Business review
Dwectors' report ~ Corporate governance

Financial statements
Gther information

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
$m $m $m $m $m
Net assets employed
Intangible fixed assets 2,842 3,716 5,825 5,437 2,812
Property, plant and equipment 2,210 2,663 3,654 3,485 2,136
Other net assets, excluding lquid funds 289 868 2.281 3,083 3,533
5,341 7.247 11,560 12,005 8,481

Financed by
Share caprtal 378 403 327 335 278
Share premium 1,813 1,926 1,882 1,917 538
Foreign cunrency translation reserve 471 381 {103) (367) 91)
Profit and loss account 2,136 2,934 4,557 5116 4,115
Shareholders’ funds 4,798 5,644 6,663 7,001 4,840
Net debt 543 1,603 4,897 5,004 3,641
Net assets employed 5,341 7.247 11,560 12,005 8,481
Cumulative goodwill wntten off 3,618 3,330 2,176 1,805 1,245
Gross capital employed for continuing and
discontnued operations 8,959 10,577 13,736 13,610 9,726

The above information has been extracted from the five year summary on pages 135 to 137 Income statement figures have
been transiated using the relevant year's income statement/profit and loss US dollar translation rate as set out on page 137
Balance sheet figures have been translated at the relevant year's balance sheet US dollar translation rate as set out on page 137
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Principal subsidiary undertakings and

their directors

Austna

OAG AG, A-1110 Wien
(Incorporated and operational in Austria}

Director H-D Kus

Supervisory Board R Bailkoski,
T Brophy, P Frank, T Zwettler,
O M Jensen

Canada

Wolseley Canada Inc, Burlington,
Ontario

(Incorporated and operational in
Canada}

Directors M D Lamontagne,
F W Roach, K D Vandervennst

Czech Republic

Wolseley Eastern Europea s,
Prague 8

(incorporated and operational In the
Czech Republic)

Directors M Hiinecky, S Werrsee
Supervisory Board T Brophy,
J Clausen, N G Parry, R 1 Shoylekov

Denmark

DT Group A/S, Gladsaxe Molleve,
5 DK-2860 Soborg

{(Incorporated and operational in
Denmark)

Directors M Asim, K S Borregaard,
J Clausen, B W Martensen,
R | Shoylekov, S Villsen, S Welrsee

France

Brossette SAS, 69007 Lyon
{Incorporated and operational in France)

Prestdent-directeur genéral P Gardies

PB & M SAS, 92400 Courbevole
(incorporated and operational in France)

Président-direcieur general P Gardies
Italy

Manzardo SpA, 39100 Bolzano
(Incorporated and operational in ltaly)

Directors R B Bailkoski, T Brophy,
N Gasparoni, O M Jensen

Luxembourg

Comptoir des Fers et Métaux SA,
L-1882 Luxembourg

{Incorporated and operational in
Luxsmbourg)

Directors R B Bailkoski, P Broecker,
T Brophy, O M Jensen

140 Wolseley plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2010

Netherlands

Wasco Holding B.V., 7391 AL Twello
{incorporated and operational in the
MNetherlands)

Directors R B Bailkosk, O M Jensen,
H AT van den Belt

Switzerland

Tobler Haustechnik AG,
8902 Urdort

{Incorporated and operational in
Switzerland})

Directors R B Ballkoski, E Ballmer,
A Ronchettl, H Wiedmer

United Kingdom

Wolseley UK Limited, Leamington
Spa, Warwickshire Cv31 3HH
{Incorporated and operational in the
United Kingdom)

Directors S Ashmore, D J Harding,
M J Newille

USA

Ferguson Enterprises Inc
Newport News, Virgima 23602
{Incorporated and operational in the
United States of America)

Directors 1L A Byrd, J K Cross,

J A Feltman, S F Grosslight,

M L Grunkemeyer, T E Hall,

W S Hargette, D L Keltner, K M Murphy,
S D Petock, J A Posey, F W Roach,

S M Roznowsk), W S Russel,

D P Strup, K D Vandervennet,

J L Wilcox

Service companies

Jule B1 Limited
(Incorporated in Guemsey and
operational in the United Kingdom)

Jule B4 Limited
{Incorporated in Guernsey and
operational in the United Kingdom)

Ridgefiower Limited
(Incorporated and operational in the
United Kingdomy}

Wolseley Capital, Inc
{Incorporated and operational in the
United States of Amenca)

Wolseley Capital Lirmited
(Incorporated and operational in the
United Kingdom}

Wolseley Capital (Parkview)
Limited

{Incorporated and operational in the
United Kingdom)

Wolseley Central and Eastern
Europe AG

(Incorporated and operational In
Switzerland)

Wolseley Finance (Gibraltar)
Limited

{Incorporated in Gibraltar and
operational in the United Kingdom}

Wolseley Finance (Isis) Limited
(Incorporated in Guemsey and
operatonal in the United Kingdom)

Wolseley Finance (Isle of Man)
Limited

{Incorporated in the Isle of Man and
operational In the United Kingdom)

Wolseley Finance (Kennet) Limited
(Incorporated in Guernsey and
operational in the United Kingdom)

Wolseley Finance (Loddon} Limited
{Incorporated n Guernsey and
operational in the United Kingdorm)

Wolseley Finance (Thames) Limited
{lncorporated and operational in the
United Kingdom)

Wolseley Finance (Theale) Limited
{iIncorporated and operational in the
United Kingdom)

Wolseley France SAS
(Incorporated and operational n France)




Wolseley {Group Services) Limited
(Incorporated and operational in the
United Kingdom)

*Wolseley Group Holdings Limited
{Incorporated and operational in the
tUnited Kingdom)

Wolseley Holdings Canada Inc.
{Incorporated and operational in
Canada)

Wolseley Holdings Denmark ApS
(Incorporated and operational in
Denmark)

Wolseley-Hughes Limited
(incorporated and operational in the
United Kingdom)

Wolseley Insurance Limited
(incorporated and operational in the
Isle of Man)

Wolseley Investments, Inc.
(incorporated and operational in the
United States of America}

Wolseley Investments North
Amenca, Inc.

{Incorporated and cperational in the
United States of Amenca)

Wolseley Nordic Holdings AB
(Incorparated and operational In
Sweden}

Wolseley Overseas Limited
{Incorporated and operational in the
United Kingdom)

Wolseley Overseas Holdings
Limited

(Incorperated and operational in the
United Kingdom)

Wolseley UK Finance Limited
(Incorporated in Guermnsey and
operational n the United Kingdom)

Wolseley UK Holdings Limited
{(Incarporated and operatonal in the
United Kingdom)

Associates
Saturn Acquisttion Holdings, LLGC
Los Angeles, Califorma 90024

{incorporated and operational in the
United States of Amernica}

f)uractots' report“— Bustness review

Dwrectors report — Cor;)orate go;emance

Financial statements
Other mformation

All subsidiary undertakings have been
inciuded in the consohdation

Shareholdings in companies marked *
are held by Wolseley plc All other
shareholdings in the above mentioned
companies are held by intermediate
subsidiary undertakings

Detalls of directors and officers are
reported as at 27 September 2010

All shareholdings in the above
subsidiary undertakings are of ordinary
shares or equity capital, plus the
following preference shares In

the case of

Woalseley Finance (Isle of Man)
Limited
100%

Wolseley Insurance Limited
100%

Wolseley Investments Inc.
100%

Wolseley Overseas Holdings
Limited
100%

Wolseley UK Finance Limited
100%

Wolseley UK Holdings Limited
100%
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Shareholder information

Access to shareholder information

All Wolseley plc shareholder imformation 15 avalable
electronically Shareview, a service offered by our registrars,
Equinrt, allows shareholders onfine access to a range of
shareholder information It provides access to individual’s
shareholding detatls in the Company and practical help on
transfernng shares or updating personal detals It also allows
shareholders to dectde how to receive their shareholder
commumcations and to subrmit ther votes for all shareholder
meetings

To register, shareholders simply need to log on to

www shareview ¢o.uk using ther shareholder reference
number and complete the simple on-screen registration
process First-time users will need to enter certain information
and to choose a personal identification number before they
are able to access ther sharsholding details

The Company can, at shareholders’ request, send an
emall notification each time a new shareholder report

or other shareholder communication 1s put on the website
Shareholders will then be able to read and/or download the
infermation at therr leisure, but will still be able to request
paper copies of the documents should they so wish

Share dealing

UK-based shareholders are also offered a simple and
convenient telephone and internet share sale and purchase
service by our registrars Equiniti Shareview dealing 1s
available for telephone purchases and sales between 8 30am
and 4 30pm, Monday to Friday on 0871 384 2020 and for
internet purchases and sales via www.shareview co uk/
dealing A postal dealing service 15 also avalable and a form
together with terms and condibions can be obtained from
Equinrd by calling 0871 384 2934 Calls to these numbers
are charged at 8 pence per minute from a BT landline

Other telephony providers’ costs may vary

2009 Share issue and
capitalisation information

Information relating to the corporate transaction (share
captalisaton and nghts 1ssue}, which was approved by
shareholders on 1 Apnl 2009 (including the taxable treatment
of the nghts or payment for nghts not taken up}, 1s available In
the prospectus issued at that time A copy of this document
1s avallable at www wolseley com

142 Wolseley pic
Annual Report and Accounts 2010

Stock Exchange Listings

The ordinary shares of 10 pence each of the Company
are listed on the London Stock Exchange The Company
also operates a Level | Amencan Depositary Receipts
{"ADR”) programme American Depository Shares,
which are evidenced by the ADRs, are Iisted on the
premier tier of the over-the-counter market “OTCQX" and
each ADR represents one-tenth of an ordinary share
Further information on ADRs can be found at

www pinksheets com or www.otcgx.com

Published information

Further copies of the Annual Report may be obtained

from the Group Communications and Investor Relations
Department, Wolseley plc, Parkview 1220, Arlington
Business Park, Theale, Reading RG7 4GA, United Kingdom
Caompany information may also be viewed on the Company's
website at www.wolseley.com

If you would ke to receive a copy of the Annual Report in an
appropnate alternative format, such as Braille or an audio
version on CD, please contact +44 (0)118 929 8700

Corporate timetable

7 December 2010
Intenm management statement released

20 January 2011
Annual General Meeting

21 March 2011*
Announcement of Half Year Results for the penod ending
31 January 2011

23 May 2011*
Intenim management statement released

31 July 2011
End of financial year 2010/11

26 September 2011*

Final results for the year ending 31 July 2011 announced
“Dates are based on current expectations

The Half Year and Annual Final Results announcements
and the internm management statements will be avalable

on the Company's website at www.wolseley.com
following therr release
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Other information |

Head and Registered Office Principal committees of the Board as at

Parkview 1220 "~ 27 September 2010

Arington Business Park Audit Committee

Theale

Foning P 0 Metaolp Warong - Crarrer

Telephone +44 () 118 929 8700 James | K Murray

Fax +44 (0} 118 929 8701 Nigel M Stein

Website www.wolseley.com
Remuneration Committee

- Andrew J Duff = Charman

Auditors Gareth Davis

PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP Alain Le Goff (with effect from 20 May 2010)
Nigel M Stein

Corporate brokers _ Nominations Committee

Bank of Amenca Memil Lynch John W Whybrow — Chairman

Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch Gareth Davis
Andrew J Duff

P Alain Le Goff

Solicitors James | K Murray

Freshfields Bruckhaus Dennger LLP Nigel M Stein
Michael P Wareing

UK registrars Treasury Committee

Equints Limited John W Martin — Chairman fwith effect from 1 Apnl 2010}

Aspect House lan K Meakins

Spencer Road Michael J R Vermer

Lancing Michael P Wareing

West Sussex BNGO 68N Matthew J Webb (with effect from 1 August 2010}
Disclosure Committee

Telephone

within the UK 0871 384 2934* John W Martin — Chairman

from overseas +44 (0) 121 415 7011 {\af‘gﬂ}z #A Ziif,?;‘

Website www.equiniti.com Richard | Shoylekov

*Calls to this number cost 8 pence per minute from a BT landing, John W Whybrow

other telephony prowiders’ costs may vary Lines cpen 8 30am to 5 30pm,
Monday to Friday

American Depositary Receipts

Deutsche Bank Trust Company Amencas

c/o Amenican Stock Transfer & Trust Company
Peck Ship Station

PO Box 2050

New York, NY 10272-2050

Email quenes DB®@amstock com

Telephone

within the US toll free +1-866-249-25383
Intemational +1-718-921-8137

Website www.adr.db.com
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Forward-looking statements

Certain iInformation included in this Annual Report and
Accounts is farward-looking and involves nsks, assumptions
and uncertanties that could cause actual resulfts to differ
materially from those expressed or mphed by forward-
looking statements Forward-looking statements cover all
matters which are not histoncal facts and include, without
imitation, projections relating o results of operations and
financial conditions and the Company's plans and objectives
tor future operations, including, without mitation, discusstons
of expected future revenues, financing plans, expected
expenditures and divestments, risks associated with changes
N economic conditions, the strength of the plumbing and
heating and bullding matenals market in North Amenca

and Europe, fluctuations in product pnces and changes

in exchange and interest rates

Forward-looking statements can be identified by the use

of forward-looking terminology, including terms such as
“believes”, “estimates”, "antcipates”, “expects”, “forecasts”,
“intends”, “plans”, “projects”, “goal”, “target”, “am”, “may",
“will”, “would”, “could™ or “should” or, in each case, therr
negative or other vanations or comparable terminology
Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future
performance All forward-looking statements in this Annual
Report and Accounts are based upon information known
to the Company on the date of this Annual Report and
Accounts Accordingly, no assurance can be given that any
particular expectation will be met and readers are cautioned
not te place undue reliance on forward-looking statements,
which speak only at therr respective dates

Addmionally, forward-looking statements regarding past
trends or activities should not be taken as a representation
that such trends or activities will continue in the future Other
than in accordance with its legal or regulatory obligations
(including under the UK Listing Rules and the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules of the Financial Services Authonty), the
Company undertakes no cbligation to publicly update or
revise any forward-locking staternent, whether as a resuit of
new information, future events or otherwise Nothing in this
Annual Report and Accounts shall exclude any liability under
applicable laws that cannot be excluded in accordance with
such laws
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